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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBERE
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Consolidated Results

mEER

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBERE

Year ended 30 June

BEAA=THLEE

(HK$ million) 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
(BEEET) S| —CE-—F —“E--fF “E-EE —ZZT-NE
Revenue PN 5,119 6,107 5,761 5,119 5,316
GP% ER= 17% 19% 22% 23% 22%
Profit before taxation BRBE AT FI 920 285 421 400 398
Taxation g (5) (28) (63) (83) (58)
Profit for the year REERF 85 257 358 317 340
Consolidated Assets and Liabilities
mEEERAE
At 30 June
RAA=1H
(HK$ million) 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
(BEEET) b it | — B2 B ZEZRE ZB-NF
Total assets BEE 3,425 3,801 3,676 3,215 3,062
Total liabilities BaE (639) (842) (795) (738) (727)
Non-controlling interests FFiE &z - - - - (11)
Equity attributable to FINNEI
shareholders of the LR
Company 2,786 2,959 2,881 2,477 2,324
Key Financial Indicators
FEHMKER
Year ended 30 June
BEAA=1THLLEE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—E-= —EgE- —E-F ZEBEZEE —ZE-hE
Earnings per share (HK$) BRER (EHT)
Basic BR 0.36 1.09 1.51 1.34 1.44
Diluted s 0.36 1.09 1.51 1.34 1.43
Dividend per share (HK$) BRBRE (B T) 0.30 0.48 0.48 0.45 0.44
Equity-debt ratio* RS ERE R 100:0 100:0 100:0 100:0 100:0
3 Equity-debt ratio is defined as the ratio of the total equity & EEEBLEZEARQATRREGAEZEF
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company to net debt. BENLE FEXKEREHEEAERERER
Net debt represents leases liabilities less cash and deposits. TR e
HIBE(EB)ARAA | ZEZ=FF R 5



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEEIREHRES

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Lam Soon
(Hong Kong) Limited (the “Company”), | present the annual report
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for
the financial year ended 30 June 2023.

FY22/23 marked a challenging year for the Group, as the negative
impact of global geopolitical tensions and Covid-19 policies in our
core markets reverberated across all of our businesses. Despite the
diversified nature of our Group, we were not completely immune
to raw material cost pressures and dampened market demand.
The Group posted a profit of HK$85 million against revenues of
HK$5,119 million during the financial year, representing declines
of 67% and 16% respectively against last year.

Despite prevailing market uncertainties, the Group’s cash position
remains strong, allowing us to maintain our relatively stable
dividend policy. As such, the Board would like to recommend a
final dividend of HK$0.2 per share at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting. In addition to the interim dividend of HK$0.1
per share paid earlier this year, the total dividend for the year will
amount to HK$0.3 per share.

Strategic Overview

In the first half of the financial year, our teams spent considerable
time and resources in navigating the complex and unprecedented
challenges arising from Mainland China’s dynamic Covid-19 policy
and commodity-related cost fluctuations. Financial prudence
took precedence, but we quickly shifted gears and reactivated
growth programs in the second half following the removal of
Covid restrictions and the re-opening of Mainland China’s borders.
However, underlying economic activity remained tepid, and initial
optimism of a speedy and sustained recovery in Mainland China
quickly faded away. Hong Kong, a major contributor of revenue
and profits to the Group, also faced new challenges.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEEIREHRES

The Group’s Food divisions encountered one of its most
difficult years in recent history as wheat and oil raw material
costs significantly reduced profits. Price increases, designed
to mitigate against these upstream pressures, also weakened
our competitiveness in certain volume-driven segments which
became more price-sensitive as the macroeconomic environment
deteriorated. This was particularly the case for our Flour business.
Despite this setback, the Group remains committed to our strategy
of selling premium flour and specialty fats products to bakeries,
food manufacturers, and catering channels. The Group's longer-
term transformation is contingent upon our ability to cement our
reputation as the partner-of-choice in total bakery solutions and to
extend our market leadership in Flour and Qil across institutional
and retail channels. In order to keep up with the dynamic market
and rapidly changing needs of our customers, we saw that it was
the right time to initiate a series of senior personnel changes to
rejuvenate our Food businesses. In the second half of the financial
year, we reshuffled and reorganized the senior leadership teams in
our Flour and Edible Oil businesses.

Under a new leadership and management team, the Group's
Home Care division capped off a solid year of volume growth and
improving profitability amid a harsh operating and competitive
environment. Efforts to drive supply chain efficiencies and lower
our cost base continued to bear fruit, allowing management to
sustainably reinvest resources in higher-performing channels to
attain growth and market share gains despite declines in our core
markets. The team has already begun developing new products
in premium segments across both dishwashing and adjacent
categories, and investing in marketing programs to enhance the
AXE brand. These initiatives will better position us to drive growth
in the next fiscal year.

Whilst we sought to judiciously manage and reduce our spending
throughout the year, we stepped up efforts to invest in IT and
R&D projects which are instrumental towards driving longer-
term growth and productivity. We made progress in enhancing
our talent pool and capabilities in IT and R&D. New IT projects
we have rolled out will digitalize major sales- and procurement-
related ecosystems, automate critical financial processes, and
carry forward into future years. These initiatives will digitally
enhance our connections with external customers and suppliers,
and set a stronger foundation for the Group's longer-term digital
ambitions. In R&D, we continued to strengthen our pipeline
of premium NPDs in both Food and Home Care segments. Our
revamped R&D organisational structure will also foster a higher
degree of specialization and enable focused value-creation — NPDs
and/or cost savings — in our product formulation and packaging
processes.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEEIREHRES

The Group’s Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") task
force continued to manage all ESG related issues, strategies and
performance to attain best practices in sustainability. During the
year, we improved the process to monitor and track our divisional
targets and their key performance indicators. Progress reports with
greater details are presented at regular Board meetings to provide
timely updates for the Board’s oversight of the divisional ESG
performance. Furthermore, with new climate-related disclosure
requirements targeted to take effect in year 2024, the Group
has started to plan and prepare for the new reporting regime
in line with global standards. Our commitment to implement
green and low-carbon concept throughout the entire process of
product research and development, manufacturing, packaging and
distribution, will continue with practical actions to promote the
sustainable development of the Group.

Looking ahead, geopolitical tensions are unlikely to abate in the
foreseeable future and China’s post-pandemic economic recovery
could take some time to get into full swing. While we expect
another challenging year ahead, we still see opportunities for
growth in the vast China market. The government’s monetary
stimulus should also help ease deflationary pressures. The Group’s
strong balance sheet and diversified portfolio of brands will help
us weather near-term volatilities as we continue to invest for the
future and better serve the evolving needs of our customers. Over
time, the Group’s actions and investments will further strengthen
our resilience against external headwinds and commodity risks,
and help us generate sustainable growth and value for our
shareholders.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express our heartfelt gratitude to our shareholders, customers,
business partners and bankers for their ongoing trust and support
to us. To our dedicated employees, we truly appreciate your loyalty
and contributions to the Group in these challenging times.

KWEK Leng Hai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 1 September 2023
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

E 3 E -

OVERVIEW

During the year, the Russia-Ukraine war continued to disrupt
supplies, driving up commodity prices and inducing more volatility
to the markets. Our major raw materials — wheat and edible oils
ingredients — remained highly sensitive to these events, trending
higher to the detriment of our product cost. In Mainland China,
consumer demand fell significantly in the first half of FY22/23 due
to pandemic lockdowns. Although restrictions were lifted in the
second half, a strong and sustainable rebound in sentiment is yet
to be seen. The Group continued to take proactive actions over
the year to protect its margins by reinforcing cost control measures
and vigilantly monitor our raw material procurement decisions.
In parallel, we pushed forward on initiatives to strengthen our
internal infrastructures and NPD pipelines so that we can better
cater to the needs of our partners and consumers.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Group's revenue declined by 16% to HK$5,119 million for
the financial year ended 30 June 2023, mainly due to lower sales
volume from our Food Segment and the depreciation of the
Renminbi. Compared to last year, gross profit margin declined by
2 percentage points to 17%, as unfavourable raw material costs
outweighed price adjustment efforts and sales mix improvements.
Profit for the year decreased by 67% to HK$85 million, as the
Group's largest Food Segment generated lower sales and profits.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

FHE R

BUSINESS REVIEW

Food Segment

Revenue from our Food segment decreased by 18% to HK$4,326
million whereas its profit from operations decreased by 81% to
HK$52 million. The profit decline was driven by higher wheat
and edible oil ingredients cost, lower sales volume, and the loss
incurred by our Specialty Fats business.

Both Flour and Specialty Fats businesses were affected by more
intense competition amid industry-wide cost pressures and
weakened market demand. Customer retention and penetration,
especially in the premium segment, became more difficult as
budget-conscious customers traded down to reduce costs in
a softer market. Drastic fluctuations in palm oil prices in 2022
compounded our problems, as our Specialty Fats business incurred
losses in the process of selling high-cost inventories to maintain
market share and inventory turns.

Despite being hard hit by both upstream and downstream
challenges, the Group executed a balanced and tactical pricing
strategy over the year to mitigate the impact and ease some of the
cost pressure. As a leading provider of total bakery solutions, our
Group competes in the market not only through pricing, but also
via the provision of enhanced value-added services. The quality
of our products and solutions are integral towards securing our
customers’ trust and satisfaction. Enhancing their stickiness will
protect our profit margin and market share, as well as pave the
way for more cross-selling opportunities in the future. In line with
this direction and our core competence, we continued to build
on our Flour business’ strong equity position in Mainland China,
sharpening our focus on premium Flour segments as we formulate
plans to achieve breakthrough in Specialty Fats.
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T MEKLEZMNBTESI%EBE
52,000,000t ° =R TIEANER B A
BERAEAR LA HETHRREFPANSERKRE
HELEBEMEN -

EEETERFIBORTEZFEREZHER
T mEBRFEDH  EHRESEHEER
HRINFE  BEIERENTFBEERR
BER  URETRRKZBEBELS  BF

BRZ2E(LHEESKTS)EEEMRE -
REZZBZZHF  BEHAERRFAXERE -
CTEMELNE  BRTHESTSEOEARTER
2 RMEARESHATE  UBBEREE
BELEE -

EELTHNESZREBCHAMNELERES
E. EXKERFRDHTFEREBMIEER
HEE - UBEFERERBERDILARED £
RELHHBEREARASRMEED  AEET
EEBEE  TEBRMEBERBNTS LB
FoRMERKRBRAIRNEEHRAEFN
FERBREEZEER - EEEFHMEIUR
FEMNFNBRETEME  LRHRRERE
SXNHEHRSHETER - BREUFHRE
REMAZOBETD > RASEZEENES
RAP B RBERRAUAL - WHREE RN S K5
M5 o ERHIER B LU Eh RS EEE
ZRER o

MIE(BE)ERRAA | —E_=FFH "



REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
7% O B

12

= Bf
%5 PR R

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited | Annual Report 2023



REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

FHE R

BUS'N ESS REVIEW (continued)

Food Segment (continued)

Following a leadership change in the second half, the Group
reorganized our sales force with the dual intention of expediting
volume recovery and generating more synergies between the Flour
and Specialty Fats businesses. In addition, we took steps to further
optimize and integrate our procurement, production, and R&D
practices so that we can respond in a more agile manner towards
market opportunities and risks.

The Group’s Edible Oil business faced another tough year. Three
consecutive years of high and increasing raw material costs,
coupled with shrinking market demand in our core markets, have
severely stretched our ability to strike an optimal balance between
volume and profit protection. In response to these pressures and
uncertainties, we focused on areas where we had more control.
We slowed down geographic expansion plans, elevated focus
on core markets and offline channels, materially reduced our
marketing spend, and drove new products that could deliver
incremental value to consumers and strengthen Knife's premium
brand positioning. Our proprietary and patented adjustable bottle
cap has been well-received by the market and will continue to help
us expand our young consumer base. Despite ongoing competitive
and cost challenges, we see opportunities to leverage on Knife’s
premium positioning to expand into untapped price tiers and gain
share within Corn and Peanut oil markets in Guangdong. With oil
raw material costs potentially showing early signs of stabilization,
we plan to prudently step up our marketing programs to enhance
Knife’s brand equity in our core Guangdong and Hong Kong
markets.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

FHE R

BUS' N ESS REVIEW (continued)

Home Care Segment

Softer demand in core markets and supply chain disruptions in
Mainland China also played a role in shaping the performance of
the Home Care segment this year. We were able to sustain overall
volume growth. However, these gains were offset by the impact
from unfavourable foreign currency translation of our Mainland
China sales, thereby resulting in a slight decline in overall revenue.
Meanwhile, management’s efforts to drive supply chain and
product cost savings generated momentum throughout the year.
These initiatives, combined with our careful price adjustments and
focus on higher-return distribution channels to sustain volume,
led to a material improvement in profitability. As a result, Home
Care segment revenue declined by 4% to HK$793 million, while
operating profit increased by 33% to HK$73 million.

Anticipating new opportunities and challenges in the post-
Covid era, our team has stepped up investment in new product
development and marketing programs in Mainland China towards
the end of the financial year. Our new dishwashing product — AXE
Hyaluronic Acid — will allow us to expand into untapped segments
with a differentiated approach. These products and programs are
geared towards enhancing our brand image and market position in
key offline and e-Commerce channels. This will solidify our footing
for the new fiscal year.

In the more mature Hong Kong market, we extended our
leadership in the dishwashing category via the launch of AXE
Supra — a new product in the super concentrated segment of the
dishwashing category — and continued business momentum in
our more premium AXE Triple Action range. We engaged in an IP
collaboration with Din Dong, a Hong Kong-based cartoon cat, to
boost the appeal of AXE's brand and core dishwashing range to
new and younger consumers. We also made progress in our efforts
to expand beyond the dishwashing category, launching laundry
capsule products under the AXE brand in selected channels.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

FHE R

OUTLOOK

Although Covid-19 has passed, geopolitical conflicts and tensions,
the global interest rate environment, and the unpredictable post-
pandemic recovery in Mainland China and Hong Kong's economies
will continue to generate uncertainties and external headwinds
for our businesses. Against this backdrop, cost control and
procurement discipline remain key towards mitigating these risks,
and the Group will continue to adopt best practices in these areas.

Whilst ongoing challenges are likely to persist in the new fiscal, we
still see meaningful opportunities for us to expand and penetrate
deeper in our core markets. In this regard, management will focus
on premium segments where we can develop a clear competitive
advantage or differentiated edge. Equally important is the need
for us to remain steadfast and agile in our execution of these
initiatives, especially in light of the dynamic marketplace and
competitive landscape in Mainland China.

Investment in longer-term initiatives remains a top priority for
the Group. Specifically, we will continue to invest in people and
programs to boost our R&D and digital capabilities across the
organization, and further build our bench strength in all divisions
and functions. These fundamentals will better position us to deliver
sustainable growth and value to our shareholders over the long-
term.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Management has been provided with the following key
performance indicators (“KPIs”) to manage its business, through
evaluating, controlling and setting strategies to improve
performance. Such KPIs include revenue, gross profit margin,
profit for the year, inventory and trade receivable turnover days.

Group Results

For the year ended 30 June 2023, the Group’s revenue decreased
by 16% to HK$5,119 million due to weak market demand.
Gross profit margin declined by 2 percentage points to 17%,
primarily attributable to the adverse impact from fluctuations of
raw material costs. Although the negative impact on gross profit
margin has been partially mitigated by price adjustments and sales
mix improvement, the Group’s profit for the year decreased by
67% to HK$85 million.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Liquidity and Financial Resources

At 30 June 2023, the Group had a cash balance of HK$1,457
million (2022: HK$1,541 million). About 67% of these funds were
denominated in Renminbi, 31% in Hong Kong dollars and 2% in
other currencies. In addition, the Group invested in fixed income
government bonds in Mainland China and equity securities listed in
Hong Kong with carrying amounts of HK$91 million (2022: HK$24
million) and HK$67 million (2022: HK$94 million) respectively as at
30 June 2023.

Banking facilities available to Group companies and not yet drawn
as at 30 June 2023 amounted to HK$553 million (2022: HK$659
million).

The Group centralises all the financing and treasury activities at
corporate level. There are internal controls over the application of
financial and hedging instruments which can only be employed to
manage and mitigate the commodity price risk and currency risk
for trade purposes.

At 30 June 2023, the inventory turnover days' were 62 days (2022:
65 days). The trade receivable turnover days? were 21 days (2022:
18 days).

In view of the strong liquidity and financial position, management
believes the Group will have sufficient resources to fund its daily
operations and capital expenditure commitments.

Foreign Currency Exposure

The Group has operations in Mainland China, Hong Kong and
Macau. Local costs and revenue are primarily denominated in
Renminbi, Hong Kong dollars, and Macau Patacas.

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales
and purchases, which give rise to receivables, payables and
cash balances that are denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a
currency other than the functional currency of the operations to
which the transactions relate. The Group monitors its exposure by
considering factors including, but not limited to, exchange rate
movement of the relevant foreign exchange currencies as well
as the Group's cash flow requirements to ensure that its foreign
exchange exposure is kept at an acceptable level. Details of the
foreign currency exposure of the Group are set out in note 24(d) to
the financial statements.

Net exchange gains for the year is set out in note 6 to the financial
statements.

L The calculation of inventory turnover days is based on the closing
balances divided by the preceding 3 months’ cost of sales and
multiplied by 91 days.

2 The calculation of trade receivables turnover days is based on the

closing balances divided by the preceding 3 months’ revenue and
multiplied by 91 days.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Equity Price Exposure

The Group maintains an investment portfolio which comprises
equity securities listed in Hong Kong for investment yield
enhancement purpose. Equity investments are subject to asset
allocation limits.

Capital expenditure

During the year ended 30 June 2023, the Group invested a total
sum of HK$49 million (2022: HK$108 million) on acquisition of
plant equipment and other fixed assets.

Details of the capital expenditure commitments are set out in note
25(a) to the financial statements.

Human Resources

As at 30 June 2023, there were 1,634 employees in the Group.
Annual increment and year-end performance bonus mechanism
were incorporated in the Group’s remuneration policy to retain,
reward and motivate individuals for their contributions to the
Group. In addition, the Company also operates a share option
scheme for granting of options to eligible employees.

Relation with Shareholders and
Investors

The Company encourages two-way communication with its
stakeholders. Extensive information about the Group’s activities
is provided in the Annual and Interim Reports, which are sent to
shareholders. The Group also maintains a number of websites
to provide a wide range of information on the Group and its
businesses.
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS
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The 25th China International Baking Exhibition
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS
SELE

Zhengzhou Baking Centre Opening Ceremony 21 April 2023
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Quanzhou Baking Centre Opening Ceremony 23 March 2023
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS

SELE
Lam Soon High-end Bakery National Tradeshows FY2022/2023
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More than 119 Product Demonstrations were held July 2022 to June 2023
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS
SELE

The 24th China International Bakery Exhibition
E24/E T BRI R

19 September 2022
20225 9H19H

]
H
8
&
B
4

MIE(ERB)BRLAR | —BE_=FF®

25



CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS

Honour & Awards
BB EE A8 1F

Jiangsu Lam Soon Food Company
Limited was awarded the Chinese
national key leading enterprise in
agricultural industrialisation
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Lam Soon (Shandong) Food Company Limited was
awarded the title of “Leading Enterprise” in Shandong
Grain and Oil Industry in 2022 by Shandong Grain
Industry Association
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Lam Soon (Sichuan) Food Company Limited was awarded
the title of demonstration processing enterprise of the
National Safe Grain and Oil Demonstration Project
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS
SELE

Shekou Lam Soon Flour Mills Company . :

Limited was awarded the National (Shenzhen) 1| : ncko et our .1
Outstanding Foreign-Invested Enterprise w&ll)ﬁts—ﬂmﬂﬁﬁ?
Double Excellence Enterprise Award :
(2021-2022)
eOEIEEHB AR A ARERECRIDEFING
REGEEEDHER(2021-20225F)

I
ERBHRINTESEDR). ZEe

— . .Star Supermarket Brand (ousehold cleaner) -AXE Y Y .
: AXE" was awarded the Superior Brand

Award under the Super Brands Award
activity held by PARKNnSHOP (HK) Limited
[FEENE IKEREREmBAE 2 2B ™ MmE

“Knife” was awarded the Superior Brand Award and
Outstanding Partner Award under the Super Brands Award
activity held by PARKNnSHOP (HK) Limited
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R - HERERBRES

About Lam Soon
Our Sustainability Mission and Vision

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited (the “Company” or “Lam Soon")
and together with its subsidiaries (referred to as the “Group”) is
built on the strong heritage of value creation for our stakeholders
and communities within which we operate. Over the years, we
have taken a progressive approach in integrating sustainability into
our businesses, towards a stronger and more resilient group. We
are committed to: growing our businesses responsibly, balancing
environmental with economic considerations, as well as creating
a positive impact for our stakeholders and contributing to our
communities.

Our Values

The Group continues to strive for excellence in its day-to-day
business operations and embrace the following core values in all

BEAEIE
ZANTRARREHEER

FIE(EB)BRAR([ADF K [FMEIE])ER
HNBAR (AR IAEEDEZIERFHER
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BMNWEEL  ERESEERAREE - K
MEh  LEEENEERREMNES - F
BREESHEEZREE  UARB/FHERER
BEERRBTEREL TR -

HPNEESR

FEEBBETAREREBEPEREE - AE
BERERAUTRMEE :

aspects:

Honour
=

To conduct business with honour

UEBKEEK

o O

L_ﬂ Entrepreneurship
E B

To pursue management vision and
foster entrepreneurship
BREERR  HELERW

Quality
BHx

To provide products and services that

consistently exceed customers’ expectations

RHE-EBHEFHENERRRSE

& Unity
4

M,
Y @ “ Innovation
=R

To nurture and be committed to innovation

BB RBINEIH
A

E’ Human resources

—| ABER
To enhance the quality of human resources —
as the essence of management excellence

BAANEREBERSMEENREHE

[l_oll Social responsibility
HEEME

To create wealth for the betterment of
society
AER E LR E

(o) Progress
L
v

To ensure oneness in purpose, harmony and
friendship in the pursuit of prosperity for all
BRAABE B MERFHEBERER

To continuously improve existing operations and to
position for expansion and new business opportunities
THRERAEEEAURBBEARERTHELE
{EIF 748
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About Lam Soon (continued)
Our Values (continued)

These intrinsic values form a major part of the Group’s core value
system and have served as the foundation for its sustainable
growth and development.

Our Business

Lam Soon has been publicly listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (”Stock Exchange”) since 1972. The Group
is headquartered in Hong Kong and is principally engaged in the
manufacturing, trading and processing of food and homecare
products in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China. The Group
comprises a broad portfolio of famous brands, which include
“Knife”, “Red Lantern”, “AXE”, "Labour”, “Golden Statue”,
“American Roses”, “Royal Sakura” and “Double Peach”.

About This Report

Reporting Standard

This is the seventh Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”)
report (the “Report”) of the Company, highlighting its ESG
performance, with disclosure reference made to the ESG Reporting
Guide as set out in Appendix 27 on the Rules Governing the Listing
of the Securities (“Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange and
Guidance issued by the Stock Exchange. The Group has complied
with all the “comply or explain” provisions set out in the ESG
Reporting Guide during the Reporting Period (as defined below).

Reporting Period

From 1 July 2022 to 30 June 2023 (the “Reporting Period”).

Reporting Scope

This Report covers the Group’s overall environmental performance
in the manufacture and distribution of food and home care
products in Hong Kong and Mainland China, which accounted for
98% of the Group's total revenue during the Reporting Period.
During the Reporting Period, the Group’s major operational sites
were:

(i) the Lam Soon Building in Hong Kong comprising the
headquarters office, an edible oil plant, and a logistic fleet;

(ii) the Shenzhen office in Shekou, Shenzhen in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC");
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About This Report (continued)
Reporting Scope (continued)

(iii) the five flour mills in Shekou (Shenzhen), Yixing, Jintan,
Qionglai and Qingzhou in the PRC;

(iv) the edible oil plant in Shekou, Shenzhen in the PRC;
(v) the homecare product plant in Guangzhou in the PRC; and
(vi) the specialty fats plant in Jintan in the PRC.

The environmental performance of the business operation in
Macau, the sales offices in Guangzhou, Beijing and Shanghai
were not reported as they did not have any significant ESG impact
during the Reporting Period.

Reporting Principles

Materiality: We focus on issues with high importance to the
Group and our stakeholders. Various material sustainability issues
were identified through our interaction with internal management
and staff as well as external stakeholders. These material
sustainability issues form the basis for preparing this Report.

Quantitative: In order to set a measurable target and evaluate
the ESG performance more objectively, quantitative information
is provided, where appropriate. A data collection tool is used to
record and monitor various environmental and social indicators.

Balance: We review and disclose our achievements, areas for
improvement and future action plans in this Report to provide an
unbiased picture of our ESG performance.

Consistency: Unless otherwise stated, the methodologies used
in this Report are consistent with prior year for meaningful
comparisons of ESG data over time.

Feedback

The Group welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on our ESG
approach and performance. Please contact us via email at
webmaster@lamsoon.com.
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Our Approach to Sustainability
Environmental, Social and Governance Management

The Group sees the benefits of proactively tackling ESG issues,
believing that its strategic focus on sustainability and its ability to
manage associated ESG risks can create not only tangible value for
its business, but also long-term value for its employees, customers,
the environment and the broader society.

The Group formalised the ESG Governance Structure in
November 2020, in which the board of directors of the Company
(the "Board”) oversees the sustainability management and
performance of the Group and undertakes overall responsibility for
the Group's ESG strategy and reporting. The Group has dedicated
its efforts to ensuring compliance with relevant legal and

RIE-HERER

WESE

BMEAFERRERN G &
RIE -HERERNERE

FEERABBREERE  HERELHEZ
#i o EEHSTHERRCEBERREE
EMERE  dERELRBINESD - TMEF
UAEXBRAIEEE  TUANUARHEET - &
F BREREZHHSRAERBEE-

AEER-Z-2F+-RAEXBYTRE -
HEREENEELEE  HPALQANESS
(Exg ) AEEEARETHERRNER
RERE  A2HEEEAKENRE  HERE
AREERER - AEEB NI RBRETRHA(L
MR PR 2 A AR MEEEXR -

regulatory requirements as described in the latest Listing Rules.

ESG Governance Structure at Lam Soon

MIEMERER  HEREANEERE

Board of Directors

Exg

=]

To have overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG and to oversee the
sustainability and climate change risk management and performance
of the Group.

HAEENRE HSRELCEHERES  WEBEAKEITHER
ERRRESCAREERKRR -

To track the progress of target achievement and KPI performance over
the year.

EEM%iE’F ERGEE R ERENIERERE -

Board Audit and

Risk Management
Committee (“BARMC")
BEE2ERK
AREEEESS
(BREEKBREERZE®

To assist the Board to oversee the Group's overall risk management and
governance issues including, among others:

mYESS

EEAEENEREAMREEREREE  HHEE

To review the ESG risks & opportunities and the related policies and practices.
FEHRE - HERELAEBREBURMBEBRERER -

To monitor the ESG reporting progress.

EBERRIE HEREAREEE -

To review the ESG report as well as the ESG-related risks and issues.
ERIRE  HERERREREE HEREREBEREBRRER -

ESG Ta§k Force
REE - B RERIENE

Group Managing Director /
Chief Executive Officer
EEEEHALE 1THAR
Chief Financial Officer
BHE AR

General Managers of
business units

B KB EKIE

Heads of various functions
ZBEEEE

To develop and oversee ESG strategies and to monitor overall ESG
performance

FIEREBRR HEREARKBRETRE -t EREARERR -
To |mp|ement the strategies, setting their respective actions and
goals, devising and implementing related plans and policies.
BEiERK  SITESENTERERE - SIERERBETSIRBEE -
To work with business units and departments on a regular basis

to collect data, track operational performance and coordinate the
preparation of the ESG report.
EHEEBEN RIS EARERE - RREERBRHERERER
5 HERERRE °

The Group Internal
Audit Department
REBHRIEZLE

To work with the ESG Task Force, the business units and functions

to assist the ESG data validation for ensuring the consistence of data

source and standard and increase the accuracy of the ESG data.
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Our Approach to Sustainability (continved)
ESG Governance Structure at Lam Soon (continued)

The Group established a process to track progress of targets and
KPI performance during the Reporting Period, and the results will
be presented to the Board regularly to facilitate their oversight of
the ESG progress and issues.

The Group also incorporates ESG and major climate-related
risks into its Enterprise Risk Management ("ERM") Framework,
where the process for controls and risk management have
been embedded into its daily operations and decision-making
processes. The BARMC regularly reviews the Group's risk registers
and risk profile reports, including the major climate-related risks
in the ERM Framework. Under the Group’s ERM Framework,
a structured approach was employed on an ongoing basis to
identify, assess, treat, monitor and report on the key risks affecting
the sustainability of the Group’s business. During the Reporting
Period, we have identified, assessed, and prioritised physical risk
and transition risk as our climate-related risks within our ERM
Framework, and corresponding risk management programmes.
Actions have been developed and implemented to bring climate-
related risks under the Group’s overall risk appetite level and
enhance business resilience to climate change. During the
Reporting Period, we have also conducted a scenario analysis to
identify the potential impacts from material climate risks in the
short, medium and long term.

For details of the Group’s corporate governance practices, please
refer to the Section of “Corporate Governance Report” of this
annual report.
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Our Approach to Sustainability (continved)
Four-Pillar Approach to Sustainability

The Group believes that an effective ESG management structure
is a key factor to business success and has therefore adopted
an integrated four-pillar approach to its overall sustainability
management of ESG issues on the environment, human capital,
corporate governance and social capital.
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ESG Management Approach
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PILLAR 1 PILLAR 2 PILLAR 3 PILLAR 4
S — FHE= FHE= FAE

Towards Empowering Conducting Business Caring for
a Greener Future our People with Honour our Community
BEERRARR EETFRMWET U EBETHER BA1RAL B
I —— [
Stakeholder Engagement BHhESH

The Group values input and feedback of its stakeholders as
they bring potential insights to the Group’s business. To ensure
its business focus remains relevant, the Group commissioned
an independent consultant to conduct stakeholder survey and
materiality assessments previously to engage and gauge feedbacks
from internal and external stakeholders. We also regularly interact
with our stakeholders and understand their expectations through
a range of communication channels. Through identifying areas of
improvement and maintaining close communication with various
stakeholders, the Group aims to consistently enhance its ESG
performance and management.
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Our Approach to Sustainability (continved)

BB A FEERN T @)

Stakeholder Engagement (continued) BOESHEE)
Stakeholder Group
517 & 48 Bl Communication Channel EIEEE
Management and Employees Annual conferences Fg
EEERET Appraisal sessions FEER

Employee engagement and
team building activities

ST Z2RNEBEREH

Internal e-newsletter and E-Post R ERE F B R E-Post

Interviews Bilia

Intranet A B4R

Meetings =

Mediation team SRR

Labour union Is

Notice boards BT ERE
Customers Customer hotlines BEFHZ
BEx Customer satisfaction surveys BEEREERE

Website and social media platforms FUR AR IR g2
Investors/Shareholders Annual and interim reports FIRF P HIRE
REE/BRR Annual General Meeting (AGM) REBEEEECEEESE)

Official website VAR N

Press releases and announcements FERM M
Suppliers and Business Partners Tendering and procurement BERKEBE
HEBNELSIESH communication

Regular evaluation TE B RT A

Conference calls EEER

Meetings =2

Workshops T1Eth
Industry Association/ Industry forum TEEHE

Regulators/Media Official website B Ak

TS TS e Press Releases and Announcements FERMQMm
Community Partners/NGOs Community engagement HESH
HESERME FBUSES ESG Report RIE - HERERRSE

Social Media R

Volunteering and charitable activities

SRBRBHNEEEE
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Our Approach to Sustainability (continved)
Materiality Analysis

The Group previously conducted a comprehensive stakeholder
engagement which involved over 100 stakeholders via surveys
to collect their feedback and recommendation on our ESG
performance in various topics. Based on the industry trend and
benchmarks, we further modified our materiality matrix and
identified a total of 20 sustainability issues (as shown in table
below) for stakeholders to rank its relative importance to the
Group on a scale of 1 to 5 (with “1” being not important at all and
"5" being very important) during the Reporting Period.
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Material Topics for Lam Soon
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Towards Empowering Conducting Business Caring for
a Greener Future our People with Honour our Community
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By EEGFRSH e Procurement practices
e Packaging materials e Employee wellbeing, IS5
B health and safety e Cyber security and
e Pollution mitigation EERN  EEER data privacy
DR S S PRz 2 EBIETAE
e Climate change e Employee e Intellectual property
mitigation and Development HIRERE
adaptation EE%RE e (Corporate governance
EMRIBERRIERE L hEER
e Economic
performance
RBEKRBE
e Business ethics and
compliance
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Our Approach to Sustainability (continved)
Materiality Analysis (continued)

A materiality matrix was developed from the results of the
stakeholder engagement exercise conducted with internal and
external stakeholders through an online survey. ESG Issues for
disclosure in this Report were identified by considering the
relevance of each ESG Issue to the operations and stakeholders of
the Group.

Upon analysing the survey results as adjusted by peers’ materiality,
14 issues were identified within the “Priority” area, while the
remaining 6 issues were identified within the “Significant” and
“Moderate” areas of the materiality matrix. Among all issues,
“employee wellbeing, health and safety”, “product quality and
safety” and “corporate governance” were the top three material
sustainability issues. The results in the materiality analysis were
reviewed and endorsed by the Board.

Materiality Matrix
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Our Approach to Sustainability (continved)
ESG Finance

Lam Soon is actively capitalising on ESG finance opportunities and
continuously exploring its potential. During the Reporting Period,
we participated in the Green Deposit Programme of one of our
bankers with deposits designated to fund projects that contribute
to the improvement of environmental issues. The total green
deposit placed by the Group amounted to HK$50,000,000 during
the year.

Pillar 1: “Towards a Greener Future”

BMAEAFERBO T &
B HBRELBE

MIEEBAARE HEREARMEKSY
THRZEEED  -RBEHE - RMSER
MEP-BERBRTHEKEERNFRAE
FHRGAREEANEREMENRERGE
T ARERFATHNECERAERBE
50,000,0007T °

XE—[BRERRRRK]

Key Achievements EE i i

— — S m——

# o

exhaust emission.

REBEHMERO. TR EARBEESRERL

100% o

Performed a climate risk scenario analysis for our major operational sites with reference to the
recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD).

RARZEBYREERETHFA(TCODNER  BEMNEIEZLESHETRRARERD

Upgraded all forklift trucks to electric-powered models, resulting in lower fuel consumption and
EREXEARERABHES - (LM E T hERERIER -

Built a 0.7 MW solar photovoltaic system in the flour plant in Jintan.

L2 EZ BV BEMRI2ES B MR R MEE S AR2ESHE -

Obtained the “Urban Sewage Discharge into Drainage Network Permit” which means that the
Group’s wastewater discharge allowance has been upgraded to Class 3 standard.

S GRS KBEABERERF D BAREBERSKSRRBCARE=ZREE -

Achieved 84% (2021/22: 76%) diversion rate for non-hazardous waste and maintained 100%
recycling rate for hazardous waste in all manufacturing plants.

Replaced R22 refrigerant in our operational sites with R32 refrigerant which is of lower Global
Warming Potential.
I BEBENIREETSA%(ZB-—/Z“2F 1 76%) » SEERMENEEEEYEIKRERER
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Pillar 1: “Towards a Greener Future”

(continued)
Environmental Management

We aim to reduce waste and improve efficiency in energy
and use of resources, starting from the humblest of steps
and seek to entrench the philosophy into a Group-wide
awareness and culture of caring for the environment.

The Group pledges to make continuous improvement in managing
and monitoring its emissions, wastewater, solid waste and noise
pollution. Every year, through engaging external licensed testing
laboratories, various environmental tests are conducted to
evaluate the capability of existing facilities on meeting regulatory
and environmental requirements and national standards based on
the parameters obtained.

The Group strictly abides by the laws, rules and regulations
enforced in relation to environmental protection and pollution
control, including but not limited to the following:

° Environmental Protection Law of the PRC;

o Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the
PRC;

. Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control of Water
Pollution;

o Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of

Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste;

. Soil Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC;

° Directory of National Hazardous Wastes;

° The Administrative Measures for Hazardous Waste Transfer
Manifests;

o Regulations on Environmental Protection in Guangdong
Province;

o Regulations on Prevention and Control of Environmental

Pollution by Solid Waste in Guangdong Province;
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Pillar 1:

(continued)

"Towards a Greener Future”

Environmental Management (continued)

° Measures for the Management of Hazardous Waste
Transfer in Shenzhen;

o Environmental Protection Regulations of Shenzhen Special
Economic Zone; and

o Measures for the Management of Municipal Domestic
Waste (Decree No. 157 of the Ministry of Construction of
the PRC).

No cases of material non-compliance with relevant laws, rules and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group relating to
air and greenhouse gas ("“GHG") emissions, discharges into water
and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste
were recorded during the Reporting Period.

To comply with laws and regulations at national/provincial/city
level, the Group also follows industry standards to monitor its
environmental performances.

For air emissions, the Group is committed to comply with:

. The Emission Standard of Air Pollutants for Boilers
(DB44/765-2019 and GB 13271-2014);

° The Emission Limits of Air Pollutants (DB44/27-2001) in
Guangdong Province;

. The Integrated Emission Standard for Air Pollutants (GB
16297-1996); and

o The Regional and Integrated Emission Standard of Air
Pollutants (DB37/2376-2019) in Shandong Province.

For the discharge of water pollutants, the Group is committed to
comply with:

. The Discharge Limits of Water Pollutants (DB44/26-2001) in
Guangdong Province;

o The National Integrated Wastewater Discharge Standard
(GB 8978-1996); and

o Wastewater Quality Standards for Discharge to Municipal
Sewers (GB/T 31962-2015).
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Pillar 1: “Towards a Greener Future”

(continued)
Environmental Management (continued)

For noise pollution, the Group controls the noise generated from
production activities in compliance with:

o The Emission Standard for Industrial Enterprises Noise at
Boundary (GB 12348-2008).

The Group continuously monitors its air emission, wastewater
discharge and noise level to control and manage the impact on
the surrounding environment and to create a healthy environment
for its workers. Regular maintenance of machines and equipment
is enforced to prevent excessive noise generation. The Group did
not receive any complaints from the surrounding communities
regarding air pollution, odour, noise, or night light pollution
during the Reporting Period.

Air Pollutant Emissions

All air-borne emissions are strictly monitored by the Ministry of
Environmental Protection of the PRC. All sampling results from our
plants were within permissible levels stated by various emission
standards, including the Determination of Toxic Substances in
Workplace Air — Chloride (GB Z/T160.37-2004). The specialty
fats plant also meets the Determination of Toxic Substances
in Workplace Air Part 73: Chloromethane, Dichloromethane,
Chloroform and Carbon Tetrachloride Standard (GBZ/T 300.73-
2017).

The Group has made relentless efforts on emission reduction
through various initiatives and policies. Our edible oil plants
operate a natural gas-fuelled boiler with high efficiency and low
NOx emissions. The flour mills are equipped with dust collector
systems for the collection and removal of airborne dust generated
during the flour production processes. When the air containing
flour dust passes through the filter, the flour dust is captured and
circulated back into the production processes. Then the filtered air
is released into the atmosphere via exhaust pipes mounted on the
building’s walls or roof. The filters and exhaust pipes are constantly
being monitored by the production team. In addition, a third-party
testing organisation is invited every year for testing. According
to the testing report, the actual concentration of particles (up
to 20mg/m?3) was found to be lower than the national standard
limit (120mg/m?). During the Reporting Period, edible oil plant in
Shekou started the retrofit of two boilers to further reduce the
NOx emissions limit from 150mg/m3 to 30mg/m?.
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Pillar 1: “Towards a Greener Future”

(continued)
Air Pollutant Emissions (continued)

To further reduce air emissions, our operational sites have invested
to upgrade all forklift trucks to electric-powered models, resulting
in lower fuel consumption and reduced emission. The Group has
an internal guideline on the purchase of hybrid electric vehicles
aiming at further reducing fuel consumption and GHG emission.
The staff canteen uses electricity rather than LPG to reduce air
pollution caused by catering service. Fume exhaust generated
from canteen operations in other plants is purified by electrostatic
precipitator before releasing into the atmosphere.

Air pollutant emissions of all business operations

XE—[BRERRRRK]

(#)
2RI RY B ()

RE-—DRIERBEN  BANEESHER
EARERMEREEZEFHRN  MmEET
HERERFER - AEERBEEB HITER
BAmiEsl EEE-—SIRIBEBERERRE
REPH - ETIRECAEIMIFRECAHER
(LPG) » UBIAD BRI FRERM M ERITR «
Htt THNRELEETEENERTAFER
ERFLESEHRERRS -

FrERBEEZERTRYHH

Unit 2022/23 2021/22 2020/21
B —E-__— /== - /= BB /——H
Air Pollutant Emissions
ZRTERYBER
Nitrogen oxides (“NOx") kg 1,667.51 1,745.75 82.07
b=tk ()] Fr
Sulphur oxides (“SOx") kg 2.02 2.11 0.64
mEy F=
Respiratory suspended particles kg 92.41 108.38 2.28
("RSP")
EILSPN 522 ks Fr
Note: Kzt -

- Emission factors were revised to make reference to Appendix 27 to
the Listing Rules and their referred documentation as set out by the
Stock Exchange, unless stated otherwise.

- Significant increase in air pollutant emissions due to the expansion
of reporting scope to include specialty fats plant in Jintan and
the logistic fleet in Hong Kong since 2021/22. They contributed
1,673.13 kg NOx, 1.56 kg SOx and 106.34 kg RSP in 2021/22 and
1,591.93 kg NOx, 1.46 kg SOx and 90.33 kg RSP in 2022/23.
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Pillar 1: “Towards a Greener Future”

(continued)
Greenhouse Gas Emission and Energy Efficiency

The Group has been consistently and persistently implementing
various initiatives and policies to increase energy efficiency and
reduce greenhouse gas emissions. The edible oil plants have
established the Energy Resource Management Procedure to
enhance the management of the power system, ensuring a reliable
supply of electricity for production, residential and office facilities.
Additionally, this procedure encourages a safe and rational use of
energy while considering the environmental impact. The specialty
fats plant has implemented the Energy Resource Management
Control Programme to enhance energy and resources
management and encourage conservation while reducing waste.
Electricity Management Regulation for the homecare product plant
is also in place to raise the awareness among employees regarding
their electricity consumption to ensure efficient utilisation.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s business operations
resulted in GHG emission of 34,379.75 tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalent (“tCO,e"), mainly carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous
oxide and hydro fluorocarbons. The overall intensity of the GHG
emissions for the Group was 0.05 tCO,e/tonne of production
volume. The major sources of greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions for
the Group came from production activities, canteen operations
and motor vehicles. The GHG reported arose from the following
activities and scopes:

o Direct (scope 1) GHG emissions from the combustion of
various fuels in stationary and mobile sources, and release
of refrigerants;

o Energy Indirect (scope 2) GHG emissions from purchased
electricity; and

° Other Indirect (scope 3) GHG emissions from business air
travel, freshwater and sewage processing, and paper waste
disposal at landfills.

X

(%)

[ BRI ERERARR ]

BE RPN R M

AEE-—HEEETBithEESERERBEE
DIRAERIERBREREREHER - RAH
MERBIERGEMNAZFRER  UWRAS
NEZEE  BREE  FERPBAZEHMH
BRSEM o ZREFEBZE2EEFERHEE
B RAREZEHRENTE - BHEBEREE
EREREBENRER  LWEABERRER
Bl UHBHNER  BRBEDRE - XE
EEARMAIREASEERRE  MESET
HASERE BREXFAER -

BERE  AEENXBEESIREREH
MER34379.75H _RtmEE (M _-F1t

REE]) > EER-RLH - Bk SER
MEREY - ARERNREREFHRERR
ERABWEE0CCHM _S{REE - NEEDN
BERBHFHNIERAHLERD RELE
%Duw@bﬁﬁ S 2REREIRANTE
B HE

° BEERRERREFZERABREUR
HLBENERERNEE(EE1)RE
REEHER

. BEELENWEEZER(HE2)RERE
297 G ¥4

. REREEBBEM - KKREKEE
DR EHIERE BN ERTEENEM
B (HIE3)REREHM

42 Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited | Annual Report 2023



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RiIE - HERERBRES

Pillar 1: “Towards a Greener Future”

(continued)

Greenhouse Gas Emission and Energy Efficiency
(continued)

To reduce scope 1 GHG emissions, refrigerants with lower Global
Warming Potential were chosen. R22 refrigerant has been replaced
by R32 refrigerant in our operational sites. The Group intends
to replace the three chillers in Lam Soon Building in Hong Kong,
which currently use R22 refrigerant, with chillers that can use R32
refrigerant in the coming years. For scope 2 GHG emissions, the
electricity consumed by the Group during the Reporting Period was
58,923,345 Kilowatt-hour ("kWh") against 66,819,191 kWh last
year. Overall energy intensity was 82.99 kWh/tonne of production
volume. Types of energy consumed included electricity, natural
gas, LPG, biofuel, petrol and diesel.

The Group continues exploring new energy-saving opportunities
and energy-efficient technologies for its premises and production
lines with a view to reducing energy consumption and GHG
emissions. Priority is always given to energy-efficient equipment
with Grade 1 energy label when selecting cooling system.
During the Reporting Period, the logistic fleet replaced two old
EURO4 trucks with EUROG6 trucks, which emit less NOx and other
pollutions into the environment. As of 30 June 2023, 25% of the
trucks in our logistics fleet are using EURO6 engines.

To support the use of clean energy, the Group took part in
the CLP Power Hong Kong Limited (“CLP") Renewable Energy
Feed-in Tariff Scheme by installing 542 pieces of 220-kW solar
photovoltaic (“PV”) module on the rooftop of Lam Soon Building
in Hong Kong. The solar PV system commenced operation in
November 2019 and supplied electricity of 924,723 kWh to
CLP’s power grid as of 30 June 2023. In Mainland China, a 0.7
MW solar PV system was installed in the flour plant in Jintan in
October 2022. 452,899 kWh of electricity has been generated
from November 2022 to June 2023, with 402,180 kWh for self-use
and 50,719 kWh for grid use. A total of 700,650 kWh renewable
energy was generated from solar PV system during the Reporting
Period. Flour mills in Shekou and Yixing plan to kick off the solar
power project in the coming years. These projects aim to provide
sufficient electricity supply to avoid operation disruption during
peak demand in electricity and also achieve carbon reduction
across operation processes.
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(continued) (&

Greenhouse Gas Emission and Energy Efficiency
(continued)

B = SR B8 BE R R R IR s (4T

The solar PV modules installed in the flour plant in Jintan

REBERH AR FH ARG RA M

The solar PV modules installed at the roof top of Lam Soon Building in Hong Kong

REBEIEAENEBRZEN KB RAN

The Group receives continuous support from the CLP Eco Building
Fund. Lighting revamp for warehouse was completed in October
2022 with 263 pieces of T8 Fluorescent Tube upgraded to 37
pieces of LED Linear High Bay Light, saving approximately 82.41%
electricity consumption per year. The refurbishment work is
expected to be scaled up across the business units in Hong Kong
and Mainland China.

AEAFEESTELEETFESNIEF -2
ERPERER-_ZE-__F+ATK  #263%
TSENXEBEARAIVIIDEETEE  8F
BEN8241%MNWENHEE - EFABHF IS
BAZEEBRPERENEEDE -

participating in the CLP’s Peak Demand Management Programme 2022.

Lam Soon Realty Limited was awarded an “Appreciation Certificate” by CLP for

FIEESRARESEIESEAEEEF 20228 T EHE [ BHHE ]

cLP@+E

§ g e

Appreciation
Certificate

Lam Soon Realty Ltd

Poak Demand
Menagement °;
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Pillar 1: “Towards a Greener Future”

(continued)

Greenhouse Gas Emission and Energy Efficiency

(continued)

Furthermore, the Group shortened the operation time of the
agitator of the sewage treatment station from 24 hours to 12
hours per day with the sewage treatment capacity remaining
unchanged, saving approximately 17,500 kWh of electricity
consumption per year. In addition, the Group plans to complete
the central air conditioner revamp in the perfusion workshop

(&

XE—[BRERRRRK]

BEREHER R RS ()

next year, which is estimated to save 8,900 kWh of electricity

consumption per year.

Greenhouse gas emissions and energy consumption data of

all business operations

i 2N

Bl

LN

==

BE ESKEBEITENEBRT  AEH
KRB KN ETIRERE K24/
BEE12/0E > 85
JIHFE o It REEGERFERERIEEER
PR B EE
BHHEE -

#17,500F NS

8,900 F FLBF Y

FrERBEEEZ BERBHMREEFEHE

Unit 2022/23 2021/22 2020/21
B B /=% —E-— /& —EBEC-E /&
Greenhouse Gas Emissions
BRERBHK
Scope 1 Direct emission' tCO,e 849.342 820.182 322.73
SR BB WogtHER
Natural gas tCO,e 438.40° 270.66 58.06
RAR M-S tHES
Liquefied Petroleum Gas (“LPG") tCO,e 1.194 0.25 0.17
Sl ey AN T ap: Bl WM-_EthE:
Diesel tCO,e 256.06 272.25 4.15
B W_EtmEE
Petrol tCO,e 101.24 102.51 116.15
b W-StHES
Biofuel tCO,e 2.67* 3.42 3.43
ERE WM-_EthE:
Refrigerants tCO,e 49.78° 171.09 140.77
VR B W_EmES
Scope 2 Energy indirect emission tCO.e 33,293.89° 40,374.707 38,141.58
B2 BRI EHER B-—EtBREE
Purchased electricity tCO,e 33,293.89¢ 40,374.707 38,141.58
BE W_EtxEE
Scope 3 Other indirect emission tCO.e 236.53° 203.30 287.24
EHE3 HiREHER WoEtHER
Paper waste disposed of at landfills  tCO,e 8.93 19.43 66.43
HHERENWER WS tREE
Freshwater processing tCO,e 85.40 81.52 71.70
KRR W-EtHREE
Sewage processing tCO,e 16.24 15.69 33.69
BEKERIE W_StRES
Business air travel® tCO,e 125.96° 86.66 115.51
B Z ke W-_StHES
Total GHG emission tCO,e 34,379.75 41,398.18 38,751.55
BRERBHRAE WogtHRER
GHG emission intensity tCO,e/tonne of 0.05 0.05 0.04
production volume
BERBHREE WSt HEE
BHES
BIE(EE)BRAR | —F-=F 5% 45
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X

HEREAHRES

[ BRI ERERARR ]

(continued) (4&)
Greenhouse Gas Emission and Energy Efficiency REREHEREEERE NS (E)
(continued)
Greenhouse gas emissions and energy consumption data of BB EE B mEB RS EE
all business operations (continued) (4&)
Unit 2022/23 2021/22 2020/21
By —E-—- /=& —E-8 /&
Energy Consumption
BEFUHFE
Electricity kWh 58,923,345.00" 66,819,191.40" 63,277,270.87
Wl TRE
Natural gas m? 215,072.31 134,272.97 28,706.40
AAR R E S
kWh 2,127,335.72 1,328,138.14 283,944.45
FRE
LPG kg 395.00* 84.00 56.00
bR =p::E=h TR
kWh 5,505.26* 1,170.74 780.49
FRE
Diesel L 97,147.61 103,293.42 1,584.38
55 -
kWh 971,310.74 1,032,758.36 15,841.10
TEE
Petrol L 38,061.35 38,546.16 43,666.95
by #
kWh 338,787.59 343,102.93 388,683.55
TRE
Biofuel'> 3 L 4,950.00* 6,340.00 6,360.00
LR 13 #
kWh 24,032.85* 30,781.47 30,878.58
TRE
Total energy consumption kWh 62,390,317.17 69,555,143.04 63,997,399.04
HEREEEE TR
Energy consumption intensity kWh/tonne of 82.99™ 77.79 72.66
production volume
BERHERE TEE SHEE
Notes: FtaF :
1. Emission factors (“EFs”) were made reference to Appendix 27 to 1. MREBRAN  FERARB(HRREE]D 2
the Listing Rules and their referred documentation as set out by the ZLHRAIMER27TRBRAHENSE MY -
Stock Exchange, unless stated otherwise.
2. Significant increase in Scope 1 GHG emissions was due to the 2. HRBEHERAZEER T _—F+—
expansion of reporting scope to include specialty fats plant in PHBREENSESEIEREANR -
Jintan which commenced its operation in November 2021 and the ==/ FEMANEBYRER - EE1UR
logistic fleet in Hong Kong in 2021/22. They contributed 475.18 EREHMBEZEEM - R = =F
tCO,e and 624.61 tCO,e Scope 1 GHG emission in 2021/22 and KRB /= FECHBIRERE
2022/23 respectively. The trial production in specialty fats plant in Mo Bl 547518 — ik E 2% 624.61
Jintan and increase in the number of operation days of the refining W _EmEE - RIBEHH > EHER
boiler in the edible oil plant in Shekou also accounted for the Mz RELEEUR RO R B MBEEEE
increase during the Reporting Period. ETREEMEEH T REREIH R ZIGM -
3. Significant increase in natural gas was due the trial production 3. HREERERERAXEERRORA
in specialty fats plant in Jintan and increase in the number of HRAERIBEETREEN S RAREE
operation days of the refining boiler in the edible oil plant in B e
Shekou.
46 Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited | Annual Report 2023
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"Towards a Greener Future”

(continued)

Greenhouse Gas Emission and Energy Efficiency
(continued)

Greenhouse gas emissions and energy consumption data of
all business operations (continued)

Notes: (continued)

4.

In response to a biofuel forbiddance enforced by the Qingzhou
Municipal Government, there was a significant increase in the
use of LPG as a substitute, resulting in the decrease in biofuel
consumption in the flour mill in Qingzhou.

Significant decrease in Scope 1 GHG emission from refrigerant
usage was due to the repair of mechanical damage and prevention
of refrigerant leakage in the edible oil plant in Shekou, the Lam
Soon Building in Hong Kong and the specialty fats plant in Jintan.

Significant decrease in Scope 2 GHG emission was due to the
decrease in production and application of solar PV modules in flour
mill in Jintan. EF of 0.39 kg CO,e/kWh was adopted for purchased
electricity in Hong Kong. EF of 0.5703 kg CO,e/kWh was adopted
for purchased electricity in Mainland China.

Significant increase in Scope 2 GHG emission in 2021/22 was due
to the expansion of reporting scope to include specialty fats plant
in Jintan and the logistic fleet in Hong Kong. They contributed
661.45 tCO,e and 944.75 tCO,e Scope 2 GHG emission in 2021/22
and 2022/23 respectively.

CO, emissions from the Group’s business air travels were reported
in accordance with the International Civil Aviation Organisation
("ICAO") Carbon Emission Calculator.

Significant increase in Scope 3 GHG emission was due to the
resumption of business travel after the COVID-19 pandemic.

Significant decrease in total energy consumption was due to the
decrease in production and application of solar PV modules.

Significant increase in energy consumption in 2021/22 was due to
the expansion of reporting scope to include the specialty fats plant
in Jintan and the logistic fleet in Hong Kong. They contributed
3,124,121.95 kWh and 3,521,540.11 kWh of energy consumption
in 2021/22 and 2022/23 respectively.

EF of biofuel used in canteen operations was assumed to be 0.54
tCO,e/tonne, by referring to the Methanol Institute Specifications.

Energy density of 9,500 BTU/pound was adopted for biofuel
calculation, by referring to the Methanol: Properties and Uses
published by SGS.

Significant increase in energy consumption intensity was due to the
decrease in production volume.
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"Towards a Greener Future”

(continued)

Greenhouse Gas Emission and Energy Efficiency
(continued)

Greenhouse gas emissions and energy consumption data of
all business operations (continued)

The Group has developed GHG emission and energy use targets

X

[ BRI ERERARR ]

(#&)
BERBHEHRE RN (&)
rEEBEECEERBHMREREEE

FEECALERE HEREREHERKER

of manufacturing plants' to monitor the performance on GHG FRERE  UERBEEREBHEMKBEEREN
emission and energy consumption reductions: x=I
GHG Emission and Energy Use Targets
BEREBHERREREABE
Target Base Year Performance in
Base Year Year Target Detail Performance 2022/23
—E—-—
HEEFE BEEEE BB EEFERR ZEFRE
2018/19 2025 To reduce electricity intensity by 7% 70.18 kWh/tonnes  74.04 kWh/tonnes
of production of production
volume volume?
“E-N-hE ZE-HF HAERERKIY% BWES BHES
70.18F FLBF 74.04F LB
2018/19 2025 To reduce electricity-led carbon intensity 0.04 tCO,e/tonnes 0.04 tCO,e/tonnes
(Scope 2) by 8% of production of production
volume volume
ZE-N-NWE ZESHEF AEELANIRE (8B2)FES% BWEE0.04M  SWHER0.040
—gtRES —EtmEE
Notes: BEt -

48

Manufacturing plants contributed 61,264,796.87 kWh,
63,865,715.40 kWh, and 55,458,328.00 kWh of electricity
consumption in 2020/21, 2021/22 and 2022/23 respectively.

Manufacturing plants contributed 37,294.26 tCO,e, 38,902.43
tCO,e, and 31,578.90 tCO,e Scope 2 GHG emission in 2020/21,
2021/22 and 2022/23 respectively.

The reason for the increase in intensity was due to the decrease
in production volume for the Reporting Period. The deepened
automatic level, installation of air conditioners in response to the
regulation, and electricity consumption that was independent of
production volume such as plant office electricity consumption and
lightning also accounted for the increase.

Manufacturing plants include the five flour mills in Shekou (Shenzhen),
Yixing, Jintan, Qionglai and Qingzhou in the PRC, the edible oil plant in
Shekou, Shenzhen in the PRC and Hong Kong and the homecare product
plant in Guangzhou in the PRC.

1.

S EBEZENEER=Z=-2 =

— B/ =F :g::/:_i ,E'JIJ
£61,264,796.87 T FLB ~ 63,865,715.40F
R 55,458,328.00 F FL b

CTERECEB2RERBHMRN _Z =
B/ -—F B /-_f .-%
=55 51R37,294. 26 = AL HE
B 38,902 43 —FLHEEK31,578.90
W_EtmEE -

BEENCREASARENRBES TR - 18
RORETBERCABKFT AESKE
MEZRZ=H UARBEEHRLERERRAS
HESEBENAEE -

SEBEEEVRFEEACRI)  ER® - £18 -
IR SN EEERH - AR PERIEORE
BHRAEB RN T ERERMNNREEERRME
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Pillar 1: “Towards a Greener Future”

(continued)
Water Management

The Group consumes water for its production and domestic
activities. Water consumed by its Hong Kong operations was
supplied by Hong Kong’s Water Supplies Department, whilst water
consumed by its Mainland China operations was sourced from
the municipal water supply system in their respective locations.
There was no issue identified in sourcing water that was fit for
purpose. The plants have water tanks in place to store water for
emergency use. During the Reporting Period, the Group consumed
196,466 m? of freshwater, with a water intensity of 0.26
m3/tonne of production volume. All discharges from production
and domestic activities are pre-treated on-site through regularly
maintained grease traps and septic tanks. On-site wastewater
treatment facilities are installed in some of our operational sites
for advanced sewage treatments?. 40% of the wastewater in
homecare production plant is treated and reused for flushing,
cleaning and landscaping, while the majority of the pre-treated
wastewater enters the sewage collection system and discharges to
a nearby municipal sewage pipe network system.

The treated effluent discharged by our operational sites fulfilled
the requirements of permitted discharge limits set by the Discharge
Limits of Water Pollutants (DB44/26-2001). The homecare
product plant monitors chemical oxygen demand (“COD") in real
time. During the Reporting Period, we have engaged third-party
testing organisation to measure COD, the results was 9mg/L,
which was lower than the discharge limit of 100 mg/L, meeting
the first-class discharge standard of Guangzhou, the PRC. The
homecare product plant obtained the "Urban Sewage Discharge
into Drainage Network Permit" in October 2022; therefore, the
Group's wastewater discharge allowance has been upgraded to
Class 3 standard, in which the COD limit is 500 mg/L, and the
actual emission was 30 mg/L. The specialty fats plant adheres to
the guidelines set forth in the Wastewater Quality Standards for
Discharge to Municipal Sewers (CJ343-2010), as well as other
relevant national industrial pollutant discharge standards and
urban domestic sewage treatment system acceptance standards.
The edible oil plant in Shekou performs regular wastewater testing
and the sampling results of COD, pH value, total suspended solids,
and oil and grease were all within the relevant permissible levels
during the Reporting Period.

The Group persistently reduces water loss by maintaining and
upgrading its water supply pipeline system, reducing water
consumption through upgrading water-saving devices and reusing
wastewater whenever possible. Some water-saving initiatives
include:

(i) Establishing regulations on water management to regulate
water consumption practices of employees, such as the
Water Management Regulations to ensure the effective
protection and sustainable utilisation of water resources
through standardising employees' practices regarding
water usage;

2 Since the flour mills did not generate industrial wastewater, and
the wastewater generated by the edible oil plant in Hong Kong
was minimal, there were no on-site wastewater treatment facilities
provided in these plants.
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"Towards a Greener Future”

(continued)

Water Management (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)
(vii)

Using cooling water recirculation system for cooling towers;
Installing automatic faucets;

Re-using purified reverse osmosis (“RO") water for toilet
flushing and greening of production areas;

Installing flow controller for taps used in toilets and
canteen;

Recycling steam condensate for oil heating; and

Posting promotional materials and reminders to encourage
water conservation practices.

Our manufacturing plant has formulated Regulations on
Management of Water Usage to regulate rational use of water
and promote the conservation of water resources. In addition,
the Administration Department of the Group has expedited the

X
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(vi)
(vii)
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replacement of old water dispensers to reduce the consumption BIEEKKEE  BAEKEEERLDEE6%(ZE
of bottled water. During the Reporting Period, an additional set of —— /" :51%) e
filters water dispenser was installed, with a 66% (2021/22: 51%)
consumption decrease in total.
Water consumption of all business operations FrEXRBEEE T FHKAKE
Unit 2022/23 2021/22 2020/21
B bbbt | — T — /- BB /——
Water Consumption
Ake
Absolute water consumption m3 196,466.00 190,290.00 171,865.00
BERAKE MK
Water consumption intensity m3/tonne of 0.26 0.21 0.20
production volume
AKEE FK BHES
Note: Hiat -
= Significant increase in absolute water consumption was due to - HRBEHEN-_Z=—— ——FEAZEE

50

the expansion of reporting scope to include specialty fats plant in
Jintan in 2021/22. It contributed 8,153 m? and 15,966 m? water
consumption in 2021/22 and 2022/23 respectively. The increase
during the Reporting Period was also due to water pipe leakage.
The defective water pipes had been repaired.

FeBRNEEBRER BYHAKERZY
MeRZB=Z— /ZFR-FB-= /==
Fo 2 BKEAES 153 A KKk 15,9663
TR o RIREEIE > ARKESRUBAKX
B - BBRNKETHIEE -
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Pillar 1:

(continued)

"Towards a Greener Future”

Water Management (continued)

To monitor our progress in water saving, we have set a target to
reduce water intensity:

XE—[BRERRRRK]

(#)

AKEE (&)

RERFRMNEHKTHEHNER  RMASKRER
B EAKRE -

Water Intensity Reduction Target

RKEBEREER R

Target Base Year Performance in
Base Year Year Target Detail Performance 2022/23
—E—=
HEEFE BEEEE BT HEFERR “=ZF2RR
2018/19 2025 To reduce water intensity based on 0.17 m3/tonnes 0.23 m3/tonnes
production volume of our manufacturing of production of production
plants® by 3% volume volume
it AV —E-hF *E?FEFF’EE’JF; BEEREMNAKE SHEES BWES
— & EFE1K3% 0.173 53K 0.233 5K

Note: B -

- Manufacturing plants contributed 164,917.00 m?, 175,972.00 m?, - C-EFFI%ZFH?JKEEA— T =— =
and 173,680.00 m?® water consumption in 2020/21, 2021/22 and B/ F B /ZZF35B
2022/23 respectively. 164,917.003Z 75 3K ~ 175,972.00 3L 5 K &

173,680.003 /53K o

Waste Management BEYIE R

The Group has established multiple policies to facilitate waste ZK%EETL%EBZ%E?E@W%E ° ﬁﬂﬂ’ﬂ

management. Our edible oil plant has implemented the Waste ERAMCEREZVERRF  UBRREES

Management Procedure to ensure proper waste control, disposal, =H - REEYURBEEAEYERNGTER

and mitigate pollution and personal hazards associated with ABRRE HHT&*E#EF_B?%'«E fﬁﬁﬂuufEL

waste, while the flour mills and the homecare product plant have VREEYEFIETE UESERTE O BDE

established the Waste Control Program to maintain ecological
balance, reduce waste pollution to the surrounding environment,
and effectively manage the disposal of various waste materials
generated by the Company. Waste Management Control Program
has been implemented in the specialty fats plant to assist proper
waste management and mitigate pollution to the surrounding
ecological environment.

The Group generated an approximate total of 38,535 kg of
hazardous waste with an intensity of 0.05 kg/tonne of production
volume and 955,085 kg of non-hazardous waste with an intensity
of 1.27 kg/tonne of production volume during the Reporting
Period. Hazardous wastes generated include waste with organic
solvent, waste with mineral oil, waste with dye and coating,
selenium and mercury-containing wastes and other wastes (i.e.
waste containers, capacitors and oil wipes). Non-hazardous wastes
generated comprised of commercial waste, paper, plastic, scrap
metal, sludge and other wastes. Other wastes included sampling
and liquid wastes from manufacturing plants.

The Group is committed to reducing waste generated in our
manufacturing plants and offices and ensuring that both
hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are well-managed.

3 The water consumption of the Hong Kong edible oil plant and
Hong Kong office is recorded in one master water meter as they
locate in the same building.
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Pillar 1: “Towards a Greener Future”

(continued)
Waste Management (continued)

For hazardous wastes, we have appointed licensed operators/
applied industry standard to collect and handle hazardous wastes
prior to disposal. For non-hazardous wastes, centralised waste
collection, storage and transfer facilities for on-site solid wastes
are available in accordance with national standards to maximise
recycling rates. Non-hazardous wastes are collected by registered
waste collectors for proper disposal. Commercial wastes are
transferred to designated collection points; other recyclables,
including scrap metals and waste paper, are collected and
repurposed by qualified recyclers.

To prevent potential harm to human health through contamination
of soil, air and water resources, the Group is committed to
implementing proper and immediate treatment of hazardous
wastes and wastes that require strict control by engaging qualified
companies for collection and further handling.

Additionally, the Group has adopted electronic communication
and e-platform for circulation of papers of board/board committee
and other meetings to promote paperless operation. Where
printing is necessary, double-sided and black-and-white printing
is recommended. The use of smart-print application also saves
paper and ink. Waste recycling bins are installed in the offices to
encourage paper recycling. During the Reporting Period, Waste
Separation Bins was placed at lobby of Lam Soon Building for
collection of paper, plastic bottles and metals. Over 84.3% of the
non-hazardous wastes were recycled during the Reporting Period,
with 100% recycling rates achieved for scrap metal, sludge, waste
plastic, waste paper, and food waste.

Our manufacturing plant has established the following initiatives
to reduce waste generation:

o Recycles the empty chemical containers by the raw material
suppliers;
o Establishes the “Waste Management Procedure” and

sets up various recycling stations, to facilitate better
classification of wastes for storage and disposal;

. Generates economic benefits from non-hazardous wastes,
by selling them to recognised recycling companies; and

o Turns waste into energy through food waste collection.

XE—[BRERRRRK]
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Pillar 1: “Towards a Greener Future” & — ([BROEBR&FFRXEK ]

(continued) (#&)
Waste Management (continued) BEYIE R (1)
Waste production of all business operations HEXBEEZEYEE

Unit 2022/23 2021/22 2020/21
By = VS| —®-— /——f —B-%/-—%

Hazardous Waste Produced

EERERRY

Other waste listed on the kg 33,556.70 33,683.69 25,748.95
Directory of National
Hazardous Wastes
ZH(EREREY AN Fx
HAhEEEY)

Pesticide wastes (from treatment kg 2,129.00" - -
within the factory premises)

REBEZY(REIHSHAN T

BIE)
Wastes with organic solvent kg 1,490.60? 820.00 721.88
EERABINERED T
Wastes with mineral oil kg 1,039.90 1,601.20 578.99
BRYANEREY Fr
Mercury-containing wastes (from kg 140.00 130.60 245.40

waste lighting products)
BREEV(RBEZRBER) TR

Wastes with dye and coating kg 119.00 142.00 453.03
BRMRERNEEY T
Acid waste kg 5.00 - -
R REZEY) T
Selenium-containing waste kg 54.88 46.20 79.15
BIREEEY T
Total hazardous wastes kg 38,535.08 36,423.69 27,827.40
produced
EXEEREYEE T
Hazardous wastes intensity kg/tonne of 0.05 0.04 0.03
production
volume
BERENBE T/ SHEE
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Pillar 1: “Towards a Greener Future”

(continued)

RE  #HERERBRES

Waste Management (continued)

Waste production of all business operations (continued)

42

(48

BEYEE (&)

FrE#BEEEYEL ()

Unit
B
Non-hazardous Waste
Produced
EXEEERY
Commercial waste kg
[GES:E37 Fr
Scrap metal kg
BEEE T
Sludge kg
Ep T
Waste plastic kg
BEZE AR T
Waste paper kg
BE4 Fr
Food waste kg
5323 T
Total non-hazardous wastes kg
produced
EXEBEREYEE =
Non-hazardous wastes kg/tonne of
intensity production
volume
BERZEYRE Tr SHEER

==

2022/23
-/ =—=%

242,132.31

122,196.00

128,100.00

239,446.93

179,856.683

43,353.33°

955,085.25

1.27¢

XE—[BRERRRRK]

2021/22 2020/21
—E-—- = —ZBZ® ——F
391,742.86 447,725.08
111,885.00 165,217.00
127,530.00 94,937.00
302,721.00 283,657.00
97,666.00 99,280.57
1,031,544.86 1,090,816.65
1.15 1.24
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Pillar 1:

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - #HERERHRES

"Towards a Greener Future”

(continued)

Waste Management (continued)

Waste production of all business operations (continued)

Notes:

1.

According to advice of Shenzhen Ecological Environment Bureau

I LEREIRER), flour mills plant in Shekou have re-organised
the type of hazardous waste of one hazardous waste from “other
waste” to “pesticide wastes”.

Wastes with organic solvent generated by specialty fats plant
in Jintan from July 2021 to February 2023 were collected by
registered waste collectors for proper disposal in February 2023.

During the COVID-19 pandemic, restriction of road transport
of raw materials imposed by Mainland China from March 2022
to December 2022 had led to use of waterway transportation
which required the use of paper carton boxes, instead of reusable
turnover boxes, causing significant increase in waste paper.
Nevertheless, the paper carton boxes were recycled during the
Reporting Period.

Significant increase in non-hazardous wastes intensity was due to
the decrease in production volume.

Newly disclosed in 2022/23. Food waste was categorised as
commercial waste in 2020/21 and 2021/22.

The Group has developed waste targets to monitor the
performance on waste reduction:

X

_
B

[ BRI ERERRR ]

EEYIE T ()

PrERBEEEZEYEL ()

Hiat

1.

BRI T ERRBERNESR - ROEHK
B -—BEERERWHER M [ HtEREY
BN BB REREREY] -

SEBEAERR-_ZE-_—FLtAE_F
CZEAEANEERBBNERYN =
Fo=-F-_AHAMEYRERRE - R
RIFLBERRE -

FACOVID-19% A FERR =T ==
F=ZRAZE-Z__F+_ARHEMPER
ER > FUBRPEEEAKKER  TEFE
ARFEmMIETEREFANAER  SHER
BARIEM - AT - HRECHRBEHPE U -

BEEBERYBEREZERNRANERTE -

R-BZZ /Z=ZEHKE -R=-F=
B/ Z-ERZBE--Z2F  HHEE
BREEERY -

AEECHERMERUERRDERYHR

o

Waste Reduction Targets

BEYRLSBEE
Target Base Year Performance in
Base Year Year Target Detail Performance 2022/23
-2/
EEFE BEFEE BEFE EXEFERR —=FZRR
2018/19 2025 For non-hazardous wastes, to achieve 100% 68.60% 84.01%
diversion rate of all business operations*
=N/ “ECRF HNEZERY BRABEBREZN
—hE 100% 2 M=
2018/19 2025 For hazardous wastes, maintaining 100% 100% 100%
recycling rate for hazardous wastes of
manufacturing plants
—=2-N/ ZECRF HREEERERY RELERENEEER
—h& #1100 % Y [E] Uy =
4 Business operations include the five flour mills in Shekou 4 EBELEARBRVRPEEDCRY) HE
(Shenzhen), Yixing, Jintan, Qionglai and Qingzhou in the PRC, the 218 PERSMNOERELRE  CADE
edible oil plant in Shekou, Shenzhen in the PRC and Hong Kong, FIEORBBNERAME - YRPEEM
the homecare product plant in Guangzhou in the PRC, the office in WREEEARM - VRPEEONREE
Shekou in the PRC, and the headquarter office in Hong Kong. DRNREBNEIBRER
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Pillar 1: “Towards a Greener Future”

(continued)
Packaging Materials

Packaging materials consumed by the Group were mainly
recyclable materials including plastic, cotton bags and paper.
Packaging materials were sourced from external suppliers, with
constant inspection on quality, particularly on their safety and
hygiene performances. During the Reporting Period, a total of
14,977 tonnes of packaging materials have been consumed for
protection of finished products, representing a consumption
intensity of 0.02 tonne/tonne of production volume.

The Group has been proactively exploring ways to reduce the use
of packaging materials and promoting products with replaceable
packaging to reduce the consumption of plastic pumps. The
following practices were implemented by our manufacturing
plants:

o Reduce the consumption of packaging materials by bulk
delivery and light packaging;

o Evaluate packaging suppliers annually for compliance
assurance;

o Reduce the use of non-recyclable resources for packaging;

o Apply various re-using and recycling methods to non-food

packaging materials, such as re-using as turnover box, or
recycling by recognised handlers;

o Adopt recyclable labelling materials, such as replacing
polyvinyl chloride (“PVC") based labelling materials with
those made of polyethylene terephthalate (“PET");

o Package products with crates which can be reused; and
o Require packaging material suppliers to reduce packaging
weight.

XE—[BRERRRRK]

(#)
BEMH

AEEBEENGEMBEEETEWRHME - &
R mRRER - BEMBIIEB NI
B BEAKEEHEREE  BRREER
ERELEFEMNERR - RI|EHE > RMABE
MIRELHAE 14,977 % Mﬂ R HFER
EABWEES0.020 -

AEE-HBESRAERDEREEN R
KRETERBENERUBDERERNR - &
MHEERE BRI T HEiE

. BRAMIAREGLERIE
HFE

R

. BEFLEEHEHURRS AL

. HOERTAERERRERE

. HARRBEMBRABZEEEFNAR
BREERREE ﬁJZM’F%HE%ﬁE?ﬁEFﬁ
HHAAREASETEWFA ;

. RATEBREN L Gl R
FRC B (PENREUBREZH (PVO)
EENEEMH

. RAUERERNRFERRER ' R

. ERVEMBHERRECLES
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Pillar 1: “Towards a Greener Future” & — ([BROEBR&FFRXEK ]

(continued) (#&)

Packaging Materials (continued) BHEMB(E)

Packaging material consumption of all business operations FrE KL IE T RN FE

Unit 2022/23 2021/22 2020/21
B Sl S | — B — = —ZB-E/——F

Packaging Material Consumption
BEMBERE
Plastic tonnes 8,311.48 9,313.22 8,197.41
pizp 3! L
Paper tonnes 5,499.72 6,750.91 6,413.11
#oR 7
Metal tonnes 694.38 866.84 1,110.98
2B A
Cotton tonnes 441.36 506.14 553.89
iFin i
Fibre and cotton tonnes 19.86 24.23 23.48
WERBR A
Glass bottle tonnes 9.62" - -
I i
Aluminium film tonnes 0.66" - -
$RRE i

Note: Kzt :

1. Edible oil plant in Shekou has re-organised the type of packaging 1. WORABERYE T “=F8&i

material for 2022/23. MIEET T B -
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R - HERERBRES

Pillar 1: “Towards a Greener Future”

(continued)
Climate Change

Climate change is a significant threat to the sustainability of
businesses and communities worldwide. Therefore, the Group
recognises the importance of identifying and analysing climate-
related risks to ensure its long-term sustainability. To achieve this,
the Group has appointed a third-party consultant to perform a
climate risk scenario analysis for our major operational sites during
the Reporting Period with reference to the recommendations of
the Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD).

The scenario analysis provides descriptive information on the
potential risks arising from climate change that the Group could
face in the short, medium, and long term. This information
is important in helping business units to identify potential
vulnerabilities and develop appropriate risk management
strategies. Specifically, the scenario analysis evaluated the
"business as usual" scenario, where no further action is taken
beyond current policies. In this scenario, emissions continue to rise
throughout the 215t century, and coal and other non-renewable
energy sources continue to dominate, while low-emission
technologies remain inadequate.

We assessed the severity and likelihood of the climate-related risks
to our operations and stress-tested our business against plausible
future states. By doing so, the Group aims to identify potential
risks at an early stage and to take action to mitigate them, which is
crucial for maintaining long-term sustainability development. The
Group recognises that climate change is a complex and evolving
issue, and it is committed to remaining vigilant and proactive in
identifying and managing climate-related risks.

We conducted a climate risk identification exercise in 2022 to
identify, analyse and evaluate the potential physical and transition
risks related to climate change.

For physical risk, extreme weather events including extreme wind
or cyclone, and shifts on climate including rising water stress
may damage equipment, buildings and assets, thus interrupting
the production of our factories. Transition risk including policy,
technology and market risks will also have a significant effect to
the group’s operation and long-term development.

XE—[BRERRRRK]
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Pillar 1: “Towards a Greener Future” & — ([BROEBR&FFRXEK ]

(continued)

Climate Change (continued)

Physical Risk
Y22 B B

(#)
RIRB{L (&)
Description
gt

Extreme wind/Cyclone

S8, HE

Flooding

//\Zk

Water Stress

oK

Transition Risk

BIEE R

Some of our manufacturing plants are located in coastal areas, natural disasters may
cause damage to the equipment, buildings and assets.

EMNETEEREUMNEETLE  BRKXETERSHRE BFREEEREE -

Heavy precipitation, storm surge or riverine overflow may bring acute flooding risks,
resulting in the damage of the plant-based ingredients.

EiEK  BEFBSUTRER S RBEN S KER  BFEYRIMRZE -

Although most of the properties of the Group are located near the coastal areas
with plenty water resource, access to water fit for purpose may not be guaranteed
due to the increasing demand for agriculture and urban use, human consumption
and ecosystems, which poses a challenge for water stress.

BEAEEABIVERELEHE  KEREE  BRARRERKTAK - AR
Eﬁ&iﬁ ERBN T RTENEM - ATREEERFBBEESEAR - B BKE D H R

Description

i

Policy and legal

HERN AR

Technology

Bl

Market

)

Since the Chinese and HKSAR Government have set carbon neutrality target, more
aggressive regulations, policies and initiatives will be implemented to limit the
energy consumption and GHG emission to achieve the target.
HATEREBBERNEHERTMER  BEREENNER  BIRKRERE
LIRHEREERBERBHMABRER -

Phase out of old equipment and lighting system upgrade for new technology would
increase the investment cost and potentially decrease the revenue due to temporary
shutdown in production to upgrade equipment.
FABEREBRBIFRMARBBPRGGIBEMIRERA » XA REEARREMSIHE
HTFFﬁ'ﬁ,J'K’J‘Llﬁl)\ °

Change in consumer preferences and behaviour also leads to market risk as
customers might be sensitive to the procurement and production processes of food
manufacturing.

HEBERERTANSCTIEEFH SRR RRAHEETEHRRRENERE
REEBERABR -

To lessen the impact of potential climate-related risks on our BRALEZEERGZHBREBEHRMERNSLE
business, we have established our Climate Change Policy. The R4 ERFESCEEER - EZH%%L%WE&
policy outlines our commitment to mitigate the negative impacts IRBERFEELCHERMEENEESE

of climate change on our operations and increase our resilience BBEMR HE - EEERREESERMAER 1|§
to climate change via mitigation, adaptation, monitoring and BILHIKERE D - Zkﬁlﬂ’]j(ill D E i B 15
reporting. The ISO 14001 Environmental Management System BRAISO 14001 RIZEEERBR - ZBREVR
has been adopted across most of the Group’s operation sites. The PN EREIR iﬁgﬁﬁﬂjﬁxﬁ&;@ha’]ﬁ&%%
system with its effective and timely emergency mechanism is in H o WEEAERAKEMNEFERE R Z
place in case of severe environmental incidents. It also keeps track R

of the Group’s energy efficiency and emission reduction targets.

To enhance our emergency response capability on extreme climate AESEHBIERIZEESENESEHD > RS

event, we have formulated a Flood Prevention Contingency Plan. HEBNESTAR - ZFERPEFEFT B E MK
The Plan clarified the role and responsibility of each personnel BReEEAENES ﬁﬂbfj([iﬁg,md\awﬁ“
when flooding is expected. It helps minimise the casualties of our EERNAEBTRAQTZLEERK °

people and economic loss of the Company due to natural disaster.
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Pillar 1: “Towards a Greener Future”

(continued)

Climate Change (continued)

Since 2013, the Group has appointed qualified third-party
institutions to verify its greenhouse gas (“GHG") emission, as part
of the commitment to the government’s Emission Trading Scheme.
In particular, the flour mill in Shekou is audited annually to ensure
that their GHG emission quantification and reporting meet the
requirements set out in the Specification with Guidance for
Quantification and Reporting of the Organisation’s GHG Emissions
(SZDB/Z 69-2018).

Electricity consumption, which accounted for over 96% of
the Group’s total GHG emission, remains the largest source
of GHG emissions for the Group during the Reporting Period.
To demonstrate its determination to lower the overall energy
consumption, the Group has phased out old equipment, upgraded
lighting system and participated in the CLP clean energy initiative
to optimise energy efficiency, which aims to reduce electricity
consumption and align with the practices in regions where it
operates.

Pillar 2: “Empowering our People”

xE—[BRERRRRK]

(&
RIRB L ()

BEZZ—=Ff  AEBCZEBEERE=
HEZESRERE(BEERE ) FERUIERK
R B8 - LHR  WOHEHHEF
ESERUBRREREREHERNELERE
FE(EBNBEEREBHERELCANRERA RIS
) (SZDB/Z 69-2018) °

ENHERELAEBBRERBATNENIC%
Bt MRASEERSHBREANBEERE
BERUR - BRTEEARERNRL - AEH
CAAERE  ARBARKLSNTHEE
LR MR BFRERTE - EERDENHE
o WRAKEMTHENERMERS -2 -

= [HEFRMHNET ]

Key Achievements = E 5

— — S m——

ZRBEMBRARGLURDED A RIERR

BETSFBROPLAZEMUBRRESEZR -

management skills, and personal qualities.

BAEE -

development.

RESHREHZEEIGE EF2BTFERME -

FBEREREFTEN S ERIIEZIFI -

BE=FHEFZTREIRTEN

Deployed various explosion protection systems to minimise explosion hazard in the flour mills.
Purchased formaldehyde-free office furniture to ensure employee safety.

Updated the Lam Soon Learning Development Management Guidelines for establishing a well-
developed training and development system to develop our employees’ professional skills,

EN(RIEEBRREEERA)  BURENRIRERRER  HEETHNEXREE  FERKEE

Provided various training schemes, an e-learning platform and subsidies for employee

All employees were trained in various areas according to their needs.

Maintained zero employee fatality in the past three years.
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Pillar 2: “"Empowering our People” TR [HEFRAEANET ]

(continued) (#)
People Management ABERE

The Group had a total of 1,634 employees as of 30 June 2023, R-ZBZ=ZFEXA=+H xEEHE1,634
all of whom were full-time employees. The total workforce ZIEE  AZTEES - B4R - FEARNKR
categorised by gender, age group and geographical region is WEEDHNS B HEAESIRAT :

shown below:

Total Workforce (%) by Gender Total Workforce (%) by Age Group
EHRBI DS HEE (%) BERARIBDNEE HEE (%)
56 and above 18-25
Sem & E 18-255%
4.40% 2.45%

Female
M 46-55
46-555%

42.47 %

24.30%

36-45
36-455%
45.10%

Total Workforce (%) by Geographical Region
B EE D HEE HEE (%)

Hong Kong
&=i8
9.98%

Mainland China
E1PN 5
89.29%
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Pillar 2: “Empowering our People”

(continued)
People Management (continued)

We aim to create a diverse, welcoming culture and a safe working
environment in which our people are engaged, nurtured and
empowered to realise their full potential.

The Group regards human resources (“HR") as its most valuable
asset. With a mission to create values for its employees, the
Group offers attractive career prospects, a wide variety of learning
opportunities and a safe working environment.

The Group is, in all material respects, in compliance with all
applicable laws of Hong Kong and the PRC regarding labour rights
and employment, included but not limited to:

° Employment Ordinance of the Laws of Hong Kong;

o Minimum Wage Ordinance of the Laws of Hong Kong;

o Employees’ Compensation Ordinance of the Laws of Hong
Kong;

o Labour Law of the PRC;

. Labour Contract Law of the PRC; and

o Social Insurance Law of the PRC.

The Code of Conduct provides our employees with clear
requirements on their conduct at work. It defines the ethical
principles and the behaviours expected to be observed by our
employees and explains how employees are expected to apply the
Group's values and comply with the laws and regulations that
affect its operations.

No material non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare had
been identified during the Reporting Period.

o - Jai

(#&)

[FREEFRMPET ]

ABEHE(#E)

EMNWERREE—BZn ABHXEUR
—1EI§%E’JI1’FIE% ERMHE TREMES
28 EEREENT D BREHER -

REERADER(TANERDBERESRN
BE - AKEURESAEEERMED - 24
ARSI DHBENS
B TERE -

BETHNEBRREURE

AEBERBERTHETHAEBERTEA
BE TRANRERZERERE  SEETRR :
. BRE D (ERIRG)

. BRZOITFH(RETERE)D

. BREGITFN(REBERAG)

. (REARANMBSEE)

. (PEARZMBELBHERZE) &

. (REARAMBEMEREE)
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2t RE\RUREMEHERER A
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Pillar 2: “Empowering our People”

(continued)
Fair Labour Practices and Equal Opportunities

The HR Department continues to implement comprehensive
checking system during the recruitment process to comply with all
the applicable laws regarding employment and labour standards,
such as the Employment Ordinance of the Laws of Hong Kong
and Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour of the
PRC. Staff Handbook and Children Regulations are in place to
outline the standards and approaches on labour practices and child
labour.

The Group will take appropriate disciplinary action against
anyone who is in breach of any applicable laws, regulations, and
ordinance. We have complied with relevant laws and regulations in
relation to the prevention of use of child and forced labour during
the Reporting Period.

Equal opportunities are given to employees in respect of
recruitment, training and development, job advancement, and
compensation and benefits. Employees are not discriminated
against or deprived of such opportunities on the basis of gender,
ethnic background, religion, colour, sexual orientation, age,
marital status, family status, retirement, disability, pregnancy or
any other discrimination prohibited by applicable laws of Hong
Kong and the PRC.

The Group has a standardised appraisal system to evaluate
employees’ performances, assess their capabilities and determine
whether their abilities are in line with the Group’s business
development. It also provides a basis for promotion, salary
increment and a communication platform for employees and
management to set mutually agreed and measurable performance
standards, as well as career development opportunities.

Employee Wellbeing, Health and Safety

The safety and wellbeing of employees is a core concern of the
Group. As such, the Group takes a strict approach to implement
measure to foster compliance with applicable laws and regulations
in relation to occupational health and safety ("OHS"), including
but not limited to the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and
Control of Occupational Diseases, the Hong Kong Occupational
Safety and Health Ordinance (Chapter 509 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), and Hong Kong Employees’ Compensation Ordinance
(Chapter 282 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The Group also has OHS
systems and policies in place to manage occupational health and
safety issues across the entire business operations.
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Pillar 2: “Empowering our People”

(continued)
Employee Wellbeing, Health and Safety (continued)

Apart from mandatory health check-up before employment,
annual or biennial check-ups are also offered to employees based
on their employment categories and nature. Frontline workers
in the PRC undergo end of term check-ups. Employees exposed
to high occupational health risks are offered occupational health
checks in accordance with the statutory requirements. Appropriate
personal protective equipment (“PPE”) is provided to employees
based on their duties performed. Offices and canteens are assessed
by qualified institutions to ensure that they meet applicable
national standards regarding indoor environmental pollution
control. We also provide periodic training on health and safety for
our employees to ensure employees work in a safe environment.

Noise reduction devices have been installed in the equipment such
as exhaust fans, air compressors and grinders in accordance with
the requirements of the Environmental Impact Assessment Report
conducted by the Group’s appointed agencies. Acoustic meters
have been installed in all working areas to further improve the
monitoring processes.

The risk of developing respiratory diseases is high for employees
working inside the flour mills, especially if they are not properly
protected with adequate PPE. To reduce workers’ exposure to
flour dust, effective dust collection devices are installed at all flour
mills to ensure that the airborne dust concentration does not
exceed regulatory exposure standards. Annual assessments are
conducted on the occupational environmental factors. To minimise
explosion hazard, the flour mills have deployed various explosion
protection systems (e.g., explosion-proof lighting system, flameless
vent installations on dust collectors). Our plants have obtained
relevant explosion-proof certifications, ISO 9001, ISO 14001,
[ISO 22000, HACCP and FSSC 22000 certification. Meanwhile
we have maintained compliance with the following regulatory
requirements, which include:

o Safety Regulations for Dust Explosion Prevention and
Protection (GB15577-2018);

o Safety Regulations for the Protection of Dust Explosion for
Grain Processing (GB17440-2008);

° Guide for Pressure Venting of Dust Explosions (GBT15605-
2008); and
o Safety Specifications for Dedusting System Used in Dust

Explosion Hazardous Area (AQ4273-2016).
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Pillar 2: “Empowering our People”

(continued)
Employee Wellbeing, Health and Safety (continued)

When purchasing office furniture, the Group selects
formaldehyde-free products and gives preference to wood
products from FSC-certified forests to ensure that its employees
work in a safe environment.

The health and safety of employees in times of the pandemic
remains the Group’s primary concern. To contain the spread of
COVID-19 and to protect the health and safety of our employees,
the Group has implemented special arrangements and stepped up
precautionary measures, aiming to reduce the risk of infection.

Special arrangements and preventive measures adopted by the
Group includes:

° Adopt flexible work arrangements (e.g., work-from-home
arrangement, rotating shifts);

o Postpone non-essential travel to countries where there are
confirmed cases of COVID-19;

o Request self-quarantine for staff members who have
travelled overseas recently;

o Require periodic negative rapid antigen test result for
employees to enter the Lam Soon Building;

o Conduct internal questionnaire to understand employees’
health conditions after travelling abroad and recovering,
and collect feedback;

o Arrange body temperature check before entering Lam Soon
offices and plants;

o Provide hand sanitisers and surgical masks in the workplace;
and
o Disinfect offices and factories on a regular basis.

Owing to the effective OHS management, we have maintained
zero employee fatality in the past three years.

Employee work-related fatalities over the past three years
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Pillar 2: “Empowering our People”

(continued)
Employee Welfare and Engagement

The Group provides competitive remuneration with various
benefits to attract and retain talent. Employment package is
regularly reviewed with consideration of the market trend,
benchmarking the industry’s salary and benefit information
through salary survey reports conducted by professional
consultants. Annual salary increment and year-end performance
bonus mechanism have been incorporated in the Group's
remuneration policy. Share options are also granted to the Group's
eligible employees to provide incentive and in recognition of their
contributions.

Employees in the PRC are entitled to year-end bonus, social
security insurance and housing fund. Year-end bonus, life and
health insurance are provided to employees in Hong Kong upon
completion of probationary period. Additionally, staff sale, meals
and transportation are made available to employees according
to the actual situation. Fair terms on working hours, holidays,
termination of contract, fringe benefits and leave entitlement are
stipulated in the employment contracts signed between employees
and the Group. Overtime work shall be applied through submission
of application forms and approved by departmental supervisors.
Any disputes will be settled according to the Group’s appeal
procedures in an equitable and prompt manner.

Employees are always kept informed of the Group's key projects,
future directions and latest market strategies, activities and social
events in the industry through notice boards, intranet, meetings,
annual conferences and the internal e-newsletter, namely E-Post.
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Pillar 2: “Empowering our People” TR [HEEFRMANET ]

(continued) (#&)
Employee Welfare and Engagement (continued) BEEFRSEHE)

The Group also arranges various onboarding training activities to AEECZHERZBABEIEE  EBHET
help new employees adapt to the company culture. During the BEREATXL - RREHE  NEEERTE
Reporting Period, the Group organised group meetings and team BESZNEBRERETE  UIENEINEER
building activities to enhance employees’ sense of belonging and RIEEE TR HREARBSEBNBLZEHE
foster staff relationship. Some of the activities organised during i

the Reporting Period include:

Lam Soon Home Care Division Distribution Conference in 2022 and 2023

CE T CERIEC=HFHIEREEESENLETAT

Held on 6 September 2022 Held on 29 June 2023
REBEZZFEARANBET RZBZ=ZFA Bt HhB&T

Home Care Division Communication meeting for the start of the new financial year

HUBFEERG REEEEXNBITEERE
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Pillar 2: “Empowering our People” TR [HEEFRMANET ]

(continued) (#&)

Employee Welfare and Engagement (continued) BEBFRSEHE)
Two-day Weihai trip organised by Two-day trip organised by Labour Union in
Labour Union in Qingzhou in June 2023 Jiangsu in March 2023

“ERCCFXRAENISASNEISW AR CECCHF-RAISHBNIHEMBE

3

Team building event and 3-day trip to Zhangjiajie in Hunan organised by Labour Union in
Guangzhou in April 2023

CECCHFNATSREMNASNEBREREBNNERRA=ZRE

Wb [/ 11

Two-day trip to Huangshan organised by Labour Union in Yixing in March 2023
—ECCF-AHEITSASNEILRA L
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Pillar 2: “Empowering our People”

(continued)

Employee Welfare and Engagement (continued)

WESE

XEZ  [TREFRMANET ]

(&)

BERARSHE(E)

“ECCFTAIE  ENISEREDS

Sports event held by Labour Unions in Jiangsu and Changzhou in October 2022

o

Employee Development

With human resources as one of its core values, the Group believes
that strengthening the capabilities of employees can benefit both
the Group and employees themselves. We have established the
Lam Soon Learning Development Management Guidelines to
develop a training and development system for our employees,
aiming to develop their professional skills, management skills,
and personal qualities. Training needs are identified through
appraisal sessions with employees. Thus, the training provided can
effectively address below objectives:

(i) Facilitate the achievement of the Group’s and/or its
departmental targets;

(ii) Increase productivity in every aspect of working processes;
(iii) Enhance employees’ satisfaction; and

(iv)  Assist employees’ career development.
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Pillar 2: “Empowering our People”

(continued)

Employee Development (continued)

The training courses vary from mandatory training and skill
enhancement to the more advanced supervisory skills and
managerial development, targeting employees of various levels.
During the Reporting Period, employees have been provided with
both internal and external training on numerous areas including
salesman training - baking technique and theory, ISO training,
occupational safety and health training, customs regulations
training and IT security awareness training. Apart from the
traditional training, the Group developed an interaction platform,
E-learning, for the Company to communicate with employees
through laptops, tablets, and smartphones. Employees can access
technical skills, Company’s news, knowledge and experience
shared by the management and honour guests through different
kind of electronic devices at anytime and anywhere. The Group can
also analyse the employees’ preferences and design effective and
efficient courses through this E-learning platform in the future.
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Lam Soon Flour East China Important
Customer Tsinghua Study Activities
HIEEHERILBREEE P EER

HEEE

Staff members are also encouraged to attend e-learning classes,
seminars, team building activities and knowledge sharing events
for enhancing their knowledge and skills. The Group will provide
subsidy or full reimbursement on the course fees to eligible staff
under the training policy.
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Lam Soon E-learning platform
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Pillar 2: “Empowering our People”

(continued) (#&)
Social Performance HExRB
2022/23
Unit B —B-—=— /==

Turnover Rate k=R % % 6.43
By gender BRI &5
Male B4 % % 6.28
Female geogc % % 6.63
By age group RERERE S
18-25 18-258% % % 22.50
26-35 26-355% % % 11.34
36-45 36-455% % % 5.56
46-55 46-555% % % 2.02
>56 56m R E % % 4.17
By geographical region Rt EE D
Hong Kong 58 % % 20.25
Macau P % % 0
Mainland China B R RE % % 4.93
Health and Safety REHEZE
Lost days due to work injury EIGELRIEXY Days X 663.50
Development and Training R B
Employees trained E T3 % % 100
By gender RERIE 5
Male B4 % % 100
Female geg % % 100
By employee category ZEER7
Senior Level Management SREBASE % % 100
Middle Level Management hREEAES % % 100
Frontline and other employees AR EMET % % 100
Average training hours 3915 S| R B
By gender RERIE S
Male B4 Hours N 13.50
Female fog 3 Hours N 13.75
By employee category RESRH
Senior Level Management SREEAE Hours N 12.99
Middle Level Management RREBAS Hours N 23.68
Frontline and other employees AIERHMET Hours N 11.32
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Pillar 3: “Conducting Business with XE=Z [EEBETER]
Honour”

Key Achievements = ER i

Established Whistleblowing Policy with publicly available reporting channels for all stakeholders.

FERBRE - RAAFHERMUAMBRRE -

Launched the Supplier Relationship Management system to digitalise procurement management.
HHHEERREERS  EREBEREH T -

Audited packaging materials suppliers against the safety and hygiene performances according to
I the Supplier Assessment and Control Procedures.
RIB(HEBZREGRER) BEEMENHERETRERBERRATENER
The Group's business operations were accredited with ISO 9001 Quality Management System
certification, 1ISO 22000 Food Safety Management System, Hazard Analysis and Critical Control
Point (HACCP) certification, and FSSC 22000 Food Safety System Certification. Homecare product
plant is accredited with the China Environmental Labelling Products Certification.
REBMNEBIPITEFISO 001 MEEEBRZE - IS0 22000RMEZZEERAZE - F
AT BRI SRR B B (HACCP)B R LURFSSC 22000BEmE 2 AR ERE - REREARMESF
BlIRIR S EMmorE ©

customers.

BRZESLRAERREERE  REFEERREELN -

I Developed a variety of online and social media channels to promote a healthy lifestyle for our

Business Ethics and Compliance BMEEERER

The Group upholds a zero-tolerance approach to corrupt practices AEBHEENESTEEREERTIEE - A
by employees. To ensure ethical business practices, the Group BREEEERESR  FEERKETERER
strictly observes applicable laws, regulations and regulatory EEHRRNEE EZRREEXH  BFET

documents related to commercial bribery, including but not limited FRAA :

to:

. Criminal Law of the PRC; . (REARIEFEAE) ;

. Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the PRC; . (FEAREMBRTEEREE)

. Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of the Laws of Hong Kong; . BB L) B9 B LE BERRARHI)

. Theft Ordinance of the Laws of Hong Kong; and . BBEGIPNCEBREGD &

. Organized and Serious Crimes Ordinance of the Laws of . ERENTNCEABRBERTHK
Hong Kong. Bl o
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Pillar 3: “Conducting Business with
Honour” (continued)

Business Ethics and Compliance (continued)

The Group has established its Whistleblowing Policy, with the
aim to set out and formalise the reporting channels on suspected
misconduct, malpractice or non-compliance within the Company.
The Group Internal Audit department will consolidate all cases
received, assess the severity of the case and report to the
Chairman, Group Managing Director/Chief Executive Officer and
the Chairman of the BARMC when there is an event of foreseeable
significant impact to the Group’s operation and/or reputation.
The investigation will be conducted in a fair and efficient manner,
the result will be reported

XHE= [ MEEETER]
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BRBERRER(E)
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EER/RABEELVERNEATE A
I EEESALE TRESREZKE
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FIARENTNET  SREB/ETER
A BFTEERIIERE °

to the whistle-blower and
all information will be kept
confidential.

HIR(EE) A ERIRE:

During the Reporting Period,
all employees were required
to take the Lam Soon Anti-
corruption Programme to
ensure that the highest level of
business ethics has been met.
The training topics covered
the explanation of relevant
laws and regulations on anti-
corruption and business ethics,
the definition of conflict of
interest, preventive measures,
and the report channels. There
were no concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices
brought against the Company
or its employees during the
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RESREERBRNERE R
HEHRNTER - A EEMNE
BRE - RBREHE - A2 7
FHETHEFNESITAMA
RAVERERME -

Reporting Period.
Supply Chain Management

Our Code of Conduct outlines our commitment in upholding
good business ethics and integrity and developing long-term
relationships with our business partners based upon fairness,
mutual trust and benefit. We abide by applicable laws, rules and
regulations of Hong Kong, the PRC and relevant international
standards in all material respects as listed below and no material
non-compliance was identified during the Reporting Period.

HEHEEE

BFNTATADBL T RPN EER T
MEEERNRARE  LELF - EENMEEN
Ef FERFANEBSEBHFELRABE
BEMREERTHETUTAIINEER S
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Applicable laws and regulations on supply chain management and business ethics

HERBEERERERZBREERER

Scope #i[E Laws and regulations SEZE R ER

o Food Safety Law of the PRC
(FEARAKNBERBZEE)

. National Food Safety Standard for the Use of Food Additives
(RRZ2EREERBMNEIERZRE)

o Administrative Measures for Food Recalls
(RmBEEEIE)
o Public Health and Municipal Services Ordinance of

the Laws of Hong Kong

Product quality and safety 58 3£ 51 R 0 C 2 A T A )

EmHEBRZ2 . Food Adulteration (Metallic Contamination) Regulations
(BRYBRR (BRESE)R6)
o Food Recall Guidelines in Hong Kong
EERN(EmEIWKIES
o National Food Safety Standard — Detergent
(RRBZE2EREE - HKHE)
. Technical Specification for Safety of Soaps and Detergents
CREAmZ2RAMRE)
Marketing and labelling o Advertisement Law of the PRC
IR E (PEARHEMBEESE)
o Personal Data Protection Ordinance of the Laws of Hong Kong
Cyber security and data privacy EBEGI P HCEAER (R 15461
WHEL2HEEBENLRE . Personal Information Protection Law of the PRC
(PEARAEMBEEAEEREE)
Procurement Practices KEESL

The Group has Procurement Management, Supplier Management AEBCHERBERE HETEERTMEHK
and Evaluation Policies in place which specify the Group's % BT TAEEMNEEEA o AEBET R
procurement principles. Two new logistics guidelines on e-bidding MESEERRERIDBRAERENE F1RE
and request for quotation for transportation services and external RERBEZHY RIS - ZEREREMTE
warehouse services have been adopted by the Group. The policies BIE . AKER TS REEE M EREYISE
provide guidelines and procedures to manage supply chain during B o

tendering, contract period and post-completion of work.

Three underlying principles on procurement management as outlined in the procurement policy

IR RBEBRRAN=ERBEEELRFRR

Adopt a just-in-time inventory model to buy only what the business operation needs with speculative
behaviour prohibited.
RARKEFER  EBEXRLERTE  BUEREITH -

Source from local suppliers to reduce transportation cost.

e R IREE - MR EERRA o

Source for high quality and competitive products to meet the business strategy of the Group.

BEERARFINHETRE  URSAEBHE -
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Pillar 3: “Conducting Business with
Honour” (continued)

Procurement Practices (continued)

During tendering, suppliers are selected and rated based on a
set of criteria, in terms of product price and quality, timeliness
of delivery, distance, payment terms, food safety and after-sales
service. Within the contract period, background, permits, licences
and certificates of suppliers are checked to ensure their compliance
with food safety policies and standards, as well as national
and local environmental policies with must-have certificates for
relating industries. Products sourced from suppliers are subject
to multiple tests to ensure they are of national food safety
standards. The flour mills and the edible oil plant evaluate their
raw material suppliers every six months for compliance assurance
and collect suppliers’ activity logs on a regular basis for quality
assurance. Suppliers of packaging materials are audited against
their quality, services, safety and hygiene performances according
to the Supplier Assessment and Control Procedures annually.
Suppliers must carry out rectifications if non-conformities are
identified. The Group also enters into contract with outsourced
services providers to require that they meet occupational health
and safety standards while performing their works. Suppliers who
violate laws and regulations, fail to meet tender requirements,
or commit misconducts during the contract period can be
subject to compensation payment and/or contract termination.
Upon completing the work, suppliers’ performance will be
evaluated based on the marking scheme as set out in the Supplier
Management Policy.

During the Reporting Period, we have launched the Supplier
Relationship Management (“SRM") system to digitalise
procurement management by incorporating inquiry, bidding, and
price database. The SRM system covers the functions of supplier
lifecycle management, RFX (including request for information,
guotation, proposal) and on-line tender. In addition, it facilitates
cross-function teams to co-work on the same platform to select
suppliers, monitor and continually improve their performance,
which builds a more compliant, transparent governance
environment.

Number of suppliers by geographical region

HEBEE (RHEERD)
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Geographical region Unit

I T & 45 B

Hong Kong No. of supplier 20
i HEEFHE

Mainland China No. of supplier 345
A K BE HEERHE

Others (including Canada, US, Australia, Europe and Asia) No. of supplier 16
Hitt (BFEMEAR - 2B BN - BUNRIEN) HERHE
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Pillar 3: “Conducting Business with
Honour” (continued)

Procurement Practices (continued)

Along the supply chain, the Group engages employees in
maintaining, monitoring and improving the Group’s overall
procurement management. The Group encourages employees
to take proactive, comprehensive and stringent measures in
the process of procurement, to avoid unnecessary loss and
ensure utilisation efficiency of its resources in accomplishing the
production, supply and sales targets.

Product Quality and Safety

The Group fulfils relevant product quality, product safety and
food labelling requirements and meets various internationally
recognised standards. All the Group’s business operations possess
the ISO 9001 Quality Management System certification. The flour
mills, edible oil plants and specialty fat plant are certified to I1SO
22000 Food Safety Management System. The four flour mills in
Shekou, Jintan, Qionglai and Qingzhou as well as the edible oil
plants are accredited with Hazard Analysis and Critical Control
Point (HACCP) certification. The flour mills in Yixing and Jintan, the
edible oil plant in Shekou and the specialty fats plant are certified
to FSSC22000 Food Safety System Certification. During the
Reporting Period, there were no significant products and service-
related complaints received.

To ensure high product quality and safety for customers, the
Group strictly follows its policy, manual and guideline, and
procedure on customer satisfaction management, complaint
handling and product recall. The Group deploys standard
procedures on sanitation of food plants, oil plants and associated
equipment to maintain a high hygiene standard throughout the
production process. For home care product plant, the Group
is committed to being compliant with Detergents for hand
dishwashing (GB/T 9985-2000) and National Food Safety Standard
— Detergent (GB 14930.1-2015). Tests are conducted by the
Quality Assurance Department against pre-defined specifications
in product safety or quality standards. Qualified testing
organisations are engaged to validate the test results and issue
independent test reports. Any materials or products that fail to
meet the required standards will be labelled, isolated and assessed
by related departments.

XE= [ MEEETER]
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REBEHI ()
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Pillar 3: “Conducting Business with
Honour"” (ontinved)

Product Quality and Safety (continued)

To strengthen customers’ confidence in our brand, the Group
responds to complaints/enquiries promptly with authorised
personnel assigned for handling. If there is any product quality
issue raised by our customers, we will conduct investigation to
identify the root cause of the incident, rectify the problem timely
and take appropriate preventive actions. If the complaints involve
product safety and withdrawal of the affected products from the
market is deemed necessary, we will immediately activate our
product recall procedures. The recalled products will be isolated
to ensure proper handling or disposal. All the information related
to the recall will be documented for senior management review
and approval. During the Reporting Period, no products sold were
subject to recalls for safety and health reasons.

XHE= [ MEEETER]

(#
EmEERZ2(HE)

AMEFFHEMARENEL  AEEZRIRE
REASARMCIEEERE, EHEE - W
REMANEFREAMNEREE[E - RMHK
ETAEURESHNORARE - REMIER
B FRBEE WA ER - IRRFSREm
Z2 TERRBLBRZZENERBED
5 RS LERMBERMANERBLERRF - ®
AENERSERR  UEREBREENRE
B -HACHEBNRBEERBMERHRER - YU
HEBEEAESEENLE - RREHE - I
BoEEmER2REFEAMARY -

Complaint handling and product recall procedures

RFEERERBOER

Authorised personnel to handle any enquiry or complaint cases

EREABREEAEARNRFRN

i

Execute investigation and provide prompt response

EITHAESRHREFEE

i

Perform product recall if the complaints involve product safety and withdrawal is deemed necessary

MRRFIREREE  URKELERE - AIETERED

i

Ensure proper handling or disposal of the recalled product

BREEREIRECEDER

i

All the information relating to the product recall will be documented for senior management
review and approval

HERAGEHERANMEEEBECRER  UMESEERASETENIE
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Pillar 3: “Conducting Business with
Honour” (continued)

Marketing and Labelling

The Group has established guidelines on marketing and labelling
to ensure that product specification and promotional activities
comply with applicable laws and regulations. Labels of edible oils,
specialty fats and flour products contain nutritional profile and
the product composition. For homecare products, the product
labels provide information on the main ingredients, dosage
instructions, directions for use and safety precautions. Labels are
required to be approved by our Legal Department and Quality
Assurance Department with records filed. New product packages
shall apply for patent registration whenever necessary. Specifically,
our homecare product plant is accredited with the China
Environmental Labelling Products Certification for fulfilling the
control requirements on hazardous substances in raw materials or
products, pollutants in the factory as well as environmental policy
in the production processes.

The Group strives to improve public wellbeing by promoting
healthy lifestyle. As part of its ongoing effort to increase
awareness among business-to-business customers and strengthen
technical support to industry partners, the Group has set up
eight baking centres in Shenzhen, Yixing, Jinan, Chengdu, Jintan,
Quanzhou, Harbin, and Zhengzhou. Other online promotional
channels, including Xiaohongshu, Tik Tok and WeChat Video
Channel, are part of the digitalised Lam Soon Flour Operation
media platform, where we upload videos on various topics,
including introduction of new products and solutions, nutritional
values of our products from registered dietitians and sharing of
cooking recipes prepared with nutritious ingredients. We also
livestream on different platforms to share cooking recipes. Apart
from this, the Group organises workshops to introduce new
products and solutions, aiming to promote a healthy and balance
lifestyle to the public.

Neither false nor misleading contents will be contained in any
product specification or promotional channels. During the
Reporting Period, the Group did not record any cases of material
non-compliance with laws and regulations regarding advertising,
marketing and labelling matters.

Intellectual Property (“IP")

The Group strives to protect its own IP rights and respects third
party IP rights according to applicable laws and regulations. It
registers new IPs (including trademarks, designs and patents) in
different parts of the world, renews existing IP rights, manages the
use of IPs, and keeps track of IP infringement by other parties. The
Group reserves the right to take legal actions against any alleged
infringement.
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Pillar 3: “Conducting Business with
Honour"” (ontinved)

Intellectual Property (“IP") (continued)

The Group also requires its service providers, suppliers or business
partners to undertake and warrant that all their deliverables or
products are their original creation and/or do not infringe any third
party’s IP rights. Infringers are liable to appropriate consequences
in the event of a breach.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not record any material
IP infringement claims brought against any member of the Group.

Cyber Security and Data Privacy

The Group’s Legal Department seeks to improve the Group’s
compliance with applicable laws and regulations in data privacy.
We strictly follow internal policy, manual, guidelines and
procedures on protecting personal data. Before collecting personal
data from data providers, they are informed of the purposes of
data collection and how it will be used. Procedures on handling,
storing, transferring and erasing data providers’ personal data
collected are reviewed periodically.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not record any cases

of material non-compliance with laws and regulations regarding
cyber security and data privacy matters.

Pillar 4: “Caring for our Community”

XHE= [ EEETER]

Ve
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ARER(NRER] #)

AEBTREHLRBERERD - HEBRELS
ERFHAERARE  HEMEUXNERKE
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B2BEREERERTEAKF - KMIEKE
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S E SR P ERHE M E TR ENEAER
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XM [EELE]

Key Achievements X E 5

— — S m——

Garnered the “Caring Company Award” for the 16th consecutive year.

BE16FEE BRARBIRIE-

Participated in the Jintan poverty alleviation programme for the third consecutive year.

BEIFSHESENHREE -

Donated daily necessities to the needy.
MEFTEATRERELTR -

intellectual disabilities.

I Collaborated with the Hong Chi Association and provided job opportunities to people with
HEESEE  RERALRMUMEKS -

Participated in “Love Teeth Day” and donated to the Community Chest.
SHE[AREFASEE  YRARTEHA -
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Pillar 4: “Caring for our Community”

(continued)

Community Investment

We aim to contribute for the betterment of society, to
create collective advancement and harmonious community
relationships.

While formal policies on community engagement are yet to be
established, the Group continued to maintain its strong tradition
of supporting various charitable causes during the Reporting
Period. The Group established a volunteer service team to convey
love and care, giving back to the society and fulfilling our social
responsibility.

In November 2022, our Volunteer Working Group went to
Zhanjiang and delivered peanut oil to the needy. A total of 2,000
litres of peanut oil were donated.

XN [EELE e

HERE

BUEEXRZHE  AIEREELRFFELH
EREF -

BEAKEEATERBEEESENEXNK
R EBRFARFEHEEBERS IS EEES
EEMNEAER - AEEC KN EREEREEH
BOEERHEEER  DEtERETHEERE -

RIBEZZF+—8 BEMNEEEIEAR
EET BEFEHREIEH - AHBERE
45H2,000H ©

Home visit and donating peanut oils to needy families in Zhanjiang
Keh e LR RERBIEE

The Group is awarded the “Caring Company
Award” for the sixteenth consecutive year by
the Hong Kong Council of Social Service
rEEBEET A AFEEELERBHSHEEN
[EmRREIE R

Caring for the Community el Caring far

80 Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited | Annual Report 2023



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RiIE - HERERBRES

Pillar 4: “Caring for our Community”

(continued)
Volunteering and Charitable Activities

The Group has been collaborating with Hong Chi Association by
donating its products to Hong Chi Association’s Recycling Stores
and kitchens to alleviate its operating costs, and promote waste
reduction and recycling initiatives in the society. In addition,
with the support of the Group, the Social Enterprise Division of
Hong Chi Association has become the service provider of the
Group's canteen in Hong Kong, giving people with intellectual
disabilities the opportunity to receive job training, as well as to find
career direction, build self-esteem and enhance competitiveness.
Nominated by Hong Chi Association, the Group has been awarded
the “Caring Company Award” for sixteen consecutive years
by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service since 2007, which
is a testament to our long-term commitment to community
investment.

The Group participated in “Love Teeth Day”, an annual fund-
raising event organised by the Community Chest of Hong Kong,
the Hong Kong Dental Association and Oral Health Education Unit
of the Department of Health to promote oral health education.
Proceeds raised were donated to the Community Chest to provide
professional dental care to the needy such as the elderly and
people with intellectual disabilities. Employees participating in the
event also received a “Love Teeth Day Care Pack”.

XN [EELEE e

SRREEED

FEE-HRESEAF NETERWRER
HARFEREARER  UTERAEENK
N EEBHEREREYBIED - I ER
EEXET EESHELXCARLEER
BRENRBHEERD  REEATRHMES
- SRBELSD  BYBEORREEHRFD
MKE EEEENRET  AEEBE-ZZ
tFEREET A AFREE B ERBHS MR
HNIBRAREEZEIR  NEBTEMAPLEREN
REIEG -

AEESNMBHEBELAGES BETBEEERE
SENRREHEASHNIAEETFA IFE
EXED  EEOERERAE - HEEREE
Bromes UAREREBATISEEFEZA
TRHBETEEE - SEEFHNEETER
[BFEREE]-

Love Teeth Day
N@mETH

For the third consecutive year, the Group participated in the
poverty alleviation programme organised by the local government
to provide assistance to Zhigian District Luxi Village in Jintan.
The Group also donated a total of RMB50,000 for the poverty
alleviation programme for the second year and for the 2022
Charity Day of Changzhou Jintan District Charity Federation to
support the needy during the Reporting Period.

AEEEE=F2HEHT EHBNASNKET
2 ASEWREAEEZINERER - KBS
HE AEETAE_FHEFERENTS
BRZZAEN _S__FE[ZZ—HB1E
BHAHIF ARBS0,000T  UEXBFEEEA
ﬁo
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HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Content

Index

BRBXARE  #HERE

Al EESIRnAE RS

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

FEHE - EF@E -

—BEERARERER

Relevant Chapter(s) or
Other References/Explanation

MEEHREMASM e

A. ENVIRONMENT
AJRE
Aspect A1: Emissions

BEAT - SRR

General Disclosure

—RIEE

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges

into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-

hazardous waste.

FRBRNREREHN - MAKRLIHBHES - BEERES
BEYNEESEN

a) B &k

(b) BFHBITABTERLENHEBEEERBRLINER -

Environmental Management;
Air Pollutant Emissions
REBEEE,

ERITERMBEM

KPI'AT.1
BREN
EEAN

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

M EERAAE YR -

Air Pollutant Emissions

ZR5 R

KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse Greenhouse Gas Emission and Energy
BEREN gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, Efficiency
EEA1.2 intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility). BER B REERENEG
BHiE(HE1)KE EF??‘%(%”IZ)Fﬁcﬁ*ﬁb’ﬁli(lfxﬂ@uf%)
RnBER)ZBE(NMUEESEN - S ERETE)
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where Waste Management
BIEAT13 appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per E#E®E
facility).
FEEEEEEYEE (MU WEE E)R(MER)BE(MUSGE
BB - BERETEHE)
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where ~ Waste Management
BRER appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per EYIEE
A4 facility).
Fﬁéiﬂ%gﬁﬁt@%@é(uﬂﬁ*ﬁ)&(ﬁﬂ MRZEE(mMNEE
EE{ BEREHE
KPI' A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to Greenhouse Gas Emission and Energy
BARER achieve them. Efficiency
EBA15 BRI LB R ER B EDEL B EMFEMNLSE BRERBHHRREERENR
KPI'A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are ~ Waste Management
BREN handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps ~ EE¥JE IR

$E1EA1.6

taken to achieve them.
HAEEEERBEEZENNF L R
ERAERELEEMEINAILIE -

i FTRT S KRS B
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HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Content
|ndeX (continued)

BRBIARE  #HERE

AR EESIRBE RS @)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TRER BEH —REERBERANES

Relevant Chapter(s) or
Other References/Explanation

HEESHR AR, e

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

BHEA2 : ERER

General Disclosure

— R

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy,
water and other raw materials.

BEREAER(BEER - AREMEMNR) WBEE -

Environmental Management
BISEE

KPI A2.1
BARANK
ERA2.1

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g.
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in '000s) and intensity (e.g.
per unit of production volume, per facility).
REMESVEER SEEER(WE  {EUH)EFEE (L
FREFESFAE)REE(NMUSESEN - §ERETE) °

Greenhouse Gas Emission and Energy
Efficiency
BEREHRK RN

KPI'A2.2
BREN
ERA2.2

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).

BIEKERZE(WUSESEN - BRREFTH) -

Water Management
AKERE

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps Greenhouse Gas Emission and Energy
AN taken to achieve them. Efficiency;
1E1EA2.3 WAL PTET LA RE IR E AN s B R R AE RIS L B AT ERELY Climate Change
HE e BERBHHRREERRR
KIREL
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water Water Management
BEREN that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps  All water used by the Group were
BIZEA2.4 taken to achieve them. obtained with respective permits. There
HSREGE AAOR LT B ERIRERE - RIS AR E were no issues related to sourcing water
BERAETESLAEMEBMMNLE o that was fit for purpose.
FAKER
AEBERNFEKEES THENG
o WREMEEEBES AENKERR
KRR o
KPI'A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in Packaging Materials
BREN tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit iR
1E1BEA2.5 produced.

SEmAABEMHNAS (UHFE)R(NER)BLEEE

fIfh & -

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

BHA3 : RIERRAAREIR

General Disclosure

—RIKE

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the
environment and natural resources.

MERTAHRERRAAREREREATENEE -

Environmental Management
RIEERE
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TRER BEH —REERBEEARES

Relevant Chapter(s) or
Other References/Explanation

HEESHR AR, e

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
BREN environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
BEA3 manage them.

LR EHHRERAREFNEAZERCRNEERA
SEWNTH -

Environmental Management;
Greenhouse Gas Emission and Energy
Efficiency

RIEERE

BEREHERK

BER A

Aspect A4: Climate Change
BEAL - /IR

General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-
—RIFE related issues which have impacted, and those which may
impact, the issuer.

AR EHERRTHEEHRTAELEFENERRIZEE

Climate Change
RirEL

BEEWEE -
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which Climate Change
BRER have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and ~ RIR& 1t
BEAL the actions taken to manage them.

R E R R RS HBTAEEZENEARRERSZE -
REEE1TE) o

B. SOCIAL
B. &
Employment and Labour Practices
EREREIER
Aspect B1: Employment
BEB1 - {E1E
General Disclosure Information on: People Management;
—RIRE (a) the policies; and Fair Labour Practices and Equal
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have  Opportunities;
a significant impact on the issuer Employee Welfare and Engagement
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and AEEE;
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, NENETEHNRFEFSEHS
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare. EE2EFRBE ;
ERSHREE  BEREH - TS - B TSR
g Zaft  REBRUREMGERENN
(@) X &
(b) BFHBITABEAFENHEEERRDNESR -
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, People management
BEREN full- or part-time), age group and geographical region. AEEHE
1E1EB1.1 R - EEER (MEHERE) FRANKRBEE D W
EERH -
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and Social Performance
BREN geographical region. HEER
$E1ZB1.2 BiER - FRARRMEESHWESRKLEE -
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BRBIARE  #HERE

AR EESIRBE RS @)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TRER BEH —REERBERANES

Relevant Chapter(s) or
Other References/Explanation

HEESHR AR, e

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

[BHEB2 : REHEZE

General Disclosure

— R

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and

protecting employees from occupational hazards.

FERMZ2TERERGEREERSBELREN

(a) KX &

(b) BFHBTABERFENHBEEERBROINER -

People Management;

Employee Wellbeing, Health and Safety
ABEHE

EEEN BEERE

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of  Employee Wellbeing, Health and Safety
BREN the past three years including the reporting year. EERW - RERZSE

1812B2.1 BEZF (BRERFE)SFRITHNABRLER -

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Social Performance

BREN AIGEEAIHERH - HERR

EEB2.2

KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures Employee Wellbeing, Health and Safety
RSEEN adopted, how they are implemented and monitored. EERM - EREZ2

{51EB2.3 HIPF R MBI R EREZ 2R - UREESITRESRS

& e

Aspect B3: Development and Training

[EEB3 : R KIEI

General Disclosure

— R

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.
FERAEEET TFBEN B R REENBER - HilEI|
TEE e

People Management;
Employee Development
AEER

EE#E

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and Social Performance
BREN employee category (e.g. senior management, middle HEXRR
$E1ZB3.1 management).

BUEFIREEEAN(NSHKEERE - PREEE)ESHNZI

EEESL -
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by Social Performance
RAREN gender and employee category. HERR
}§1EB3.2 RMFIREEENZS  BREETHRIIN IR -
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RE  #HERERBRES

BERBIARE  #HER

A EESIRB RS @)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TRER BEH —REERBEEARES

Relevant Chapter(s) or
Other References/Explanation

HEESHR AR, e

o

=)

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

BEB4 : HTEA

General Disclosure

— R

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

BRI IEE TEREGI% T/

(@) BE &

(b) BFHBITABEAFENHEEEERBHNER -

People Management;

Fair Labour Practices and Equal
Opportunities

AEER
DNENETEARFEHS

KPI B4.1
BREN
1E1EB4N

Description of measures to review employment practices to
avoid child and forced labour.

HAR R ESNERABRETI RS T -

Fair Labour Practices and Equal
Opportunities
RTINS TIERR FERS

KPI B4.2
515842

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when
discovered.

HERRERBFREERERIERARMALSE -

Fair Labour Practices and Equal
Opportunities
ATHETEARPERE

Operating Practices

EEER

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

[EEBS : ftREsEEE

General Disclosure

—RIKE

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the
supply chain.
EEMEENREREERMBBER -

Supply Chain Management;
Procurement Practices
HrEgEER

REBIES)

KPI B5.1
BARANK
1E1EB5.1

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

ZibEE D NWHEREE -

Procurement Practices

RIBEM

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, Procurement Practices
RAREEEN number of suppliers where the practices are being BREE S )
$81ZB5.2 implemented, how they are implemented and monitored.
BB ARERNIES  mESTEREEANNHERK
B URMEBHITRERFE -
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental Procurement Practices
BEREN and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are PREBE
$81ZB5.3 implemented and monitored.
il e B B R S EIR B VIR B R SR AVER - B
RAEBEHATRERFE ©
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally Procurement Practices
BEREN preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, adi- 4 =g
$51EB5.4 and how they are implemented and monitored.
B EREHEESEESARRERRBRENES » UK
HERTRERTSE -
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BRBIARE  #HERE

AR EESIRBE RS @)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TRER BEH —REERBERANES

Relevant Chapter(s) or
Other References/Explanation

HEESHR AR, e

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

[EHEB6 : EmEE

General Disclosure

Information on:

Product Quality and Safety;

—RIEE (a) the policies; and Marketing and Labelling;
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have  Cyber Security and Data Privacy
a significant impact on the issuer EmBEEHZE
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and S IHEZR
privacy matters relating to products and services provided and ~ {B#& % 2 HEEIEFLE
methods of redress.
FHRUERNBRENREEZS B  SBRILES
HEUARBRF AN :
(@) BEE &
(b) BFHBTATERTENHEBEEERBRLINER -
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls  Product Quality and Safety
BREN for safety and health reasons. EREEHEHZE

1E15B6.1

CERCEXEMABTREZ2EREEAMARNKRNE D
b e

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received Product Quality and Safety
BREY and how they are dealt with. EREEnRZE

1512B6.2 BEENERRBRBIRFHE UREETT X -

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting  Intellectual Property

R EN intellectual property rights. HBER

151ZB6.3

HERgEE R REANHERAENES -

KPI B6.4
$515B6.4

Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedures.
HliEESRERERERBIKER

Product Quality and Safety
EmEEHREZR

KPI B6.5
RBEN
$54ZB6.5

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies,
how they are implemented and monitored.

HEBEEERRERLBERE  UREEANTRERS X -

Cyber Security and Data Privacy
MR 2EHIEILRE

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
BEB7 : RES

General Disclosure

—RIE

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

BEEPLLEREE - BR - MEFROEREN

(@) BE &

(b) BFEHBITABEAFENHEBEERBRONER -

Business Ethics and Compliance

BRERRER

MIE(ERB)BRLAR | —BE_=FF®
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BRBXARE  #HERE

A EESIRB RS @)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TRER BEH —REERBEEARES

Relevant Chapter(s) or
Other References/Explanation

HEESHR AR, e

KPI B7.1
BREN
BB .1

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices
brought against the issuer or its employees during the
reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.
RERAAHSETASRHEESREYEEENETFHARS
BB REFRAER ©

Business Ethics and Compliance

BRERRER

KPI B7.2
BREN
151%B7.2

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored.

HER IR R B RET - URABEIITRESESE -

Business Ethics and Compliance

BRERRER

KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors Business Ethics and Compliance
BRREN and staff. BRBERER

1§12B7.3 HWmESERE TRHEMRETE -

Community

HE

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[EHEBS : HEIRE

General Disclosure

—RIKE

Policies on community engagement to understand the
needs of the communities where the issuer operates and to
ensure its activities take into consideration the communities’
interests.
FEUMEZHERTBEERMEHESENBREEKES
BZEHEMNBZNEE

Community Investment

HERE

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental Community Investment;
RAREIEN concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport). Volunteering and Charitable Activities
$E1ZB8.1 ErEHRMEE(NHE  RESH -HFIER -RBEFE Xt HERE
BE)- EREREETH
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.  Community Investment;
BREN EETHEFMBAER (NEEREH) - Volunteering and Charitable Activities

$5#ZB8.2

HERE
SREREETD
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEEREREEEAER

Mr. Kwek Leng Hai

Aged 70, the Chairman of the Company since October 2006
and has been a Non-executive Director of the Company since
appointment to the Board in 1997. Mr. Kwek is also the Chairman
of Board Nomination Committee and a member of Board
Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Mr. Kwek is a director and shareholder of Guoline Capital Assets
Limited (“GCAL"), the ultimate holding company of the Company.
He is the Executive Chairman of Guoco Group Limited ("GGL"),
a subsidiary of GCAL and listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). He is also
a non-executive director of GuocolLand Limited (“GuocolLand”,
GGL's subsidiary listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited (“SGX-ST")). He is the non-executive chairman
of GL Limited (“GL", GGL's subsidiary) which was privatized and
delisted from the Official List of SGX-ST on 14 June 2021. He
serves as a non-executive director of Hong Leong Bank Berhad
("HLBB", a listed subsidiary of Hong Leong Financial Group Berhad
("HLFG", GGL's associated company listed on Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad (“Bursa Malaysia”))) and Bank of Chengdu Co.,
Ltd. (an associated company of HLBB and listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange).

Mr. Kwek qualified as a chartered accountant of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. He has extensive
experience in various business sectors, including but not limited
to finance, investment, manufacturing and real estate. He is the
brother-in-law of Dr. Whang Sun Tze, a Non-executive Director of
the Company.

BLEEE

BEt+m B-Z2ERFHABKERQFE
B B - NNt FREEAQATFITES -
BREFRARNANESSREZESIFRES
BYFMNEEEHE -

L ERHA DT ERAER AT Guoline Capital
Assets Limited ([ GCALD) 2EERIEE - HAR
EEEBRAR(ENE D) ZHTERE  ZA84A
GCALZMIB AR » WRBEBHERZFERLD
BB ERLET o BABRITIMFHEER
ZERUHZFM]) EmzBEERERRAT((E
EEME] BUEZMBAR) ZHHITES - i
ARZEZ—-FXATHBAELLBERAFTK
Frz £ 7 BIGL Limited ([ GL » Bl 2 KB
RNANZHEHTER - HABRAEESRZF
(TBEXRFD LHzERBRITERAR ([ EER
T EAREBRFEHmeBEHE ARLES
FMEEERAT (LR SR ) ZHBAR) UK
RERITROERLT(EERBITRLEEEER
SR LT 2BERNT))IBEENITES -

BEEMEERBREABOBHTESAMAE
(Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales) 25 7F &5t EI &%  RERITEHE
ZEELER  BFENE - RE  HEREHE -
BABARARFHTESELTELIRMB2RSE -
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEEREREEEAER

Mr. Wong Cho Fai

Aged 56, Group Managing Director and Executive Director of the
Company since appointment to the Board in July 2020. On 10
November 2022, Mr. Wong was re-designated to Group Managing
Director/Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

Mr. Wong holds a bachelor’s degree in Social Science and a
master’s degree in Business Administration from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He also completed the General
Management Program in Harvard Business School.

Mr. Wong has more than 30 years of experiences in fast moving
consumer goods in USA, Asia and particularly China. Mr. Wong
has worked in several multinational Fortune 500 corporations,
including Campbell Soup, S.C. Johnson, Coca Cola and Colgate
Palmolive. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Wong served as the
President of Campbell Soup Greater China and the Managing
Director of S.C. Johnson Greater China.

Mr. Chew Seong Aun

Aged 59, Non-executive Director of the Company since
appointment to the Board in January 2021.

Mr. Chew is the Executive Director and the Group Chief Financial
Officer of GGL.

Mr. Chew is a non-executive director of The Rank Group Plc (GGL's
key subsidiary listed on the London Stock Exchange). He is also
an executive director of GL. He was a non-executive director of
Guocoland from January 2021 to March 2023. Prior to joining the
Company, Mr. Chew had been the chief financial officer of HLFG
since 2006 and before that he had held various senior banking
positions in the Middle East and Asia for over 10 years.

Mr. Chew obtained a Bachelor of Science (Eng) degree in Civil
Engineering (Honours) from Imperial College, University of London
and is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales. He is also a member of Asian Institute of
Chartered Bankers in Malaysia. He has over 30 years of experience
in finance and banking.

HEELE

BFELt+Am B-2ZRHELABRRAQRRZ
EERESAKERYTES R-ZB-"F1+—
AtH EX4EBHEIAFAIEEESRR
RIB TR -

EAERAERTNABHENBEBLBART
BEEELTEM - T ERGEERTRESE
HRE -

BEREAEXE 2N BARTERAEBB=1
FRWHERER - ELEBRZECIE) 500
BEHTCXNRTHE BESES  XEHE -
AATENSERGE - EMALXATRE » B

SEREESESATEREBNXERE RFE
BESAKLE -

Bz EE

BEL+Am B-Z--F-RBEZEAS
DEFHITES -

BRERBE B TESREBP KR -

AEERBERGRESRZA LTz —BEE
H{/® A B The Rank Group PlcZ JEHITESS &
TAGLZHMITESE - KR -_F=-_—F—HBZE=
Z_CFZPARABEERMEZIFHITES - MA
ARATR - AAEB-ZZERFRIETLESR
ZHBBE  WELZAREPRREEMNEES
B RRTREETF -

AEEFERIREBTEHER T AT (RE)E
BBy WERKEERBBEITETSETE
A & (Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales) ERE & - 752 BRI E s M4S TR
TR E(Asian Institute of Chartered Bankers)RY
BE - FESRNBITEREA=TFLR
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEEREREEEAER

Mr. Whang Sun Tze ph.p.

Aged 79, Non-executive Director of the Company since
appointment to the Board in 1984.

Dr. Whang holds a Doctorate Degree in Chemical Engineering. He
is the brother-in-law of Mr. Kwek Leng Hai.

Mr. Lo Kai Yiu, Anthony

Aged 74, Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
since appointment to the Board in December 2008. He is the
Chairman of Board Audit and Risk Management Committee
and a member of Board Nomination Committee and Board
Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Mr. Lo is qualified as a chartered accountant with the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Ontario, Canada and a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lo has
over 40 years of experience in banking, finance and investments.
He worked for a number of well-known financial institutions as
managing director.

Mr. Lo also holds other directorships in a number of listed
companies in Hong Kong including independent non-executive
director, the audit committee chairman and members of the
compensation and nomination committees of Playmates Holdings
Limited; independent non-executive director, audit committee
chairman, member of the remuneration and nomination
committee of Tristate Holdings Limited; and independent non-
executive director, audit committee chairman and member of the
nomination committee of Convenience Retail Asia Limited.

Mr. Lo was an independent non-executive director and member
of Sustainability Committee of Top Glove Corporation Bhd.,
a company listed on Bursa Malaysia and Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited, until 3 October 2022. He retired as
independent non-executive director of The Taiwan Fund, Inc., a
company listed on the New York Stock Exchange, in April 2018.

=HLE g+

BELthm B—AN\EFEHEARERH
ITES -

EEIRHAIEIREETEN - RABSHL
Rk B o

BEt+Om  B-TEN\F+-ABHERR
ABNFHITES - RAXLAESEELRE
BEEEEE IR N ESEREEEENREET
FMESENE -

BAENSNERZAREFTSHMOS 25
HETMREBSTMAGZEEER - BAE
ERIT - BBRREXBHIEEERN 52K
B KENZEAESRBBEHIESREER

i o

BERETMEIEBZM LT AR CHMESHK
B¥EPlaymates Holdings Limited (2 2 £E@AR D
A ZBUEHTESREREZESEEURS
MZEEERIEBZEEME ; Tristate Holdings
Limited 2B L HTESREREESEE >
FHESERREEEEHE  RAEZSEEAR
RAIZBUFPITEESRERZESEIRRIRES

ZEEMHE -

BREBABERATHESRSMIRINEESF
5 Fr £ =2 Top Glove Corporation Bhd. (T F
EERAT) ZBLFHITESERIFHERRES
EERE HE-Z-_F+A=HEHT - ®R
—E-NFNARE-—BRANEBESRGHM LT
#9X B The Taiwan Fund, Inc. Z B JEHITESS -
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ESENRGEEERAER

Mr. Huang Lester Garson sgs, Jp

Aged 63, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company in November 2013. Mr. Huang is the Chairman of
the Board Remuneration Committee and a member of the Board
Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Company.

Mr. Huang is an independent non-executive director, the Chairman
of the board remuneration committee and a member of the board
audit and risk management committee of GGL.

Mr. Huang is a practicing solicitor and notary public, and is
currently the Managing Partner and Co-Chairman of P. C. Woo &
Co., a solicitor firm in Hong Kong. Mr. Huang became a qualified
solicitor of Hong Kong in March 1985 and has over 30 years
of post-qualification experience. Mr. Huang graduated with a
Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of Hong Kong in 1982
and a Master of Education degree from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong in 2006.

In 2002, the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (“The Government of HKSAR") appointed Mr. Huang as
a Justice of the Peace. In July 2018, The Government of HKSAR
awarded him a Silver Bauhinia Star for his contributions to public
services.

Mr. Huang's public roles include serving as the chairman of the
Council of City University of Hong Kong and the Social Welfare
Advisory Committee of the Labour and Welfare Bureau. He is also
a director of Lei Foundation Limited (formerly known as “Faithful
Servant Charitable Foundation Limited”), a Steward of The Hong
Kong Jockey Club (“HKJC") and a director of certain group
companies of HKJC. He is also a director of Pacific Basin Economic
Council Limited.

Mr. Huang was admitted to the Roll of Honour of the Law Society
of Hong Kong (“Law Society”) in May 2021. Previously, he was
the President of the Law Society from 2007 to 2009. He was also
a non-executive director of the Securities and Futures Commission
of Hong Kong (“SFC"”) and chaired the Investor and Financial
Education Council (a subsidiary of the SFC). Mr. Huang was a
member of the Hospital Authority and the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority’s Exchange Fund Advisory Committee as well as a non-
executive director of the Urban Renewal Authority. He also served
as a member of the Standing Committee on Judicial Salaries and
Conditions of Service and other public positions.

Mr. Huang is an independent non-executive director of Kidsland
International Holdings Limited (listed on the Stock Exchange).
He was also an independent non-executive director of Top Glove
Corporation Bhd.(listed on Bursa Malaysia and Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited) until 13 September 2022.

ERMAELE sengs  Av@+

BERT=ZE  RZE—=F1+—-BEZEER
RAZBUFPTES - EXEBERLTESE
FNEEE IR RESEERNERTEERZS
BIZRE °

BRERBECBUFNTES EBEHMHZE
BEIE  URESEFUNAREERSSY
& e

BERERYEZORERDALA RE—BER
RMTHERENERMEBARBEETRE &
TER-—NANEF=ZARBEBESEREMRE
HEXIBEAEA=TELR -BEXER-ANZ
FEXNEBAE  FREFBLEMN  IRZ
ZRRFEMBEBRNARBHBRLEN -

RIZZ2HE . EBEITHRERA(EBEE
BRDEFERERAFHL - RZF-NFL
A BERARERNARRTREMNES  ZRHE
HOHBRBER -

ERE 2 A BEEEBETABRESURE T
RENRBHEBANEBZAZEG ZIFE - WITEE
NESARLAAAB EREZESAERQF )
ESR FEESE(BBEFENZESRE
BEFSEETREEQAZES - REBKTFi
BEBEEERRATNZIES -
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EECHBEE) 2R EXETERETBE
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEEREREEEAER

Ms. Ho Yuk Wai, Joan

Aged 58, Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
since appointment to the Board in November 2019. She is
a member of both the Board Audit and Risk Management
Committee and the Board Nomination Committee of the
Company.

Ms. Ho is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a member of the Chartered Professional
Accountants of Canada. She is also a Chartered Financial Analyst
and a member of the CFA Institute. Ms. Ho graduated from
Queen’s University, Canada with a bachelor’s degree (with
honours) in Commerce.

Ms. Ho has over 30 years of experience in auditing and advisory
services. She was an audit partner of KPMG China financial
services group between 2000 and 2015 and was also in charge of
the firm’s internal audit, risk and compliance services for financial
institutions and the accounting advisory services. Ms. Ho has
extensive experience in capital market transactions and conducting
operational reviews of banks in Hong Kong and the People’s
Republic of China.

Ms. Ho is currently an independent non-executive director of
several other companies, and she also serves as a member for a
number of regulatory review tribunals and disciplinary panels.

AESLZL

BEL+N\m B-Z-hAF+-ARHERR
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERBES

Corporate Governance Practices

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) has
adopted a new Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”),
based on the principles as set out in Appendix 14 (the "HKEX
Code”) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)
applicable to the Company for the financial years commenced
from 1 July 2022. The CG Code is reviewed from time to time
and updated as appropriate to align with the revised provisions
of the HKEX Code. Continuous efforts are made to review and
enhance the performance of the Board as well as the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems, disclosure practices
and communication with investors and stakeholders in light of
changes in regulations and developments in best practices. To us,
maintaining high standards of corporate governance practices is
not just complying with the letter of the provisions but also the
intent of the regulations to enhance corporate performance and
accountability.

The Board is of the opinion that the Company has complied with
the HKEX Code throughout the year ended 30 June 2023 and up
to the date of this report.

CORPORATE VISION & PURPOSE,
VALUES, CULTURE AND STRATEGY

Group Vision & Purpose

The Group's vision is for its businesses to be long-term competitive
and sustainable enterprises; and in doing so, create prime value
and achieve long-term sustainable growth for its shareholders.

The strategic intent is to transform the businesses in the
Group, to focus on core businesses, to build brands and
develop competencies. It would include strategies and action
plans to achieve sustainable global competitiveness and to
deliver consistent compound annual growth in revenue, profits
and free cash flow. This is carried out through integrating
entrepreneurialism with professional business management as well
as strong discipline and governance.

TEERER
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERBES

CORPORATE VISION & PURPOSE,
VALUES, CULTURE AND STRATEGY

(continued)
Group Values
Our Group values below underpin our culture and serve as a

compass in all we do.

Honour To conduct business with honour

=2 UEBEERY

Human Resources

ADEIR BAANEREEBEREUEENER

Entrepreneurship

TEEEREERE  BE

B LR @

(R

EMREBUTEES  SLEEBETERRME
EXHEL  BRTFAEM-ITENESR

8 o

To enhance the quality of human resources — as the essence of management excellence

To pursue management vision and foster entrepreneurship

B BREERS  BALEREW

Innovation To nurture and be committed to innovation

=k BB REBAONAIE

Quality To provide products and services that consistently exceed customers’ expectations

CES RE—EBHEFHENER KRS

Progress To continuously improve existing operations and to position for expansion and new
business opportunities

i TEREREEERAURBEARE R ER BT ER

Unity To ensure oneness in purpose, harmony and friendship in the pursuit of prosperity for all

S BRAABE -3 MRBAFHERER

Social responsibility

To create wealth for the betterment of society

HEEE RIS E LU RS

Group Culture

Group culture serves as the basis of our business operation. The
Board plays a leading role in shaping the corporate culture and
reviews this from time to time. With the Board’s oversight, we
promote compliance and ethical behavior across the Group, as well
as strict adherence to the Code of Conduct and corporate policies,
together with a whistleblowing framework.

Furthermore, the quality of our people forms the bedrock of our
business strategies. The Group commits to create an inclusive
workplace for our employees which values open communication to
foster growth. Employees are encouraged to collaborate towards
shared objectives, seeking win-win solutions and taking ownership
of their progress.

SEE
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERBES

CORPORATE VISION & PURPOSE,
VALUES, CULTURE AND STRATEGY

(continued)

Group Culture (continued)

Innovation, creativity, and dedication to continuous improvement
are vital qualities for a progressive organization. Consequently,
we expect all businesses within the Group to be forward-thinking,
adaptable, and receptive to new technologies amidst the evolving
environment. It is through transformation that the Group is able
to achieve sustainable global competitiveness and to deliver
consistent growth.

Group Strategy

With a strong heritage of value creation, the Group's
entrepreneurial vision guides our operating businesses to remain
relevant, trustworthy, competitive and sustainable in pursuit of
growth and the creation of prime value. We also seek to advance
our development through incorporating digital technology as part
of our Group’s business strategy. With the growing importance
of environmental, social and governance (“ESG"), we are also
incorporating this in our business operations and strategic
decision-making to derive sustainable solutions that benefit our
stakeholders. This is all underpinned by achieving a strong and
healthy financial position through strict adherence to prudent
financial disciplines that enhance the resilience and sustainability
of our businesses.

In summary, taking into account the vision, values and strategy of
the Group, the Board considers that they are in alignment with the
Group's culture.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company had adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as the code of conduct
governing directors’ securities transactions.

All directors of the Company during the year, following specific
enquiry by the Company, have confirmed that they have complied

with the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout
the year.

Board of Directors
Composition of the Board

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
hereof are set out in the Directors’ Report on pages 118 to 134.
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Board of Directors (continued)
Board Meetings, General Meeting and Attendance

During the year, four board meetings and one general meeting
were held. Details of individual attendance of directors at the
board meetings and general meeting during the year are set out in
the table below:

EET
EEXS2E  REAGRHEER
RAREER  HEGNAEEREER — R RE

RE - ERESRAFEAHFESEERRR
RAGZHIBFERT* -

Board General
Meeting Meeting
Number of Number of
Attendance/ Attendance/
Number of Number of
Meeting Held Meeting Held
EEEER BRAE
HERE HERE,
Name of Director BN HITEBRE SITEBARE
Chairman: FE
Mr. KWEK Leng Hai SPL|EE 4/4 1/1
Group Managing Director/ EEEEALE
Chief Executive Officer: THAR
Mr. WONG Cho Fai EEELE 4/4 11
Non-Executive Directors: FHITES :
Mr. CHEW Seong Aun BHREE 4/4 1/1
Dr. WHANG Sun Tze =TEEL 4/4 11
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BYFEHITES :
Mr. LO Kai Yiu, Anthony BRUBSLE 4/4 1/1
Mr. HUANG Lester Garson ERASLE 4/4 1/1
Ms. HO Yuk Wai, Joan MEZE L+ 4/4 11

Operations of the Board

The Board oversees the corporate mission, value, culture and
broad strategies, monitors and controls operating and financial
performance and sets appropriate policies to manage risks in
pursuit of the Group’s strategic objectives. Decisions involving
financial statements, dividend policy, material contracts and major
investments and divestments are reviewed and subject to approval
by the Board. Other main roles of the Board are to review the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and
to ensure that adequate risk management and internal control
systems and management information systems are in place,
including being in compliance with every aspect of the provisions
of applicable laws, regulations, rules, directives and guidelines to
create value for its shareholders and to ensure that the Company
has adequate management to achieve the Company’s strategic
objectives.
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Board of Directors (continued)
Operations of the Board (continued)

The Board recognises its corporate governance duties as an
ongoing commitment and has monitored and reviewed the
relevant corporate governance code, policy, standard and
practices of the Company on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements during the year and delegated relevant aspects of
the function to the board committees and management where
appropriate. In addition, the Board has reviewed the Company's
compliance with the HKEX Code and disclosure in the corporate
governance report, reviewed and monitored the training and
continuous professional development of directors and senior
management during the year.

The Board has overall responsibility for the ESG matters of the
Group and is accountable for setting forth the sustainability
mission and related reporting framework, and oversees significant
policies which guide the implementation of relevant ESG strategies
at the business group level. The Board Audit and Risk Management
Committee of the Company is assigned to assist the Board in
monitoring the ESG reporting progress, reviewing the ESG report
as well as managing the related ESG risk and issues.

Board papers are circulated prior to board meetings on a timely
manner, which include, among others, financial and corporate
information, significant operational and corporate issues and
business performance of the Group as well as management
proposals which require the approval of the Board.

All directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary and internal auditors, and upon reasonable request,
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at
the Company’s expense, if any.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Independence of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors

The Company received confirmation of independence from each
of the independent non-executive directors (“INEDs"”) for the year
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Up to and as at the date
of this report, the Company considers that the INEDs continue to
be independent.

Relationship among the Members of the Board

The family relationships among the members of the Board are
disclosed under “Board of Directors and Senior Management” on
pages 89 to 93 of this annual report.

Directors’ Continuous Training and Development
Programme

Pursuant to the HKEX Code, all directors should participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to
the board remains informed and relevant.

The Company has put in place training and development
programmes for directors which include (i) induction/
familiarisation programme for newly appointed directors; and (ii)
on-going training and professional development programme for
directors.

During the year ended 30 June 2023, all directors of the Company
namely, Messrs. KWEK Leng Hai, WONG Cho Fai, CHEW Seong
Aun, WHANG Sun Tze, LO Kai Yiu, Anthony, HUANG Lester Garson
and Ms. HO Yuk Wai, Joan received regular briefings and updates
on the Group’s business, operations, risk management and
corporate governance matters. Materials on new or changes to
salient laws and regulations, ESG matters applicable to the Group
were provided to the directors. They also attended regulatory
update sessions and seminars on relevant topics. All directors are
requested to provide the Company with their respective training
record pursuant to the CG Code.
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Board of Directors (continued)
Board Independence

Pursuant to the CG Code, the Company has put in place
mechanisms within our governance framework to ensure that
independent views and input are available to the Board.

During the year, the Board had reviewed the implementation
and effectiveness of the mechanisms and is of the view that
such mechanisms are effective. The key mechanisms under the
Company’s governance framework are summarised below:

Composition of the Board and board committees

The Board comprises more than one-third of INEDs and the Board
Audit and Risk Management Committee and Board Remuneration
Committee are both chaired by INEDs.

The composition of the Board is reviewed by the Board Nomination
Committee annually to ensure that the number of INEDs meets or
exceeds the independence requirements under the Listing Rules.

Directors’ responsibilities

As set out in the terms of reference of the Board, it is the
responsibility of the directors (including INEDs) to make positive
contribution to the development of the Company’s strategy
and policies through independent, constructive and informed
comments. Directors with different views are encouraged to voice
their concerns so as to ensure that independent views and input
are available to the Board.

The Chairman encourages a culture of openness and debate by
facilitating the effective contribution of non-executive directors in
particular and ensuring constructive relations between executive
and non-executive directors.
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Board of Directors (continued)
Board Independence (continued)

Criteria to assess independence of INEDs on appointment
and re-election

The suitability of the candidates for appointment and the directors
subject to re-election as an INED will be assessed based on the
assessment criteria and guidelines as set out in the Company’s
Nomination Policy, including among others, their independence
and potential/actual conflicts of interest that may arise if the
candidate is appointed/re-elected.

Annual review of independence of INEDs

Annual review of independence of INEDs is conducted by the
Board Nomination Committee pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

INED’s remuneration

None of the INEDs receive remuneration based on performance of
the Group.

Independent professional advice

External independent professional advice is available to all
directors, including INEDs, whenever considered appropriate.

Meetings with INEDs

The Chairman meets with INEDs without the presence of other
directors to facilitate INEDs to express their views.

Chairman and Group Managing
Director/Chief Executive Officer

The roles of Chairman and Group Managing Director/Chief
Executive Officer (“"GMD/CEQ") are segregated and are not held
by the same person. Currently Mr. KWEK Leng Hai is the Chairman
and Mr. WONG Cho Fai is the GMD/CEO of the Company.

The Chairman sets the vision and strategic direction of the
Group and leads the Board and ensures its smooth and effective
functioning. The GMD/CEO is responsible for implementing the
policies and decisions of the Board, initiating business ideas and
corporate strategies to create competitive edge and enhancing
shareholder wealth, setting the benchmark and targets for
operating companies, overseeing the day-to-day operations and
tracking compliance and business progress.
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Non-Executive Directors

The non-executive directors are not appointed for a specific term.
They are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meetings pursuant to the Articles of Association of
the Company and the CG Code.

Board Committees

During the year, three board committees, namely, the Board
Remuneration Committee, the Board Audit and Risk Management
Committee and the Board Nomination Committee were in place
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs pursuant
to the Listing Rules and the CG Code.

The three board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference, approved by the Board, which
set out the Committees’ major duties. The terms of reference
now being posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company, are available to shareholders.

The majority of the members of each board committee are INEDs.
The list of the chairman and members of each board committee is
set out in the following board committee section.

The board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

Board Remuneration Committee (“BRC")

The Company established the BRC on 1 July 2005 with specific
written terms of reference in accordance with the requirements
of the Stock Exchange which deal clearly with its authority and
duties.

The principal role and functions of the BRC are to make
recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure
for the remuneration of directors and senior management, as
well as to determine, with delegated responsibility from the
Board as described under Code E.1.2(c) of the HKEX Code,
the individual remuneration packages of all executive director
and senior management, including benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payment, which may include any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment. Detailed terms of reference of the BRC is accessible
on the Company’s website at www.lamsoon.com and the Stock
Exchange’s website at www.hkexnews.hk.
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Board Committees (continued)
Board Remuneration Committee (“BRC") (continued)

During the year, the BRC comprised Messrs. HUANG Lester Garson
(Chairman of the BRC), KWEK Leng Hai and LO Kai Yiu, Anthony.
Mr. HUANG Lester Garson and Mr. LO Kai Yiu, Anthony are INEDs
of the Company whilst Mr. KWEK Leng Hai is the Chairman of the
Company.
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During the year, two BRC meetings were held. The individual RAREE HETMAFMNEESSE o B35
attendance of each member are as follows: ﬁxawﬁ‘gZ%,R%wUﬁDT :
Number of
Attendance/
Number of
Meeting Held
HERE
Name of Director EEHA BIEBRRY
Mr. HUANG Lester Garson (Chairman) BERAgLE(EE) 2/2
Mr. KWEK Leng Hai SLFEE 2/2
Mr. LO Kai Yiu, Anthony ERURBTE 2/2
Work done during the year REEEZTHZ T

- reviewed and recommended directors’ fees for non-
executive directors for the financial year 2021/2022;

- reviewed and approved the discretionary bonuses for
executive director and senior management for the financial
year 2021/2022;

- reviewed the remuneration packages of executive director
and senior management;

- reviewed the Employee’s Share Option Scheme related
matters;

- reviewed and recommended the proposed amendments
to the terms of reference of the BRC and reviewed and
updated the remuneration policy for directors and senior
management; and

- deliberated the statement relating to the BRC for inclusion
in the Corporate Governance Report.
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Board Committees (continued)
Board Remuneration Committee (“BRC") (continued)
Level and Make-up of Remuneration

The Group’s remuneration policy for executive director and
senior management is linked to performance, service seniority,
experience and scope of responsibility and is based on the
provisions in the Group’s Human Resources Manual, which is
reviewed from time to time to align with market/industry practices.

The level of remuneration of non-executive directors reflects the
level of responsibilities undertaken by them. The fees of directors,
including non-executive directors, are recommended and endorsed
by the Board for shareholders’ approval at the Company’s annual
general meetings. Details of directors’ remuneration for the
year ended 30 June 2023 are provided in note 9 to the Financial
Statements in this annual report.

Board Nomination Committee (“BNC")

The Company established the BNC on 1 April 2012 with specific
written terms of reference in accordance with the requirement
of the Stock Exchange which deal clearly with its authority and
duties.

The principal role and functions of the BNC is to make
recommendations to the Board on the structure, size and
composition of the Board, to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy, to review the independence of INEDs, the
suitability of directors who will stand for re-election and directors’
continuous training and development programme, to formulate,
review and implement a policy for the nomination of directors
(including nomination procedures) and to formulate a policy
concerning board diversity, monitor the implementation of such
policy and to review the same, as appropriate. Detailed terms
of reference of the BNC is accessible on the Company’s website
at www.lamsoon.com and the Stock Exchange’'s website at
www.hkexnews.hk.
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Board Committees (continued)

Board Nomination Committee (“BNC") (continued)

The BNC comprised Messrs. KWEK Leng Hai (Chairman of the
BNC), LO Kai Yiu, Anthony, and Ms. HO Yuk Wai, Joan. Mr. LO Kai
Yiu, Anthony and Ms. HO Yuk Wai, Joan are INEDs of the Company
whilst Mr. KWEK Leng Hai is the Chairman of the Company.

During the year, two BNC meetings were held. The individual
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attendance of each member is as follows: RELEEZBEREIANT :
Number of
Attendance/
Number of
Meeting Held
HERE,
Name of Director BN HITERRHY
Mr. KWEK Leng Hai (Chairman) BS/ELE(FE) 2/2
Mr. LO Kai Yiu, Anthony BERUBSLE 2/2
Ms. HO Yuk Wai, Joan MEZE L+ 2/2

Work done during the year REFEZTHKZ T

- reviewed the structure, size, composition, diversity and
gender of the Board (including the mix of skills, knowledge,
experience, competences of directors, and the balance
between executive directors, non-executive directors
and INEDs) annually and for proposed changes of board
composition;

- reviewed and accessed the independence of INEDs of the
Company;

- reviewed and assessed the suitability of the directors
who stood for re-election at the annual general meeting
pursuant to the process and criteria as set out in the
nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”);

- reviewed the continuous training and development
programmes undertaken by directors to ensure that an
appropriate program is in place;

- reviewed the terms of reference of the BNC, the board
diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) and the
Nomination Policy;

- deliberated the statement relating to the BNC for inclusion
in the Corporate Governance Report; and

- reviewed the re-designation of the GMD position to GMD/
CEO.
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Board Committees (continued)
Board Nomination Committee (“BNC") (continued)
Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy. Pursuant to
the Board Diversity Policy, the Company recognizes and embraces
the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. The Company maintains that selection of candidates
for Board appointments will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service and the ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board. The BNC reviews the Board Diversity Policy
annually to ensure its continued effectiveness.

Assessment and selection of candidates for Board succession
will be made pursuant to the objectives of the Board Diversity
Policy. While conscious efforts are being taken to achieve board
diversity, new appointments are ultimately made on a merit basis
taking into account available and suitable candidates. With a view
to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the BNC
reviews annually the structure, size, composition and diversity of
the Board and the Board confirms that its composition complies
with the Listing Rules and reflects an appropriate mix of education
disciplines, professional experiences and skill set.

As at the date of the annual report, the Board consists of one
female member and six male members. Biographical details of
the current Directors are set out in the section of “Board of
Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report. The BNC
considered that the Board is sufficiently diverse in terms of gender
and it is not necessary to set numerical target and timeline for
board gender diversity for the time being.

As at 30 June 2023, the Group had a total of 1,634 employees,
the ratio of male and female in the workforce (including senior
management) is 57.53% and 42.47% respectively. The Board
is of the view that appropriate balance of gender diversity of
workforce is achieved taking into account the business sectors
and operational needs of the Group. The Company will continue
to take gender diversity into consideration during recruitment
process.
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Board Committees (continued)
Board Nomination Committee (“BNC") (continued)
Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted the Nomination Policy which serves as a
guiding mechanism and framework for the BNC on the process
for new appointments and re-appointments of directors, Group
Managing Director/Chief Executive Officer and board committee
members and their annual assessment.

The BNC reviews annually the Nomination Policy to ensure its
effectiveness and application and will update, amend and modify
as appropriate to ensure it continues to be relevant to needs of
the Company and is consistent with regulatory and corporate
governance requirements.

The Nomination Policy is accessible on the Company’s website at
www.lamsoon.com.

Board Audit and Risk Management Committee
(“BARMC")

The Company established the Board Audit Committee on 29
December 1998 with specific written terms of reference in
accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange which
deal clearly with its authority and duties. On 17 February 2016, the
Board has resolved to rename the Committee as Board Audit and
Risk Management Committee.

The BARMC oversees the financial reporting process, assesses the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial reporting,
risk management and internal control systems, oversees the
Company’s ESG matters including, among others, monitoring
the ESG reporting progress and reviewing the ESG report as
well as the ESG-related risks and issues. The BARMC meets with
the Company’'s external and internal auditors, and reviews their
audit plans, the internal audit programmes, the results of their
examinations as well as their evaluations of the risk management
and internal control systems. It also reviews directors’ interests in
contracts and connected transactions. The BARMC reviews the
Group's and the Company'’s financial statements and the auditors’
report thereon and submits its views to the Board. Detailed terms
of reference of the BARMC are accessible on the Company’s
website at www.lamsoon.com and the Stock Exchange's website
at www.hkexnews.hk.
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Board Committees (continved)

Board Audit and Risk Management Committee
("BARMC") (continued)

During the year, the BARMC comprised Messrs. LO Kai Yiu,
Anthony (Chairman of the BARMC), HUANG Lester Garson and
Ms. HO Yuk Wai, Joan. Mr. LO Kai Yiu, Anthony, Mr. HUANG
Lester Garson and Ms. HO Yuk Wai, Joan are INEDs of the

EEZES
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Company.
During the year, six BARMC meetings were held. The individual REAFER  HBITRRBEZREREEZSS
attendance of each member are as follows: 2% ERKEHEZERISAT :
Number of
Attendance/
Number of
Meeting Held
HERE
Name of Director EENS BITEBRRE
Mr. LO Kai Yiu, Anthony (Chairman) ERREE(EE) 6/6
Mr. HUANG Lester Garson ERASLE 6/6
Ms. HO Yuk Wai, Joan MEZE L+ 6/6

Work done during the year

108

reviewed the nature and scope of external audit, the
independence of external auditor and effectiveness of the
audit process and approved the external audit fee and the
engagement terms;

reviewed the interim financial report, the interim results
announcement, the annual accounts and the final results
announcement;

reviewed the external auditor’'s management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management
about accounting records, financial accounts or systems of
control, as well as management'’s response thereto;

reviewed and discussed with the management the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control system, including the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications, experience and training programmes;
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Board Committees (continued)

Board Audit and Risk Management Committee
("BARMC") (continued)

Work done during the year (continued)
- reviewed the Group's accounting policies and practices;
- reviewed and approved the annual internal audit plan;

- reviewed major findings of internal audit assignments and
the progress of implementation of remedial measures on
control issues identified;

- reviewed the natures and scope of services of the non-
assurance services provided by the external auditor to the
Group;

- reviewed the draft policy on non-assurance services;

- reviewed the effectiveness of the processes for financial
reporting and Listing Rules compliance of the Company;

- monitored the ESG reporting progress and reviewed the
ESG report of the Company as well as the ESG related risks
and issues;

- reviewed connected transactions entered into by the Group
or subsisting during the year;

- reviewed the terms of reference of the BARMC; and

- deliberated the statement relating to the BARMC for
inclusion in the Corporate Governance Report.

Directors’ Responsibilities for
Preparing the Financial Statements

The directors of the Company have acknowledged their
responsibility for preparing the financial statements for the year.
There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 135 to 144 of this
annual report.
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Auditors’ Remuneration and Auditor
Related Matters

The fees charged by the Group’s external auditors for the year
in respect of annual audit services amounted to HK$2,177,000
and those in respect of non-audit services (tax and other services)
amounted to HK$422,000.

Risk Management and Internal
Control

The risk management and internal control system is designed to
facilitate the effectiveness and efficiency of operations, safeguard
assets against unauthorised use and disposition, ensure the
maintenance of proper accounting records and the truth and
fairness of the financial statements, and ensure compliance with
relevant legislation and regulations. It provides reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and
manages rather than eliminates risks associated with its business
activities.

The Board, recognising its responsibilities in ensuring sound
risk management and internal controls, has developed a set of
Enterprise Risk Management framework (“ERM framework”) for
the Group and set forth in its policy and procedures to assist in:

- identifying the enterprise risks faced by the Group in the
operating environment as well as evaluating the impact of
such risks identified;

- developing the necessary measures for managing these
risks; and

- monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness and adequacy
of such measures.

The ERM framework consists of interactive processes for each of
our business units to constantly identify and assess risks in terms of
their potential impact and probability of occurrence, as well as to
establish and implement relevant procedures and internal controls
for risk mitigation, ongoing monitoring and periodic reporting by
management to ensure that residual risks after taking into account
risk mitigating measures fall within the risk appetite and tolerance
set by the Board.
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Risk Management and Internal
Control (continued)

The Board has entrusted the BARMC with the responsibility to
oversee the implementation of the ERM framework of the Group.
In discharging this responsibility, the BARMC, assisted by the
Group Internal Audit Department (“GIAD"):

- ensures that new and emerging enterprise risks are
promptly identified by management;

= assesses the adequacy of action plans and control systems
developed to manage these risks;

- monitors the implementation of the action plans and the
effectiveness and adequacy of the control systems; and

- ensures the Group's risk register is up-to-date and risk
profile reports are furnished by management to the BARMC
review.

These on-going processes have been in place, and reviewed
periodically by the BARMC to ensure their effectiveness,
supplemented by other reports from GIAD on the Group’s internal
control and risk management findings.

The controls built into the risk management framework are
intended to manage and not expected to eliminate all risks of
failure to achieve business objectives. These controls provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement of management and financial information or against
financial losses and fraud.

The Board, through the BARMC, has conducted an annual review
on the Group'’s risk management and internal control systems and
considers that it is adequate and effective covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls,
with a view to ensuring that resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions, as
well as those relating to the Company’s ESG performance and
reporting are adequate. The Board is satisfied that the Group
has fully complied with the provisions on risk management and
internal controls as set out in the CG Code.
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Risk Management and Internal
Control (continued)

Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information

The Company has established and implemented relevant
procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, including restricting employee
access to inside information on a need-to-know basis and ensuring
that those who need to know understand the obligation of
keeping the information confidential and refrain from dealing in
the relevant securities. All inside information is disclosed to the
public if and when required pursuant to the requirements under
the Securities and Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules and
kept strictly confidential before disclosure.

Whistleblowing Policy

To foster a productive workforce and maintain high standards of
business ethics, we have established a whistleblowing policy that
outlines confidential and anonymous channels for employees to
voice their concerns, including an explanation of how records
will be maintained and stored. The Group is committed to high
corporate governance and probity standards as well as ethical
and compliant business practices, and encourages reporting of
concerns and actual or suspected misconduct, malpractice or
non-compliance by any staff and/or external parties in any matter
related to the Group. A whistleblower will be protected from
retaliation, adverse employment action or legal action by the
Group where the report is made in good faith.

All information received shall be investigated by Group Internal
Audit or other relevant persons instructed by senior management,
with the findings reported to senior management and the BARMC
of the Company. Management may take disciplinary action against
any persons found to have committed misconduct, malpractice or
non-compliance, and the matter may be reported and information
provided to the police or relevant authorities/governing or
professional bodies as the findings may call for.

Our whistleblowing channels are:

Email: whistleblowing@lamsoon.com

Letter: Group Internal Audit
Lam Soon Hong Kong Limited,
21 Dai Fu Street, Tai Po Industrial Estate, Tai Po,
New Territories, Hong Kong
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Anti-corruption

Enforcing integrity and transparency across our operations,
through anti-corruption, business ethics and stringent policies, are
imperative in building trust, creating a positive impact and being
a good corporate citizen. As we uphold our corporate governance
values, the Group acknowledges the importance of anti-corrupt
behaviours in establishing itself as a sincere and reputed industry
player. Our contractors and suppliers will also be required to
sign as appropriate prior to the engagement with us the code
of conduct on business ethics, covering environmental and
governance standards, to ensure they abide by the similar code.

The Group also disseminates the staff handbook and code of
conduct to all employees. We are dedicated to upholding integrity
and honesty in all our operations, and have adopted zero tolerance
towards fraud, corruption and unethical actions. The Group has
implemented procedures on anti-corruption concerning offering
or accepting gifts and gratuities, which require employees to
consider the appropriateness of the giving and receiving of gifts
and hospitality. All employees are required to become acquainted
with and to abide by these policies and procedures. In addition,
our Group has in place training, management systems and internal
controls to prevent corruption from occurring.

During the year, we were not aware of any material non-
compliance with laws and regulations regarding anti-corruption.

Shareholders’ Rights

The Company has only one class of shares, all shares have the same
voting rights and are entitled to the dividends declared.

(a) Rights and procedures for shareholders to
convene extraordinary general meetings
("EGM")

Subject to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Directors shall on
the requisition of shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholder(s)”) representing at least 5% of the total
voting rights of all the shareholder(s) having a right to vote
at general meetings of the Company, forthwith proceed
duly to convene an EGM of the Company.

The requests must state the general nature of the business
to be dealt with at the meeting and may include the text
of a resolution that may properly be moved and is/are
intended to be moved at the meeting. The request must be
signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the registered
office of the Company for the attention of the Company
Secretary in hard copy form.

RES

RMBAERRES - BFRERRBEBERM
BERFEBENHGEREWRE MEHLERV(E
- AEEEFEURKARFEELARNME
Rt - REBERSEEEREEBRNER - &
MRAMRESTAERELEBERERE - A
BNTHXEERNEEN - RMNEAEHNHEE
BATEREMNSEZANERBREREIEE
BRENBHEBERTATA  URRLMAETEE
HYZERY o

AEEOHZBETREETFMRITATA -
BRMBIHAEEBLERITHENHE - B
FFERRTERTARNZRIZEE - £&
B EZRY RN ENTRAERRES
B BIRZREEREIRYERAGNEE
o 2RETARERBTREBERERF ° It
S RAMEREERAE - EERGERA
EHIER - UBIERTEAE o

RAFER  RMELERREIMERERRES
EREREBR

RERER

RATERE—EERNRE - ARG AERHEE
BRERE  THRUBERZKRE

(a) BREBMBRREFRIAE(RREFRK
B zRARRERF

BEB (R ARG (B BEHIF622E)
EEARARARR(BRRNEZESR
BERRAS LRERANBARRESR
D5RMRR2ER » BEHHEARMAD
ARREBIRE 2T

BRERGLARPAFERE LEREN
EBN-RUEERTEETEZAS L
RELBRTREIZAST LBRRE
XA - BEERLEARERESREL
DA R ERERRFR 2 MM EE
BTRAWE -

MIBE(BRB)ERRAA | B _=FFH 13



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERBES

Shareholders’ Rights (continued)

(b)

114

Rights and procedures for shareholders to make
proposals at general meetings

(i)

(ii)

Rights and procedures for a shareholder to
propose a person for election as a director are
as follows:

Pursuant to Article 86 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, shareholder(s) may send a notice
in writing of the intention to propose a person for
election as a director and notice in writing by that
person of his willingness to be elected shall have
been delivered to the Company’s registered office
provided that the minimum length of the period
during which such notices are given, shall be at least
seven days and that the period for lodgement of the
notices shall commence no earlier than the day after
the despatch of the notice of the meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than seven days
prior to the date of such meeting.

Rights and procedures for proposing resolution
to be put forward at a general meeting:

Shareholder(s) can submit a written requisition to
move a resolution at an annual general meeting
("AGM") if they:

- represent at least 2.5% of the total voting
rights of all shareholders who have a right to
vote on the resolution at the AGM; or

- at least 50 shareholders who have a right to
vote on the resolution at the AGM.
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Dividend Policy

Pursuant to the HKEX Code, the Board has adopted a dividend
policy (the “Dividend Policy”) which is sets out as follow:

- The Company intends to create long term value for its
shareholders through maintaining a balance between
dividend distribution, preserving adequate liquidity and
reserve to meet its working capital requirements, and
capturing future growth opportunities.

- Pursuant to this, the Board may propose/declare the
payment of dividend(s) after taking into account the current
financial performance of the Company, the future financial
requirements of the Company and any other factors the
Board may deem relevant.

- The Board may also decide on the frequency of dividend
payment and further declare/recommend any special
distributions. Dividend(s) may be in the form of cash,
shares, distribution in-specie or any other form as the Board
may determine.

The Board may review the Dividend Policy from time to time and
update, amend, modify and/or cancel the Dividend Policy at any
time in the interest of the Company and its shareholders.

Communication with Shareholders

The Board has adopted the shareholders communication
policy (the “Shareholder Communication Policy”) with aims
to ensure the shareholders and investment community have a
good understanding of the Group’s business performance and
strategies. The Company uses a range of communication tools
to ensure its shareholders are kept well informed of key business
imperatives. These include AGM, annual report, interim report,
various notices, announcements and circulars.

The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
the shareholders and in particular, through AGM, it provides an
opportunity for its shareholders to seek clarification and to obtain
a better understanding of the Group’s performance. Shareholders
are encouraged to meet and communicate with the Board at the
general meetings and to vote on all resolutions. The Chairman
of the Board and the chairman of the Board committees will
endeavour to meet the shareholders at the general meeting to
answer any questions raised by the shareholders.
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Communication with Shareholders

(continued)

During the year, the Chairman of the Board and the chairman of
the respective BRC, BNC and BARMC, the Board members and
the external auditor attended the annual general meeting of the
Company held in November 2022 to respond to questions from
shareholders.

The Company shall communicate other information to
Shareholders on a need basis by way of announcement which
will be posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. Other than AGM, EGM shall be held pursuant to
relevant rules and regulations if required. Shareholders shall
receive explanatory circulars and proxy forms relating to the EGMs.
Proxy arrangements for the general meetings are in place for
shareholders who are unable to attend the meetings in person.

Shareholders and the investment community shall be provided
with designated contacts, email addresses and enquiry lines of the
Company, which are available on the Company’s website, in order
to enable them to make any query in respect of the Company or to
make a request for the Company’s information to the extent such
information is publicly available.

Shareholders’ questions about their shareholdings should be
directed to the Company’s Share Registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Board has conducted a review of the implementation and
effectiveness of the Shareholder Communication Policy during
the year ended 30 June 2023 and, having considered the various
channels of communication in place, was satisfied that the
implementation of the policy was effective.
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Investor Relations

In order to enhance communication between the Company
and investors/analysts, senior management members will hold
meetings with investors/analysts upon request as and when the
need arises.

Investors are welcome to send email directly to the Company
Secretary’s email at comsec@lamsoon.com or browse the
Company’s website for the latest release and financial
information.

A dedicated Investor Relations section is available on the

Company’s website (https://www.lamsoon.com). Information on
the Company’'s website is updated on a regular basis.

Constitutional Documents

There was no change in the Articles of Association of the Company
during the year ended 30 June 2023.
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The directors submit their annual report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2023.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company and the principal
activities of the subsidiaries are set out on pages 249 to 251.

Principal Subsidiaries

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out on
pages 249 to 251.

Business Review

The business review of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2023
are provided in the Chairman’s Statement, Review of Operations
and Environmental, Social and Governance Report of this annual
report.

Financial Statements

The profit of the Group for the year, the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 30 June 2023 and the Group’s
cash flows and statement of changes in equity for the year ended
are set out in the financial statements on pages 145 to 248.

Dividends

The Directors are recommending to the shareholders for approval
at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on Monday,
13 November 2023 a final dividend of HK$0.2 per share totaling
approximately HK$48,671,000. This, together with the interim
dividend of HK$0.10 per share paid on Wednesday, 22 March
2023, will amount to a total dividend of HK$0.3 per share for
the year (2022: interim dividend of HK$0.15 and final dividend of
HK$0.33 per share). Subject to shareholders’ approval, the final
dividend will be payable on Tuesday, 5 December 2023 to the
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members on
Tuesday, 21 November 2023.
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Closure of Register of Members

For ascertaining shareholders’ right to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting:

Closure dates of Register of Members
(both days inclusive)

8 November 2023 (Wednesday) to
13 November 2023 (Monday)

Latest time to lodge transfers 4:30 p.m. on 7 November 2023

(Tuesday)
Record date 13 November 2023
(Monday)
Annual General Meeting 13 November 2023
(Monday)

For ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed final
dividend*:

Closure dates of Register of Members
(both days inclusive)

20 November 2023 (Monday) to
21 November 2023 (Tuesday)

Latest time to lodge transfers 4:30 p.m. on 17 November 2023

(Friday)

Record date 21 November 2023
(Tuesday)

Proposed final dividend payment date 5 December 2023
(Tuesday)

(*subject to shareholders’ approval at the annual general meeting)

During the periods of the closure of Register of Members, no
share transfers will be registered. For registration, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s Share Registrars and Transfer
Office — Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at
Shops 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong before the relevant latest time to lodge
transfers.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 21 to the financial statements.

Equity-Linked Agreements

Other than the Executive Share Option Scheme 2013 (the “ESOS
2013") of the Company as disclosed in this Directors’ Report,
no equity-linked agreement was entered into by the Company
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year
ended 30 June 2023.
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Directors
The directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

KWEK Leng Hai, Chairman*

WONG Cho Fai, Group Managing Director/
Chief Executive Officer**

CHEW Seong Aun*

WHANG Sun Tze, Ph.D.*

LO Kai Yiu, Anthony*

HUANG Lester Garson, SBS, JP*

HO Yuk Wai, Joan*

* Non-executive director
Etd Executive director
i Independent non-executive director

In accordance with Article 84 of the Company’s Articles of
Association and Code B.2.2 of the CG Code, Messrs. KEWK Leng
Hai, CHEW Seong Aun and HUANG Lester Garson shall retire from
office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the
“AGM") and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at
the AGM.

Directors of Subsidiaries

The names of all directors who have served on the boards of
the subsidiaries of the Company during the financial year ended
30 June 2023 or during the period from 1 July 2023 up to
the date of this report is available on the Company’s website
(https://www.lamsoon.com).

Directors’ Service Contracts

No director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries, within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangement or Contracts

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which
the Company or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a director of the Company
or an entity connected with a director had a material interest,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Permitted Indemnity

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every director
of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the
assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he may
sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office
or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company maintains directors
and officers liability insurance, which gives appropriate cover for
any legal action brought against its directors. The level of the
coverage is reviewed annually.

INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Continuing Connected Transactions
Master Services Agreement

A master services agreement (the ‘“Master Services Agreement’’)
dated 3 July 2020 was entered into by Lam Soon (Hong Kong)
Limited (the ""Company’’, together with its subsidiaries, the
""Group’’) with GuoLine Group Management Company Pte. Ltd.
("GGMC") for the provision by the latter of management services
including, among other things, overview and/or oversight of
businesses and operations, investment management and financial
management disciplines, treasury and risk management, key
managerial recruitment and retention as well as other operating
practices and procedures, accounting, corporate advisory, legal,
company secretarial and other services (the “Services”).

(GGMC and Hong Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad (“HLCM")
or other Hong Leong Group company(ies) as may be agreed by
the parties from time to time are referred to as “Service Provider”;
the Company and its subsidiaries are referred to as “Service
Recipients”).

The Master Services Agreement is for a term of three financial
years from 1 July 2020 to 30 June 2023.

The fee payable under the Master Service Agreement comprise:

1. a monthly fee (the “Monthly Fee”) as agreed from time
to time between such Service Recipient and the Service
Provider and is currently agreed to be approximately
HK$100,000 per month; and

2. an annual fee (the “Annual Fee"”) equal to 3% of the annual
profit before tax of such Service Recipient as shown in its
audited profit and loss account for the relevant financial
year, subject to appropriate adjustment (for example, to
avoid double counting of profit, if any).
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INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)
Master Services Agreement (continued)

The yearly total fees, being the sum of the Monthly Fee, the
Annual Fee and the total amounts of any fees paid or payable by
the Group to any Hong Leong Group companies for services of a
similar nature as the Services, are subject to annual cap of HK$28
million (the “Annual Cap”) for each of the three financial years
ending 30 June 2023.

As at the date of the announcement of the Company made on
3 July 2020 (the “July 2020 Announcement”) relating to the
Master Services Agreement, GGMC (a wholly-owned subsidiary
of GuoLine Capital Assets Limited (“GCAL")) was indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of HLCM, the ultimate holding company and
a substantial shareholder of the Company at the time, and thus
GGMC was an associate of a connected person (as defined
under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)) of
the Company under the Listing Rules. On 16 April 2021, GCAL
replaced HLCM to become the ultimate holding company and a
substantial shareholder of the Company following the completion
of an internal restructuring exercise with no change of ultimate
beneficial owners, and thus GGMC remains as an associate of a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules during
the year. The transactions under the Master Services Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions for the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and the relevant disclosure
requirements have been complied with.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company had
reviewed the transaction under the Master Services Agreement
during the year and confirmed that:

(1) the transaction under the Master Services Agreement for
the year was entered into:

- in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

- on normal commercial terms or better; and

- according to the agreement governing them and
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.
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INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)
Master Services Agreement (continued)

(2) the aggregate services fees paid and payable by the
Group under the Master Services Agreement for the year
amounted to approximately HK$3,917,000 which did not
exceed the Annual Cap of HK$28 million as disclosed in the
July 2020 Announcement.

New master services agreement was entered into by the Company
with GGMC on 30 June 2023 for a term of three financial years
from 1 July 2023 to 30 June 2026.

Auditor’s Review

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s
auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions regarding the Master Services Agreement
mentioned above in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified letter
containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed above in accordance
with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter
has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Connected Transactions
Grant of Share Options — ESOS 2013

On 24 August 2021, the Company granted options in respect of
a total of 8,700,000 shares of the Company (the “Options”) to
the Group Managing Director/Chief Executive Officer, directors of
certain the Company’s subsidiaries and other eligible executives of
the Company (the “Grantees”) pursuant to the ESOS 2013, subject
to acceptance by the grantees.

The ESOS 2013 provides that the exercise of the Options would be/
may be satisfied by transfer of existing shares to the grantees. The
Group Managing Director/Chief Executive Officer of the Company
and directors of the Company’s subsidiaries (the “Connected
Grantees”) are connected persons of the Company under the
Listing Rules. The grants of Options to the Connected Grantees
constituted connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Based on the exercise price, the aggregate consideration payable
by Group Managing Director/Chief Executive Officer to acquire
the shares of the Company upon exercise of the Options will be
HK$37,775,000. As the applicable percentage ratios in respect
of Options to Group Managing Director/Chief Executive Officer
exceed 0.1% but are less 5%, such grant of Option is subject
to the announcement requirements pursuant to Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. The applicable percentage ratios in respect of
the grant of Option to each of the Connected Grantees who are
directors at subsidiary level only are below 1%. Such grants of
Options are fully exempt from the reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.
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INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Connected Transactions (continued)
Grant of Share Options — ESOS 2013 (continued)

The purpose of granting the Options to the Grantees pursuant to
the ESOS 2013 are to (i) aligning their long-term interests with
those of the Company’s shareholders; (i) encourage and motivate
them to assume greater responsibility for performance of the
businesses they manage; and (iii) retain high calibre executives that
are valuable to the Company.

Save as disclosed above, there are no other transactions of
the Company which require disclosure in the annual report in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

Management Contracts

Except for the Master Services Agreement disclosed in the section
of “Interests in Contracts and Connected Transactions” above, no
contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group was
entered into or subsisted during the year.

Directors’ Interests in Competing
Business

None of the directors is interested in any business apart from the
Group'’s business, which is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group.

Directors’ Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 30 June 2023, the directors of the Company have the
following interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code") set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules:
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Directors’ Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

(continued)

(A)

126

EERRG - HERORE
FZER @

The Company (A) ERH
Long positions in shares/underlying shares B HEBRG A
Approximate
percentage of
total number of
Number ordinary shares
of shares/ of the Company
underlying in issue
Nature of shares held HAQRE BT
Name of director interest BERG, Total TEREH 2
EEpnA EENE HERG A e BABED K
KWEK Leng Hai Personal 2,300,000 2,300,000 0.95%
HTHE A
WONG Cho Fai Personal 2,500,000 Note 1 2,500,000 1.03%
=AEE fEA Mzt 1
WHANG Sun Tze Personal 27,523,743
BErE A
Corporate 19,326 Note 2 27,543,069 11.32%
NH Hizt2
LO Kai Yiu, Anthony Personal 200,000 200,000 0.08%
ZERUE 1PN
HUANG Lester Garson Family 150,000 150,000 0.06%
Notes: BtaE -

1.

The interests disclosed represent the personal interests
of Mr. WONG Cho Fai in 2,500,000 underlying shares
in respect of the share options granted to him by the
Company exercisable within an exercise period of up to 30
months following the vesting of the options.

The interests disclosed represent the corporate interests
of Dr. WHANG Sun Tze in 18,457 ordinary shares and 869
ordinary shares in the Company held by SGR Investment
Company, Limited (“SGR") and T.C. Whang & Company
(Private) Limited (“T.C. & Co.") respectively. Dr. WHANG
Sun Tze holds 95.41% and 59.52% interests in SGR and
T.C. & Co. respectively.
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Directors’ Interests in Shares, EENKRT - HERAORE
Underlying Shares and Debentures 25 2R ()

(continued)

(B) Associated corporations (B) #EEHEE
Long positions in shares/underlying shares B HBRGZFE

Approximate

percentage of

total number

of ordinary

shares of

Number of associated

shares/ corporation

underlying in issue

Name of associated Name of Nature of shares held EHEBEEE BT

corporation director interest BERSR Total TEREH

HEZEAE BEEn EEtE HEROEHE FoH SR

Guoline Capital Assets KWEK Leng Hai Personal 841,000 841,000 2.62%
Limited $<2E fBA

Guoco Group Limited  KWEK Leng Hai Personal 3,800,775 3,800,775 1.16%
BEEEBRATE BLE A

Guocoland Limited KWEK Leng Hai Personal 35,290,914 35,290,914 2.98%
BEREtEERLAT HIE BA

WHANG Sun Tze Family 66,600 66,600 0.01%
L Rik

Guocoland (Malaysia) KWEK Leng Hai Personal 226,800 226,800 0.03%
Berhad BLE BA

The Rank Group Plc KWEK Leng Hai Personal 1,026,209 1,026,209 0.26%
HLE A

Save as disclosed herein, none of the directors of the
Company had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

BRAXFREE)  BEXTMAQFAE
ERAQARAEFEMEEEE(RER
ZRPERGIEXVEZER) BEAR
BESZRPERPIEI2RB[EMRZ
B AEZROIEERA P 2
KERD - HERORESRRERE
SRANSARBRABRA 2L -
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Share Options
ESOS 2013

The ESOS 2013 was approved by the shareholders of the Company
at the extraordinary general meeting held on 23 April 2013 and
took effect on 25 April 2013 (“Adoption Date”). Summary of
details of the ESOS 2013 is set out below:

The purpose of the ESOS 2013 is as follows:

(i) to align the long term interests of any executive or director
of the Group, who is eligible to participate in the ESOS
2013 (“Eligible Executives”) with those of the Shareholders
and encourage Eligible Executives to assume greater
responsibility for the performance of the business that they
manage;

(i) to motivate Eligible Executives towards strategic business
objectives;

(iii)  to reward Eligible Executives with an equity stake in the
success of the Group; and

(iv)  to make the total compensation package more competitive
in order to attract, retain and motivate high caliber
executives.

To be eligible for participation in the ESOS 2013, a person must be
at least eighteen (18) years of age and:

(i) be an executive of a member of the Group and has been
confirmed in service; or

(i) be a director of member of the Group.

The Board may at its absolute discretion select and identify suitable
Eligible Executives to be offered options.

The total number of shares which may be issued and/or transferred
by the Trust upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the ESOS 2013 and any other share option scheme shall not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the Company’s total number of shares
in issue at the Adoption Date of the ESOS 2013, i.e. 24,335,416.

IR 10 SRR
2013 P R B REST &

2003 RARBENER-_ZE—=FNA=-+=
HREBERBHIAELERRME R
—=ZFMAZTER(HRMBE D EM 22013
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2013 M RBEESTTENENOT

(i) ERERAFEEHRSE2013RDDERE
AEZITHAERES ([AERTHA
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ERTBRABHREMEE ZEBHX
BAEBEREMRE

(i) HEHEERTHRAEEEBXRBRELAH

(i) BABRASHE 35 52 B ¥ 5= [ 9 A 3h 4F th B RK
ZRERITRAR K

(iv) EREHFMNTBEERS - UEE B8
RESHSERNTRAS

HEERSHEH2013ROABEFEZALLE
Fm+N18)ER -

(i) AEBRERRZTHRABLCHER
REBRE ; X

(i) REEHERARZES-

ExEURHEHPEERRERERESZE
BERITBRABRTRBEE -

RIB2013R MDA BETE N HE MR D RIERE
SR FRE I ERBERETEE T
R/ BEBRAETEE2ROEBE  GHAE
BEAQNTRRMNACBEITROEE Z10% -
24,335,416 °
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Share Options (continued)
ESOS 2013 (continued)

The maximum entitlement for any eligible executive in respect of
the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
options granted and to be granted in any 12 months period does
not exceed 1% of the Company’s total number of shares in issue.

The Board may at its discretion determine the exercise price of an
option under the ESOS 2013 provided that the exercise price so
fixed shall not be less than greatest of (a) the average closing price
of a share as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding
the day of offer of such option; (b) the closing price of a share as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the day
of offer of such option, which must be a business day; and (c) the
nominal value of a share ®ote,

A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of
the share option within 30 days (or such longer period of time as
may be permitted by the Board at its discretion) from the date of
making such offer.

The ESOS 2013 will remain in force for a period of 10 years
commencing on 25 April 2013. The ESOS 2013 expired on 24 April
2023 (the "Expiry Date”) and no option has been granted under
the ESOS 2013 during the period between 1 July 2022 and the
Expiry Date.

Note:

The concept of par value of a share was abolished with effect from 3 March
2014 pursuant to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Share Options (continued) BRDRIBRE @)
ESOS 2013 (continued) 2013 RBBRERTEI (&)

As at 1 July 2022, there were 7,900,000 outstanding options R-ZE-—F+A—H RBIE2013RHTHERE
pursuant to the ESOS 2013. sH&IE7,900,0008% 15 °

During the year, no share options were granted pursuant to the RAFEER » RB2013RMORBREFTTERER
ESOS 2013. Details of the share options as at 30 June 2023 are as NRBEEYE W= =FEXA=+H &

follows: DRBEZFBUOT ¢
Number of share options
RORBEHE
Exercised
/Lapsed
/cancelled
during Exercise
As at Granted the year Asat  price per
1 July during REEE 30 June share
2022 the year AT 2023 BROHEE
Date of grant Grantees R-B-ZF REEE /K% R-B-=# HK$ Notes
BREAH BRA tA-H AR JEE  AA=tH ks Mzt
24 August 2021 WONG Cho Fai 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000 15.11 1&2
(Group Managing Director/
Chief Executive Officer)
“E--FN\A-+MA EEE(SEESELE/
THER)
24 August 2021 Directors of the Company’s 3,600,000 - (1,200,000) 2,400,000 15.11 1,2&3
subsidiaries
“EC-FNAZTOAE FARMBARMNES
24 August 2021 Other eligible executives 1,800,000 - - 1,800,000 15.11 1,28&3
ZEC-FEN\AZtMA HUEERTHAR
Total 7,900,000 - (1,200,000) 6,700,000

2y
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Share Options (continued)

ESOS 2013 (continued)

Notes:

1. Vesting of the options is subject to the achievement of the
prescribed financial and performance targets and contribution
criteria to be met by the grantees for the financial periods from
1 July 2020 to 30 June 2024. The closing price of the shares
immediately before the date on which such options were granted
was HK$15.

2. At the end of the relevant performance period, the Board
Remuneration Committee of the Company shall determine, at
its discretion, the extent of achievement of the financial and
performance targets and contribution criteria in respect of that
period, and decide on the vesting of the options and the number
of shares comprised in the vested options. Thereafter, the grantees
shall be notified of the vesting of the options and shall be able to
exercise the vested options within an exercise period of up to 30
months following the vesting of the options.

3. The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year include the Group Managing Director/Chief
Executive Officer of the Company as disclosed above. Among the
above granted share options, the remaining four highest paid
individuals were granted 2,800,000 share options in aggregate
under the ESOS 2013.

Saved as disclosed herein, no other options were vested, exercised,
lapsed or cancelled under the ESOS 2013 during the year.
Accordingly, the number of outstanding options was 6,700,000 at
30 June 2023.

Save for above, certain other subsidiaries of GCAL, the ultimate
holding company of the Company during the year, maintain share
option schemes or plans or arrangements which subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year, under which
eligible directors of the Company may be granted share options
for acquisition of shares of respective companies concerned. No
person, being a director of the Company during the year, held
shares acquired in pursuance of certain aforesaid share option
schemes or plans.

Apart from above, at no time during the year was the Company,
its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company or any other body corporate.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests

As at 30 June 2023, the following shareholders (other than
directors of the Company whose interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as disclosed above)
had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

FTERRZERER

MRZEBEZ=F<A=1+H REZBSRBEK
BIEE336IRMEMBR 2B EMAAME > T
BRRREXFMARRABDVEBMFERLTZR
HDREERGDT 2 ARRORBERSG 2 ER)
BEARATARGIEERAP 2 A RO KRE
BRI 2

Approximate

Number of percentage

shares held of interest

BEZRHOHE RHZZBIEIHL

Guoline Capital Assets Limited (“GCAL") 156,114,659 64.15%
QUEK Leng Chan ZB< & 156,114,659 64.15%
Hong Leong Investment Holdings Pte. Limited (“HLIH") 156,114,659 64.15%
Davos Investment Holdings Private Limited (“Davos”) 156,114,659 64.15%
KWEK Leng Kee 156,114,659 64.15%

Note:

The interests comprised (i) 140,008,659 ordinary shares in the Company
held by Guoline International Limited (“GIL"); (ii) 6,781,000 ordinary
shares in the Company held by Richly Choice Development (PTC) Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company; and (iii) 9,325,000 underlying
shares of the Company of other unlisted derivatives held by Oceanease
Limited.

GIL was a wholly-owned subsidiary of GCAL. Oceanease Limited was a
wholly-owned subsidiary of GuocoEquity Assets Limited which in turn was
a wholly-owned subsidiary of GGL. GGL was 71.88% owned by Guoline
Overseas Limited (“GOL") which in turn was a wholly-owned subsidiary
of GCAL. By virtue of Section 316(2) of the SFO, Mr. QUEK Leng Chan
held 49.11% interest in GCAL. HLIH held 34.49% interest in GCAL. Mr.
KWEK Leng Kee held 41.92% interest in Davos which in turn held 33.59%
interest in HLIH.

All the interests disclosed under this section were long positions in
the ordinary shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed herein, no other person (other than directors of
the Company) has an interest or a short position in the shares and
underlying shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

HiEE -

ZHEFEBHE() Guoline International Limited ([ GILJ)
BBERARRQT140,008,659R LB 2 5 (NAA
A2 EEM B2 FRichly Choice Development (PTC)
LimitedEFBRA D F6,781,000REBER 2R &
(iii) Oceanease LimitedEBEAMIE L HITET EIFH
ZRNF]9,325,000 8 R M 1D 2 RS o
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Update on Director’s Information

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the change in
information on the Company’s director is set out below:

Mr. Lo Kai Yiu, Anthony has resigned as an independent non-
executive director and ceased to be the member of Board
Sustainability Committee of Top Glove Corporation Bhd., a
company listed on Bursa Malaysia and Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited, on 3 October 2022.

Mr. Chew Seong Aun has stepping down as a non-executive
director of GuocolLand Limited with effect from 1 April 2023.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company'’s Listed Shares

During the year, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as
the trustee for a trust set up for the purpose of acquiring shares
of the Company to satisfy the exercise of options which may be
granted to the Executive Share Option Scheme adopted on 23 April
2013, purchased 108,000 shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange at a total consideration of HK$1,064,000.

Save as disclosed above, during the year, the Company did not
redeem any of its listed shares and neither did the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchase or sell any of the Company’s listed
shares.

Major Customers and Suppliers

Total sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for less
than 30% of the Group’s revenue for the year.

Total purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted
for less than 30% of the Group’s purchases for the year.
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Sufficiency of Public Float

At all times during the year and up to 1 September 2023, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
Listing Rules, based on the information that is publicly available to
the Company and within the knowledge of the directors.

Auditors

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG
as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

By Order of the Board
KWEK Leng Hai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 1 September 2023
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KPMG

Independent auditor’s report
to the members of Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Lam
Soon (Hong Kong) Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(“the Group”) set out on pages 145 to 248, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2023,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 30 June 2023 and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters

FAREFTSE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional EEETEEERERPANEZALE  AEEAR
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the B ARV ETRAEEMNSIE - &=
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These EEARME T EREESBRREEEZRE
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the EITEEY BREFSHESEEEEHERNS
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our =

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Revenue recognition

Refer to note 5 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 180 and 181

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Sales of flour, edible oil and home care products are
recognised as revenue when the control of the products
are transferred to the Group’s customers according to
the terms of the sales and purchase agreements entered
into between the Group and its customers.

Revenue is recognised when the control of the products
is transferred to the Group’s customers.

The Group trades mainly with distributors and
supermarkets and has a large volume of individual
transactions which increases the risk of error in
recognising revenue.

We identified revenue recognition as a key audit
matter because revenue is one of the key performance
indicators of the Group which could create an incentive
for management to record revenue inappropriately to
meet targets or expectations and because the large
transaction volume increases the possibility of errors in
recognising revenue.

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of revenue
included the following:

o gaining an understanding of and assessing the
design, implementation and operating effectiveness
of key internal controls over the completeness,
existence and accuracy and timing of revenue
recognition;

o challenging the revenue recognition policies
adopted by the Group by making inquiries of
management and inspecting a sample of sales and
purchase agreements to understand the terms of the
transactions with reference to the requirements of
the prevailing accounting standards;

o assessing the existence and identity of a sample
of new customers of the Group during the year
by performing background searches on these
customers;

o comparing sales records for a sample of sales
transactions recorded during the year with relevant
underlying documentation, which included sales
invoices and goods delivery notes with evidence of
the customers’ receipt of the goods and the date of
receipt of the goods by the customers;

o identifying significant sales returns from the sales
ledger after the year end and inspecting the
underlying documentation in relation to these
sales returns to assess if the related adjustments to
revenue had been accounted for in the appropriate
accounting period;
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Key audit matters (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

FARETEEH @

Refer to note 5 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 180 and 181

(continued)

The Key Audit Matter (continued)

How the matter was addressed in our audit (continued)

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of revenue
included the following: (continued)

MIE(EB)ARQR | =

assessing, on a sample basis, whether specific
revenue transactions around the financial year end
had been recognised in the appropriate financial
period in accordance with the terms of sale as
set out in the sales and purchase agreements by
comparing details of these transactions with sales
invoices and goods delivery notes with evidence of
the customers’ receipt of the goods and the date of
receipt of the goods by the customers; and

selecting a sample of journal entries affecting
revenue recognised during the year, adopting
specific risk-based criteria, and comparing the details
of these adjustments with the related underlying
documentation.
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Key audit matters (continued)

Valuation of property, plant and equipment (“PP&E")

FAREENTEEH @

Refer to note 12 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 163 and 164

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The carrying amount of the Group’s PP&E as at 30 June
2023 was HK$771 million, representing 23% of the
Group’s total assets.

Management has determined cash-generating unit
(“CGU") as the smallest identifiable group of assets that
generates cash inflows that are largely independent of
the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets.
Management reviews the performance of individual
CGU to identify if there are any impairment indicators
on the allocated assets of the CGUs. The current
economic environment in the Mainland China and Hong
Kong has continued to put pressure on the performance
of the Group’s food business segment. In view of
the decrease in the profitability in the food business
segment of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2023,
management considered that indicators of impairment
of the related PP&E existed as at 30 June 2023. Where
impairment indicators are identified, management
performs an impairment assessment of the CGUs by
determining the recoverable amount of the CGUs,
which is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use, and then comparing the carrying value
of the CGUs with the recoverable amount. Based on the
impairment assessment performed by management, no
impairment loss on PP&E was recognised in profit or loss
for the year ended 30 June 2023.

We identified the impairment assessment of PP&E as
a key audit matter because of the significance of the
carrying amount of PP&E to the consolidated financial
statements and because of, for the value in use
assessment, the determination of key assumptions used
in the discounted cash flow forecasts, including future
revenue growth rates, future material costs growth rates
and discount rates are subject to a significant degree of
judgement and could be subject to management bias.

Our audit procedures to assess the impairment of PP&E
relating to the food business segment included the
following:

o assessing and challenging the management’s
impairment assessment, which included evaluating
the allocation of assets to CGUs and the indicators
of impairment with reference to the requirements of
the prevailing accounting standards;

o challenging the key assumptions adopted by
management in the discounted cash flow forecasts
and comparing the key assumptions used,
including future revenue growth rates and future
material costs growth rates by referring to the
historical financial performance of each CGU and
management’s budgets and forecasts;

o with the assistance of our internal valuation
specialists, evaluating the methodology applied by
management in the preparation of discounted cash
flow forecasts with reference to the requirements of
the prevailing accounting standards and assessing
the discount rates adopted in the discounted
cash flow forecasts by benchmarking against the
companies in the same industry and external market
data;

o obtaining a sensitivity analysis of the key
assumptions adopted in the discounted cash flow
forecasts prepared by management and assessing
the impact of changes in the key assumptions
to the conclusion reached in the impairment
assessment and whether there were any indicators
of management bias; and

o assessing the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of impairment
assessment with reference to the requirements of
the prevailing accounting standards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYRBENHRES

Key audit matters (continued)
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Key audit matters (continued)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYRBENHRES

Information other than the
consolidated financial statements
and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of the directors
for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Board Audit and Risk
Management Committee in discharging their responsibilities for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYRBENHRES

Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial
statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYRBENHRES

Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial
statements (ontinuead)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also: (continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board Audit and Risk Management
Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Board Audit and Risk Management Committee
with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

R MmETFEMBE®RE
AIENET @)

ERB(ERETEA)ETEITNBRES &
TER T BRI - RIS TERRREE - R
T (4&)

. HESRAFELCLESTERNGEEN
e - RIBFFENNESRE  #
EREFEREEAFRAEHENERT
BEM  #MAEEHHBERENTE
HERNELEEARE - IREMRR
FEERTEEN AL EELEE
BEPRBEAEIZGFSHHRERF
MEFENE - RERRANKERZ - A
EMEERXRFEREER - RMNE
wmEERZBENERE B L TRESHEST
BE o A ARBEHBRAELEH
BERETRFESE -

. TEFREMBHRRNERIBIX - &
BARE  BEKE  URGEUBR
REATERMIZMNEE -

. HREEENEERERZHNYBERER
EMxR  BENETERRE UEHE
BUMBERBRER - RMNASEEE
FEAE - BEEMAT - RMBF
BREEZIEE -

BREMBERS  RARELRAREERSSE
BTTEINEANHSE  KEZH EAETHR
Z  AERMEFTREEABESNEME
KERBA °

EMEnEGRABREEZESSREN » HHHA
EMENSEEB I MNERERERER I
BB BEE RSB ERAAS X ERME
NN ARENAEMEE  UREBRNER
T » BATEDERRB B SRR R SEE HE o

MIBE(BRB)ERRAA | B _=FFH 143



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYRBENHRES

Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial
statements (ontinuead)

From the matters communicated with the Board Audit and Risk
Management Committee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Yip Ka Ming, Alice.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

1 September 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS

mEEER

For the year ended 30 June 2023 BE-ZZ-_=F<A=+tHLEE

2023 2022
—=E_= —E-CF

Note HK$’000 HK$°000

ik BT T BT T
Revenue WA 5 5,118,938 6,106,635
Cost of sales THER R (4,242,965) (4,963,246)
Gross profit EF 875,973 1,143,389
Other income Hilg A 6 45,186 40,193
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIHER (641,384) (694,554)
Administrative expenses THEHA (188,996) (203,301)
Profit from operations e RR 90,779 285,727
Finance costs =D 7 (208) (296)
Profit before taxation FRELATRF 7 90,571 285,431
Taxation g 8(a) (5,222) (28,171)
Profit for the year REERF 85,349 257,260
Earnings per share BREF
Basic and diluted HEARARESE 11 |HK$E#0.367T |HK$HEH1.097T

The notes on pages 153 to 248 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of
the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in

note 10.

SR 153 EE248H 2 B IEM sE BB IR
R2—ED o B FAQBRREERNEREEF
BRE 2 BEYIAMEE10 ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
RERmkHEMEERER

For the year ended 30 June 2023 BE-ZZ-_=F<A=+tHLEE

2023 2022
—_E_= —EC-_F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BEFT BT T
Profit for the year i 2 N 85349 | 257,260
Other comprehensive income for REEHEMBEBE (HREHIE
the year (net of nil tax and REHDERAER)
reclassification adjustments)
Item that will not be reclassified to BrEesHns e
profit or loss: BRikzER
Equity investments at FVOCI — net movement B AFEET AHMBEEIE
in fair value reserve (non-recycling) HIRRERE - N EERE
SEFR(rITED) 3,820 39
Items that may be reclassified HEWEHSEE
subsequently to profit or loss: B&EZER
Exchange differences on translation of BEFBLUINGE A B HEERE
financial statements of subsidiaries outside FiEEZEREEE
Hong Kong (162,078) (50,580)
Other comprehensive income AEEHMEZHEE
L fortheyear b (esZasl (50,541)
Total comprehensive income AEEZHEIKEEEE
for the year (72,909) 206,719

The notes on pages 153 to 248 form part of these financial
statements.

JINE 153 EH 248 H 2 R IEMER A B
®Z—#M o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION
e MR R

At 30June 2023 RZZBE=-=FXH=+H

2023 2022
—=E_= —E-CF
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
ik BT T BT T
Non-current assets FREBEE
Leasehold land and property, HET R YIE -
plant and equipment MEKRZRE 12 771,353 846,003
Intangible assets and goodwill B EENDE 13 4,625 5,671
Other financial assets HitnemEE 14 90,468 118,778
Deferred tax assets IEERIEEE 20 14,586 884
Other non-current assets HtERBEE 2,485 3,841
883,517 975,177
Current assets RBEE
Inventories =ZE 15(a) 667,918 868,995
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EMEWER 16 347,364 415,335
Other financial assets HihemERE 14 69,340 -
Cash and deposits HEREFER 17(a) 1,456,839 1,541,454
2,541,461 2,825,784
Current liabilities RBasE
Trade and other payables B o R EMENERRR 18(a) 589,238 745,825
Contract liabilities ERAE 18(b) 20,824 69,492
Tax payables FERFERR 8(c) 8,850 9,291
Lease liabilities HEERE 19 3,112 3,177
622,024 827,785
Net current assets BREEE 1,919,437 1,997,999
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBEE 2,802,954 2,973,176
Non-current liabilities FRBERS
Deferred tax liabilities EIEFREEE 20 15,572 12,813
Lease liabilities FizN==C 19 1,069 1,239
16,641 14,052
NET ASSETS FEE 2,786,313 2,959,124
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION
e MR R

At 30June 2023 RZZBE=-=FXH=+H

2023 2022
—=E-= —EC-_F
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
ik BT BT T

CAPITAL AND RESERVES EeRkEE
Share capital N 21(a) 672,777 672,777
Reserves e 2,113,536 2,286,347
TOTAL EQUITY e 2,786,313 2,959,124

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on KAEEEN_E-_=FA A —BAiLEREET

1 September 2023. 2% o

WONG Cho Fai =HHEHE CHEW Seong Aun k=3

DIRECTOR EE DIRECTOR EE

The notes on pages 153 to 248 form part of these financial FIRE153EEE248E 2 BB AR B R
statements. FRz—8 °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HE-Z_=F<A=1+HLEE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

KLRRRER
Fair value
Share Surplus ESOP Shareoption  Exchange reserve Revenue
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve  (non-recycing) reserve
fiHAR
RiEg AYEERRE
Ba  BHBE  ARRG Effie  (F7Em)  hERE fi
Note HK§'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HKS§000
i Hir  BFr B¥Fr Bin BT BT BT B
At 1 July 2022 WZBZZEtA-B 672,111 183,516 (87,182) 2531 21,018 (5.620) 2,166,024 2,959,124
Profit for the year REERT - - - - - - 85,349 85,349
Equity investments at FVOC - net ROTEETARB2ENA
movement i fai value reserve NRERE-LTEERE
{non-tecycling) FHRR(TIER) - - - - - 3820 - 3820
Transfe of gain on disposal of R ERITRETALE
equity investments at FVOClto WankERE 2
Tevenue reserve - - - - - (6,173) 6,173 -
Buchange differences on translation of ~ BEEBMNIEA
financialstatements of subsieries ~ ERERIELY
outside Hong Kong EiZE - - - - (162,0m) - - (162,078)
Joalonpetenieone o heyes AFRERMEER | - - - o UGO8 @) e ()
Fquity setted share-based transactions ~ ERAE 2 HRRA
HERS 7 - - - 2,19 - - - 2,19
Purchase of ordinary shares of FLEE L S
the Company for share option scheme ~ &AFZ &R 2) - - (1,064) - - - - (1,064)
Transfer from revenue reserve to HiEREEATRGHE
Surplus reserve - 1397 - - - - (1397) -
Finaldividend paid n respect of FEEECARERE
prior year 10(b) - - - - - - (11,539) (17539)
Interm cividend paid in respect of FAEEEfTERE
current year 10) - - - - - - (23,495) (23,495)
e R - S R
At30 June 2023 R-B=ERE=1H 672,111 184,913 (88,240) 4,133 (135,000 (1979) 2155115 2,786,313
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 30 June 2023 BE-ZZ-_=F<A=+tHLEE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ROARRELR
Fairvalue
Share Surplus ESOP  Share option Bxchange fesene Revenue
capital reserve feserve reserve reserve  (non-recycing) feserve Total
figAR b
BUEL L EL LVEERE

Br BBBE  PRER B EREE  (FUEE)  GEde it
Note  HKSOOD  KKSOO0  HKSOOD  HKSOD  HKSODD  HKSOOD  HKSOD  HKSOOD
W ERTn EBTn BBTn BRI BB MR BT M

At 1 July 2021 HoF-FtA-H 672,717 173,781 (68,546) S 77,658 (50700 2030064 2,880,665

Profit for the year REERR = - - - - - BB 257060

Equity investments at FVOC - net RATEET ARB2ENE
movement i fair value reserve HMRERE-)TEESR

(non-tecycling) £HFE(TTER) = = = - - E - Bl
Transfer of gain on disposal of ERHERNTRETAZE

equity investments at FVOCI to WENRERE 2 UG

TeVenUe reserve - - - - - (595) 595 -

Buchange differences on translation of ~ BEFBMNEAT
finandial statements of subsidiaries ~ EiSERIEL L
outside Hong Kong EfZE 5 5 5 . (50,580) . . (30,560)

Total comprehensive income for the year - AEE2EURER - - - - (50,580) (556) 257,855 206,719

Equity settled share-based transactions ~ kEREE ZNRHA

E#RS 7 - - - 2537 - - - 2597
Purchase of orinary shares of EEE L HE]
the Company forshare option scheme AT EER 219 - - (18630) - - - - (e

Transfer from revenue reserve to HIRREERZERGE
Surplus reserve - 9,734 - - - - (9.734) -

Forfeiture of unclaimed dividends RUFEERZRE 1000 = = = = = = 1,050 1,050

Finaldividend paid in respect of SEEERARERE
prior year 10(b) - - - - - - (77.895) (77.895)

Interm cividend paid in respect of SREERARERE

current year 1003) - - - - - - (35,316) (35310)
- 9,734 (18,636) 2531 - - (121,899) (128,60)
At30 June 2022 RZBZZERA=1R 672,771 183516 (87,182) 2537 2,078 (5,626 2,166,024 2,959,124
The notes on pages 153 to 248 form part of these financial IR EE153 B B H 2488 2 KB M B AR
statements. Rz —Ep ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 30 June 2023 BE-ZZ-_=F<A=+tHLEE

2023 2022
—E=-= B F
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Bt BEFT BHEF T
Operating activities ReETEE
Profit before taxation FREL AR 90,571 285,431
Adjustments for: PR
Depreciation and amortisation e NN 7 76,635 65,977
Write-down of inventories FERE 15(b) 4,357 361
Loss allowance recognised/(reversed) for 2 5 EURBRF < EiEaRE
trade receivables R,/ (E#) 7 9 (54)
Finance costs BhE R AN 7 208 296
Interest income on financial assets REHEAATESREE
measured at amortised cost ZRBUA 6 (32,628) (24,675)
Dividend income from equity securities PREE S 2 IR EUWA 6 (4,710) (5,262)
Net unrealised (gain)/loss on club SERBIRZF
membership (kz), &8 6 (150) 93
Net gains on disposal of leasehold land HERS T RYIE -
and property, plant and equipment B R 35 2 T A 6 (539) (127)
Share-based payment expenses REXNER 7 2,196 2,537
Net unrealised exchange losses REEE HFEE 1,252 1,358
Changes in working capital: EELSHEE
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BFEZED (M) 139,425 (42,657)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other 25 K EMEWERRR
receivables ZED () 50,939 (63,861)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other B REMENRI
payables ZOR), /& (104,552) 48,615
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities  &RA&GZ (E4) 1 (47,685) 35,906
Cash generated from operations RELBABNRE 175,328 303,938
Taxation: B ¢
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid 2REBREHR (2,702) (4,034)
Tax paid outside Hong Kong 2AEBUINLIE (13,912) (30,409)
Net cash generated from operating REETHFBESFEE
activities 158,714 269,495
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 30 June 2023 BE-ZZ-_=F<A=+tHLEE

2023 2022
—_E_= —E-F
Note HK$000 HK$'000
BEE BEFT BT T
Investing activities RETEE
Increase in fixed deposits held at banks FiFERZAEA=@EA
with original maturity over three months ISR {TEHFR 2 HN (195,163) (323,347)
Payment for the purchase of BERSLHRYE
leasehold land and property, plant and BMERZHBEUAR
equipment and intangible assets BREEEZIR (49,445) (107,692)
Net proceeds from disposal of leasehold  HEHRE T RYE - BE
land and property, plant and equipment  RREMESIEFEE 1,123 466
Payment for purchase of: BENIHE
— debt securities —EBES (111,449) (24,105)
— equity securities -BREFSH = (18,501)
Proceeds from: FRASFRIE ¢
— maturity of debt securities — &5 2IE 37,635 67,725
— sale of equity securities - HEREES 30,363 6,452
Interest received SISt 28,348 23,620
Dividends received from investment in REREFRFESWRE
equity securities 6,414 4,963
Net cash used in investing activities REFTEFTARSEEE (252,174) (370,419)
Financing activities RLEEE
Purchase of ordinary shares of MR REETEEE
the Company for share option scheme ARATZ2EBR 21(a) (1,064) (18,636)
Capital element of lease rentals paid EAHERS 2 EARITH 17(b) (4,521) (4,784)
Interest element of lease rentals paid e HEERS 2R EZBH 17(b) (208) (296)
Dividends paid to equity shareholders of FFAATREZRE
the Company (101,034) (113,211)
Net cash used in financing activities REEZEFMARSEE (106,827) (136,927)
Net decrease in cash and RERAESRBRRD
cash equivalents (200,287) (237,851)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 July REtA—RAZEER
HEeZEm 1,009,960 1,277,330
Effect of foreign exchange rate EREE s HE
changes (79,491) (29,519)
Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June RAXA=t+HZRE
RBEZEEE 17(a) 730,182 1,009,960

The notes on pages 153 to 248 form part of these financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZE-=FXB=1HILEE

General information

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The
registered office and the principal place of business of the
Company is located at 21 Dai Fu Street, Tai Po Industrial
Estate, Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong.

The Company is a holding company and its principal
activity is investment holding. The principal activities of
the Company’s subsidiaries include manufacturing, trading
and processing of edible oil, flour products and home care
products in Hong Kong, the People’s Republic of China
("PRC") and Macau.

Significant accounting policies
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”). Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) are disclosed
below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group. Note 2(c) provides information on
any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the
current accounting period reflected in these financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

Significant accounting policies

(continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2023 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis except that the following assets and liabilities
are stated at their fair value as explained in the
accounting policies set out below:

- club membership;

- investments in equity securities (see note
2(f)); and

- derivative financial instruments (see note
2(9)).

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited | Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HZE=-Z

Significant accounting policies

(continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 3.

Changes in accounting policies
(i) Amended HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments
to HKFRSs that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Group.

None of these developments have had a
material effect on how the Group’'s results
and financial position for the current or prior
periods have been prepared or presented.
The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for
the current accounting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZE-=FXB=1HILEE

Significant accounting policies

(continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(i)

New HKICPA guidance on the accounting
implications of the abolition of the MPF-
LSP offsetting mechanism

In June 2022, the Government of the
Hong Kong SAR (the “Government”)
gazetted the Hong Kong Employment and
Retirement Schemes Legislation (Offsetting
Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance 2022
(the “Amendment Ordinance”), which will
eventually abolish the statutory right of an
employer to reduce its long service payment
(“LSP") and severance payment payable to
a Hong Kong employee by drawing on its
mandatory contributions to the mandatory
provident fund (“MPF"”) scheme (also
known as the “offsetting mechanism”). The
Government has subsequently announced
that the Amendment Ordinance will come
into effect from 1 May 2025 (the “Transition
Date”). Separately, the Government is also
expected to introduce a subsidy scheme to
assist employers after the abolition.

Among other things, once the abolition
of the offsetting mechanism takes effect,
an employer can no longer use any of the
accrued benefits derived from its mandatory
MPF contributions (irrespective of the
contributions made before, on or after the
Transition Date) to reduce the LSP in respect
of an employee’s service from the Transition
Date. However, where an employee’s
employment commenced before the
Transition Date, the employer can continue to
use the above accrued benefits to reduce the
LSP in respect of the employee’s service up to
that date; in addition, the LSP in respect of
the service before the Transition Date will be
calculated based on the employee’s monthly
salary immediately before the Transition Date
and the years of service up to that date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

Significant accounting policies

(continued)

()

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(i)

New HKICPA guidance on the accounting
implications of the abolition of the MPF-
LSP offsetting mechanism (continued)

In July 2023, the HKICPA published
“Accounting implications of the abolition
of the MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism in
Hong Kong” that provides guidance on the
accounting considerations relating to the
offsetting mechanism and the abolition of
the mechanism. In particular, the guidance
indicates that entities may account for the
accrued benefits derived from its mandatory
MPF contributions that are expected to
be used to reduce the LSP payable to an
employee as deemed contributions by
that employee towards the LSP. However,
applying this approach, upon the enactment
of the Amendment Ordinance in June
2022, it is no longer permissible to apply
the practical expedient in paragraph 93(b)
of HKAS 19 and recognise such deemed
contributions as reduction of current service
cost in the period the related service is
rendered, and any impact from ceasing to
apply the practical expedient is recognised as
a catch-up adjustment in profit or loss with a
corresponding adjustment to the LSP liability
during the year ended 30 June 2022.

In these annual financial statements and in
prior periods, consistent with the HKICPA
guidance the Group has been accounting
for the accrued benefits derived from
its mandatory MPF contributions that
are expected to be used to reduce the
LSP payable to an employee as deemed
employee contributions towards the LSP.
However, the Group has been applying the
abovementioned practical expedient.
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B B R R M

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZE-=FXB=1HILEE

Significant accounting policies

(continued)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(ii) New HKICPA guidance on the accounting
implications of the abolition of the MPF-
LSP offsetting mechanism (continued)

The Group has assessed the implications of
this new guidance on the above accounting
policies and has decided to change those
accounting policies to conform with the
guidance. Management has commenced
the processes on implementing the change
including additional data collection and
impact assessment. However, the impact
of the change is not reasonably estimable
at the time these financial statements are
authorised for issue, as the Group has yet to
fully complete its assessment of the impact
of the HKICPA guidance. The Group expects
to adopt this guidance with retrospective
application in its interim financial statements
for the six months ending 31 December
2023.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power, only substantive
rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZE-=FXB=1HILEE

Significant accounting policies

(continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group has
not agreed any additional terms with the holders of
those interests which would result in the Group as
a whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to
the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of
the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are
made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained
in that former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset (see note 2(f)) or, when appropriate,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(k)(ii)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZ-Z=-=

Significant accounting policies

(continued)

(e)

(f)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the fair value of the Group's previously
held equity interest in the acquiree; over (ii) the net
fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on
a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating
unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment
(see note 2(k)(ii)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the
year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill
is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.

Other investments in debt and equity
securities

The Group's policies for investments in debt
and equity securities, other than investment in
subsidiaries, are set out below:

Investments in debt and equity securities are
recognised/derecognised on the date the Group
commits to purchase/sell the investment. The
investments are initially stated at fair value plus
directly attributable transaction costs, except for
those investments measured at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL") for which transaction costs
are recognised directly in profit or loss. For an
explanation of how the Group determines fair
value of financial instruments, see note 24(f). These
investments are subsequently accounted for as
follows, depending on their classification.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B R R M

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

2 Significant accounting policies 2 EESTHBERw

(continued)

(f) Other investments in debt and equity f)
securities (continued)

(i)

Investments other than equity
investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group
are classified into one of the following
measurement categories:

- amortised cost, if the investment is
held for the collection of contractual
cash flows which represent solely
payments of principal and interest.
Interest income from the investment is
calculated using the effective interest
method (see note 2(t)(iv)).

- fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI") — recycling, if
the contractual cash flows of the
investment comprise solely payments
of principal and interest and the
investment is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by
both the collection of contractual cash
flows and sale. Changes in fair value
are recognised in other comprehensive
income, except for the recognition in
profit or loss of expected credit losses,
interest income (calculated using
the effective interest method) and
foreign exchange gains and losses.
When the investment is derecognised,
the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled
from equity to profit or loss.

- FVPL if the investment does not meet
the criteria for being measured at
amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling).
Changes in the fair value of the
investment (including interest) are
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZE-=FXB=1HILEE

Significant accounting policies

(continued)

(f)

(9)

Other investments in debt and equity
securities (continued)

(i)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified
as FVPL unless the equity investment is not
held for trading purposes and on initial
recognition of the investment the Group
makes an irrevocable election to designate
the investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such
that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Such elections are made on an instrument-
by-instrument basis, but may only be made if
the investment meets the definition of equity
from the issuer’s perspective. Where such an
election is made, the amount accumulated
in other comprehensive income remains in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until
the investment is disposed of. At the time of
disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred
to revenue reserve. It is not recycled through
profit or loss. Dividends from an investment
in equity securities, irrespective of whether
classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised
in profit or loss as other income in accordance
with the policy set out in note 2(t)(iii).

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
at fair value. At the end of each reporting period

the fair value is remeasured. The gain or loss

on remeasurement to fair value is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZE-=FXB=1HILEE

Significant accounting policies

(continued)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets arising from leases over
leasehold properties where the Group is not the
registered owner of the property interest and items
of property, plant and equipment, including right-
of-use assets arising from leases of underlying plant
and equipment, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 2(k)
(i). The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its present working condition and location
for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after an
item of property, plant and equipment has been put
into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situation where it can
be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has
resulted in an increase in the future economic
benefits expected to be obtained from the use of
the property, plant and equipment, the expenditure
is capitalised as an additional cost of the property,
plant and equipment.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(k)(ii)). Cost comprises
direct costs of construction, capitalised borrowing
costs and exchange differences to the extent that
it is an adjustment to borrowing costs during
the periods of construction and installation.
Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the
construction in progress is transferred to property,
plant and equipment when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the assets for their
intended use are completed. No depreciation is
provided for in respect of construction in progress
until it is completed and ready for its intended use.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment
are determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date
of retirement or disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZE-=FXB=1HILEE

Significant accounting policies

(continued)

(h)

()

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-
line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

Leasehold land is depreciated over the unexpired
term of lease.
Buildings and leasehold improvements  2-25 years

Machineries, equipment, furniture
and motor vehicles

3-20 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both
the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment
losses (see note 2(k)(ii)). Expenditure on internally
generated goodwill and brands is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful
lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The
following intangible assets with finite useful lives are
amortised from the date they are available for use
and their estimated useful lives are as follows:

Enterprise resources planning system 5 years
("ERP")
Trademarks 5 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.
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B B R R M

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZE-=FXB=1HILEE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Significant accounting policies

(continued)

()]

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.

(i) As a lessee

At the lease commencement date, the
Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a
lease liability, except for short-term leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less
and leases of low-value assets. When the
Group enters into a lease in respect of a
low-value asset, the Group decides whether
to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease
basis. The lease payments associated with
those leases which are not capitalised are
recognised as an expense on a systematic
basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease
liability is initially recognised at the present
value of the lease payments payable over the
lease term, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial
recognition, the lease liability is measured
at amortised cost and interest expense
is calculated using the effective interest
method. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or rate are not included
in the measurement of the lease liability and
hence are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZE-=FXB=1HILEE

Significant accounting policies

(continued)

()

2
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Leased assets (continued)

(i)

As a lessee (continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a
lease is capitalised is initially measured at
cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability plus any lease payments
made at or before the commencement
date, and any initial direct costs incurred.
Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-
use assets also includes an estimate of costs
to dismantle and remove the underlying
asset or to restore the underlying asset or
the site on which it is located, discounted
to their present value, less any lease
incentives received. The right-of-use asset is
subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see
notes 2(h) and 2(k)(ii)).

The lease liability is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, or there
is a change in the Group’s estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee, or there is a change
arising from the reassessment of whether the
Group will be reasonably certain to exercise
a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this
way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

Significant accounting policies

(continued)

()

2
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Leased assets (continued)

(i)

(ii)

As a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when
there is a change in the scope of a lease
or the consideration for a lease that is not
originally provided for in the lease contract
("lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease
liability is remeasured based on the revised
lease payments and lease term using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.

In the consolidated statement of financial
position, the current portion of long-term
lease liabilities is determined as the present
value of contractual payments that are due
to be settled within twelve months after the
reporting period.

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it
determines at lease inception whether each
lease is a finance lease or an operating
lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease
if it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to the ownership of an
underlying assets to the lessee. If this is
not the case, the lease is classified as an
operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-
lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone selling
price basis. The rental income from operating
leases is recognised in accordance with note

2(t)(ii).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZE-=FXB=1HILEE

Significant accounting policies

(continued)

(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i) Credit losses from financial assets

The loss allowance of trade receivables is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
expected credit losses (“ECLs"), which are
those losses that are expected to occur over
the expected life of the trade receivables. The
loss allowance is estimated using a provision
matrix based on the Group's historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors and an assessment
of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the reporting date.

For other financial assets measured at
amortised cost (including cash and deposits,
investments in debt securities and other
receivables), the Group recognises a loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless
there has been a significant increase in
credit risk of the financial assets since initial
recognition, in which case the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to lifetime

ECLs.

Other financial assets measured at fair value,
including club membership, investments
in equity securities and derivative financial
assets, are not subject to the ECL assessment.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting
date with any changes recognised as an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. The
Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss with a corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of financial assets through a

loss allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

2 EESHHEX@

2 Significant accounting policies

(continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

(i)

Credit losses from financial assets
(continued)

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset
is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the
Group determines that the counterparties
does not have assets or sources of income
that could generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or, except
in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may
have decreased:

- leasehold land and property, plant and
equipment (including construction in
progress and right-of-use assets);

- intangible assets;

- goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the

Company’s statement of financial
position.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B R R M

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

Significant accounting policies 2 EESTHBERw

(continued)

(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (k)
(continued)

(i)

Impairment of other non-current assets
(continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill, intangible assets that are not
yet available for use and intangible assets that
have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable
amount is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset
is the greater of its fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit ("CGU")).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

Significant accounting policies

(continued)

(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(ii)  Impairment of other non-current assets
(continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss if the carrying amount
of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value in use
(if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than
goodwill, an impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill
is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss
in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZE-=FXB=1HILEE

Significant accounting policies

(continued)

()

(m)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is calculated using the
weighted average cost formula and comprises all
costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. In the case of work
in progress and finished goods, cost comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an attributable
proportion of production overheads.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays non-refundable consideration before the
Group recognises the related revenue (see note
2(t)). A contract liability would also be recognised
if the Group has an unconditional right to receive
non-refundable consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a
corresponding receivable would also be recognised
(see note 2(n)).

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited | Annual Report 2023

2

BEESTBE @

)

(m)

#E

FEDURAR AR FEZIR
EE DR o RANZINREF 19555
o WHEBERAS - MIEAE
ERBEEEIRBEARMAR
MELENEMER ¥ mRA
BEBRANEEEERS - B
BATIRBENSOEEER -

AR FEEEERB D 2 b5
EERETHRZ Z T AR
EITIHERT 2 fAETAA o

HEFER  AREERAEK
ABAPARIRFEX - FEF
ESHEMREZEERFEREFE
Z I AB BRI R MR RE IR 2%
AHABRRBAAX - HEFEEZM
B R AEME S - AIRE R R
HRHRERFEER -

BRAE

fEFRASERIEERAZ
AIXNRE  AEIASEREER
MYEE2(t) o fid A SRR EAR M
RER T R A S B HE SR AR B W A AT
WERME - TEASERAE -
FRBRT - FAEHRZAREZE
W BRR (RBfRE2(n))



2

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

Significant accounting policies

(continued)

(m)

(n)

(o)

Contract liabilities (continued)

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented.
For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on
a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest
accrued under the effective interest method (see
note 2(t)(iv)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit
losses (see note 2(k)(i)).

Cash and deposits

Cash and deposits comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash and
deposits are assessed for ECL in accordance with the
policy set out in note 2(k)(i).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B R R M

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

2 Significant accounting policies

(continued)
(p) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value and are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at invoice
amounts.

(g) Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in
which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present
values.

(ii) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in share
option reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the Black-
Scholes model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees have
to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will
vest.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

Significant accounting policies

(continued)

(a)

Employee benefits (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Share-based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of
share options that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to the profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as
an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the share option reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted
to reflect the actual number of options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment
to the share option reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of
the Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the share option reserve until
either the option is exercised (when it is
included in the amount recognised in share
capital for the shares issued) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to revenue
reserve).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination
benefits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZE-=FXB=1HILEE

Significant accounting policies

(continued)

(r)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they related to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused
tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset
can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss
or credit can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZE-=FXB=1HILEE

Significant accounting policies

(continued)

(r)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B R R M

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZE-=FXB=1HILEE

Significant accounting policies 2 EESTHBERw

(continued)

(r)

Income tax (continued) (r)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separated from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,

the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either:

= the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZE-=FXB=1HILEE

Significant accounting policies

(continued)

(s)

Provisions, contingent liabilities and
onerous contracts

(i) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group
has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at
the present value of the expenditure expected

to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic

benefits is remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure
required to settle a provision is expected to be
reimbursed by another party, a separate asset
is recognised for any expected reimbursement
that would be virtually certain. The amount
recognised for the reimbursement is limited

to the carrying amount of the provision.

(ii) Onerous contracts

An onerous contract exists when the Group
has a contract under which the unavoidable
costs of meeting the obligations under
the contract exceed the economic benefits
expected to be received from the contract.
Provisions for onerous contracts are
measured at the present value of the lower of
the expected cost of terminating the contract
and the net cost of fulfilling the contract.
The cost of fulfilling the contract includes
both the incremental costs of fulfilling that
contract and an allocation of other costs that

relate directly to fulfilling that contract.
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B B R R M

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZE-=FXB=1HILEE

Significant accounting policies

(continued)

(t)

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when
it arises from the sale of goods, the provision of
services or the use by others of the Group’s assets
under leases in the ordinary course of the Group’s
business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product
or service is transferred to the customer, or the
lessee has the right to use the asset, at the amount
of promised consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Sale of goods

Sales of the Group’s products are recognised
when control of the products has transferred,
being when the products are passed to
the customer. If the products are a partial
fulfilment of a contract covering other goods
and/or services, then the amount of revenue
recognised is an appropriate proportion of
the total transaction price under the contract,
allocated between all the goods and services
promised under the contract on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis.

(ii) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the
lease term.

(iii) Dividends
Dividend income from listed investments

is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZE-=FXB=1HILEE

Significant accounting policies

(continued)

(t)

Revenue and other income (continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows: (continued)

(iv)

(v)

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method using
the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial asset to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset. For financial
assets measured at amortised cost or FVOCI
(recycling) that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the asset. For credit-
impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) of the asset (see note 2(k)(i)).

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
initially when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group
for expenses incurred are recognised as
income in profit or loss on a systematic basis
in the same periods in which the expenses
are incurred. Grants that compensate the
Group for the cost of an asset are deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively recognised in
profit or loss over the useful life of the asset
by way of reduced depreciation expense.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZE-=FXB=1HILEE

Significant accounting policies

(continued)

(u)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates
the fair value was measured.

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items, including goodwill arising
on consolidation of operations outside Hong Kong
acquired on or after 1 January 2005, are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the end of reporting period.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.
Goodwill arising on consolidation of an operation
outside Hong Kong acquired before 1 January
2005 is translated at the foreign exchange rate that
applied at the date of acquisition of the operation
outside Hong Kong.

On disposal of an operation outside Hong Kong,
the cumulative amount of the exchange differences
relating to that operation outside Hong Kong is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the
profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B R R M

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

Significant accounting policies 2 EESTHBERw

(continued)

(v)

Related parties (v)

(i)

(ii)

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(a)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the
Group; or

is @ member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(a)

The entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is
a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third party and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZE-=FXB=1HILEE

Significant accounting policies

(continued)

(v)

(w)

Related parties (continued)

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (continued)

(f) The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (i).

(9) A person identified in (i)(a) has
significant influence over the entity or
is @ member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(h) The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B R R M

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

Accounting estimates and 3 BrtfhstRHE

judgement

Key sources of estimation uncertainty AT REEZEERR

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, RERAEESTHER  SEESR
management has made various estimates based on BRENKR  HERNBAREME
past experiences, expectations of the future and other B EETRBMEE - EROREBEN
information. Note 23 contains information about the ATEEEEENBRERABEZAME
assumptions and their risk factors relating to fair value of 23wt o Hfi T THREM N EERIR
share options granted. Other key sources of estimation TR SRR AERNWEELTREK
uncertainty that may significantly affect the amounts & ETRE

recognised in the financial statements are disclosed below:
(a) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (a)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight line basis over their estimated useful lives,
after taking into account of their estimated residual
value. The determination of the useful lives and
residual value involve management’s estimation.

The Group assesses annually the residual value and
the useful life of the property, plant and equipment
and if the assessment result differs from the
original estimate, such a difference may impact the
depreciation for the year. The details of property,
plant and equipment are disclosed in note 12.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZE-=FXB=1HILEE

Accounting estimates and
jUdgement (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of leasehold land and property,
plant and equipment, intangible assets and
goodwill

Determining whether leasehold land and property,
plant and equipment, intangible assets and goodwill
are impaired requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the
leasehold land and property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets and goodwill have been allocated.
The calculation of value in use requires the Group
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the CGU and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value. If the estimation
of value in use is different, any reversal or further
impairment will impact the profits or losses of the
Group. The details of leasehold land and property,
plant and equipment and goodwill are disclosed in
notes 12 and 13 respectively.

Income taxes

At 30 June 2023, deferred tax assets of
HK$20,897,000 (2022: HK$6,307,000) in relation to
unused tax losses were recognised as set out in note
20. No deferred tax asset was recognised in respect
of the remaining tax losses of HK$276,679,000
(2022: HK$252,161,000) and temporary differences
of HK$64,118,000 (2022: HK$81,655,000)
arising from impairment of certain leasehold land
and property, plant and equipment due to the
unpredictability of future taxable profit streams.
The realisability of the deferred tax assets mainly
depends on whether sufficient future profits or
taxable temporary differences will be available in the
future. In cases where the future profits generated
are less or more than expected, a write down or
further recognition of deferred tax assets may arise,
which would be recognised in the profit or loss for
the period in which such a write down or further
recognition takes place.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited | Annual Report 2023

3

SEHEET R HE =)

fhEr AREM 2 EERR (&)

(b)

(9]

HELHREYE BERRE
HRBERBEZRE

REHET HRYE - BERR
B BIEEENBERTRER
ST BRYE BERR
B BREAERBERIENSE
EELBUNEREE - #EE
REERREEAKE LAY
REREELEEUHRRRESR
ENFERENSEMRRE -
EREEzZMETAEE 8
CENE-SRESHAEEZ
BERRERTE - HELHBRY
X BELRRME BREERSD
BHFEEI B RME12R13RK

& o

Frigs

RZBE-=FXA=1+10 " kA
BBEZEEERELENIEE
ERE%20,897,000Tt(ZE==
& 78%6,307,0005T) * LEH
RHEE20 - HA T BEFAFT AR R
BRBE  MTAEHRTHREE
BB ¥276,679,000 T (ZE ==
& B¥252,161,00070 ) & [E ¥
ETHELTHRYE BERK
BRE M E£ B %64,118,0007T

—E - - : #% 81,655,000
O ER M EREHER o B
BHEEETEHRABRHARK
EAR R EREEERRER
BIEBED - BERREBERD
RNEZRFEH  EEFBEEEER
BEE—-SHED > SEEENE
—SHRAENZIBZ2ERERR

S
Er



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZE-=FXB=1HILEE

4 Segment reporting

In a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management, the Group has two reportable segments,
as described below. Businesses in each reporting segment
have similar operating and currency risks, class of customer
for products, distribution channels and safety regulation.
The following summary describes the operations in each

segment:

Food: manufacture and distribution of a wide
range of food products including flour,
edible oils and specialty fats.

Home Care:  manufacture and distribution of household
and institutional cleaning products.

(@) Segments results, assets and liabilities

The Group’s most senior executive management
monitors the results, assets and liabilities
attributable to each reportable segment on the
following basis:

The measure used for reporting segment profit
is “profit from operations”. To arrive at “profit
from operations”, the Group's earnings are further
adjusted for items not specifically attributed
to individual segments, such as head office or
corporate administration costs.

Segment assets include all tangible assets, intangible
assets and current assets with the exception of
deferred tax assets and other corporate assets.
Segment liabilities include tax payables, all trade and
other payables and contract liabilities attributable
to the manufacturing and sales activities of the
individual segments and lease liabilities with the
exception of deferred tax liabilities and other
corporate liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

4 Segment reporting (continued) 4 DEHRE @
(a) Segments results, assets and liabilities (a) oHHEE BEEREE#HE)
(continued)

BWARIBEI B2 REEF
BENKA - AREAFEEES
BITHEBABZARKE 2K
DEPEREIIT

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers by the timing of revenue recognition, as
well as information regarding the Group's reportable
segments as provided to the Group’s most senior

188

executive management is set out below:

2022
—ECCE
Segment Segment
Food  Home Care Total Food  Home Care Total
R FERE pakirh R FERE A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT AETT BT BT BET
Disaggregated by timing of REBREERUA
revenue recognition on RABEIE
point in time
Revenue from external customers — HHZEZIMA 4,326,192 792,746 5,118,938 5,283,560 823075 6,106,635
Reportable segment profit from NEHHP L2
operations Al 52,296 73,055 125,351 274,857 55,092 329,949
Interest income on financial assets  REBHAE4R
measured at amortised cost EEZRIEWA 13,942 4,605 18,547 18,376 4,409 22,785
Finance costs BEAK (139) (57) (196) (230) (46) (276)
Depreciation and amortisation RERES (65,553) (5,106) (70,659) (54,498) (4,699) (59,197)
Other material profit or loss items: ~ EftZEIEAEER -
- Net exchange gains/(losses) -EXENE/ (BB 2102 100 2212 (932) 251 (681)
- Loss allowance recognised/ -BRRUER BB
(reversed) for trade receivables BEED/(mE) 9 - 9 56 2 54
Taxation #E 11,457 (12,200 (183) (8,984) (9,916) (18,900)
Reportable segment assets n2HrHEE 2,460,053 333,721 2,193,780 2,181,421 324578 3,105,999
Reportable segment liabilities EEEVr a1 498,415 133,857 632,272 678,713 149,206 827,919
Additions to non-current ENRNABERDEE
segment assets 35,399 4,480 39,879 82,451 6,786 89,237
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

4 Segment reporting (continued) 4 DEHRE @
(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment (b) TUEFRSIPzBEHREKR BEK
profit or loss, assets and liabilities BENYHER

2023 2022
—_=E=E_= —EC-_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BEFT
Profit gl
Reportable segment profit from CIE+:5 5 g < i
operations 125,351 329,949
Unallocated exchange losses ROBZEHEE (1,941) (1,852)
Unallocated net realised and AOEZITE SR
unrealised gains on derivative TEZE®2BK
financial instruments RER TR - 995
Unallocated interest income on Ko B2 IR AR AN
financial assets measured at FTESREEZ
amortised cost FEUTA 14,081 1,890
Dividend income BREUWA 4,710 5,262
Unallocated head office and FAOBZBATR
corporate expenses THEER (51,422) (50,517)
Finance costs Ei=yo#N (208) (296)
Consolidated profit before taxation REBRBANER] 90,571 285,431
Assets EE
Reportable segment assets 2RI B2EE 2,793,780 3,105,999
Elimination of inter-segment receivables %33 5 FEUK SR I8 = 3K £ (19,574) (17,209)
2,774,206 3,088,790
Deferred tax assets EEFRIEEE 14,586 884
Unallocated head office and FAOBZBATR
corporate assets TEEE 636,186 711,287
Consolidated total assets FEBERE 3,424,978 3,800,961
Liabilities =Rt
Reportable segment liabilities A2MorzBE 632,272 827,919
Elimination of inter-segment payables %3 2B FE{TFUIE 2 K 88 (19,574) (17,209)
612,698 810,710
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEEE 15,572 12,813
Unallocated head office and AOBZBATR
corporate liabilities TEEE 10,395 18,314
Consolidated total liabilities meBaE 638,665 841,837
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

4 Segment reporting (ontinued)

190

(c)

Geographical information

The following table sets out information about
the geographical location of (i) the reportable
segment’s revenue from external customers and
(ii) the Group’s leasehold land and property, plant
and equipment, intangible assets and goodwill and
prepayments for property, plant and equipment
(“specified non-current assets”). The geographical
location of customers is based on the location at
which the services were provided or the goods
delivered. The geographical location of the leasehold
land and property, plant and equipment is based
on the physical location of the assets, in the case of
prepayments for property, plant and equipment, the
location of operations and in the case of intangible
assets and goodwill, the location of the operation to
which they are allocated.

4

D EPEREE @)
(00 HEEE

TREHNBENEERBREG
AE2FIMENEF 22BN 5 R
(WAEEBNHETHRYE - K
ERZE EBREEREERY
¥ BERREBELSZRE(EE
IRBEE]) c EEWFIBHE
TIRBREIREREE X 2 i
IIMEEE - HET R WE - K
ERRENFBERIREFE
HWWE - ¥  MENRZER
NRENFEREIREEEE
e MEFEEREENME
thEDRBEEES BRI MNEEH
LT E ©

Hong Kong

and Macau
ERLAM
HK$'000
AT

Revenue from external customers — $I9ME S ZUA 778,731

EEFRBEE 82,231

Specified non-current assets

2023
—E-=
Mainland

China
HE K
HK$'000
BETT

4,340,207

696,232

Total
it
HKS$'000
BETFT

5,118,938

778,463

2022

“ECCE

Hong Kong Mainland
and Macau China Total
BEREM  REAKE fit
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BFr  BFn BETn
798,991 5307644 6,106,635
82,715 772,800 855,515
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

Revenue

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out
on pages 249 to 251.

Revenue represents the amounts receivable for the goods
sold in the normal course of business, net of discounts,
value added tax and other related taxes to external
customers.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
by major products or service lines is as follows:

5

WA

AABE—EREEZERAR  HEXEMH
BRARIMEEEKFINE29EBESE
251H o

BARKELEXRBBRAETHIME
B HIRRITH - BEBMEMAEEIE
BV EURRE ©

BEXIREMIAMBIBZRERTFEME
HBAZZWT

2023 2022
—E=-= —E-CF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BEF T BHF T
Revenue from contracts with ERMBEREENETRE
customers within the scope of HERNZREEFERMN
HKFRS 15 PN
Disaggregated by major products or REEZERBRKEE D
service lines
— Sales of goods —HEER 5,118,938 6,106,635

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
by the timing of revenue recognition and by geographical
markets is disclosed in notes 4(a) and 4(c) respectively.

During the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022, there was
no single external customer that contributed 10% or more
of the Group's total revenue from external customers.

RN TERE R R B S 85 2R B
BEEERMNWA D B M EE40) R4
I -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

6 Other income

6 HAWA

2023 2022
—E2=-= —E- &
HK$°000 HK$°000
BEFT BHF T
Sales of scrapped materials HEER 436 367
Income from food supply reservation BEmEEAZERA 241 292
Net gains on disposal of leasehold land and HEHELHEYWE - BER
property, plant and equipment B2 F W s 539 127
Interest income on financial assets REERATESREEY
measured at amortised cost FEUA 32,628 24,675
Dividend income (note (ii) B S (BTEE (i) 4,710 5,262
Net exchange gains/(losses) B MR (E5E) 331 (2,533)
Net realised and unrealised gains on PTESRMTIECBEERE
derivative financial instruments (note (iii)) — REIRFUES (F/aE (i) - 1,228
Net unrealised gain/(loss) on club BEIABRTFNE
membership (B518) 150 (93)
Government grants (note (i) B RE (BaE3)) 2,950 4,921
Others Hit 3,201 5,947
45,186 40,193

Notes: Kizt -

(i) During the year ended 30 June 2023, government grants (i) BE-Z_=F~A=1+THLFE -
included government subsidies granted due to COVID-19 BAHMEERIERR2019EMES
pandemic of HK$1,327,000 (2022: HK$2,700,800) under 7% ([ COVID-19 ) M ERNBUFE
the Employment Support Scheme of Hong Kong. By AP BEEHEE1,327,000 (=

Z T j8%2,700,8007) KA EE
[REZE 5HE
(i) The Group recognised dividend income of HK$4,710,000 (i) SEBEEERAFEEFAHEMLE

(2022: HK$5,262,000) from the equity securities
designated at FVOCI, of which HK$1,045,000 (2022:
HK$ Nil) related to investment derecognised during the
year and HK$3,665,000 (2022: HK$5,262,000) related to

investments held at 30 June 2023.

(iii)

During the year ended 30 June 2022, the Group entered

(iii)

into various foreign exchange forward contracts to manage

its foreign currency risk exposures. There

have been no

foreign exchange forward contracts entered into by the

Group during the year ended 30 June 2023.

192
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

Profit before taxation

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

7 BRHAEDER

BRBADER SR (GTA) THI&E

2023 2022
—E== —EoF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BHEF T
Finance costs 5= 2%
Interest on lease liabilities (note 17(b)) HEEBE2F B (HF170) 208 296
Staff costs (including directors’ BIXK(BIEEEHE
emoluments - note 9) — HiE¥9)
Salaries, wages and other benefits IE.- HFekEMER 418,543 435,783
Share-based payment expenses BREXAHE R 2,196 2,537
Contribution to defined contribution ERHFGR GBI At
retirement plans (note (i) (BfEEG)) 35,245 37,458
455,984 475,778
Auditors’ remuneration ZEET &
Audit services RIS 2,177 1,987
Tax and other services B R E MR 422 296
2,599 2,283
Depreciation and amortisation WEK
Leasehold land and property, plant and HETHEYE  BER
equipment B 75,664 65,015
Intangible assets B EE 971 962
76,635 65,977
Other items Hthg g
Net exchange (gains)/losses BE 5% (W) B8 (331) 2,533
Loss allowance recognised/(reversed) for E SRR 2 Eia s
trade receivables "R, (EE) 9 (54)
Cost of inventories (note 15(b)) FERA Kzt 15(b)) 4,242,965 4,963,246
HIBE(EB)BRAA | ZEZ=FF W 193
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

Profit before taxation (continued)

Note:

(i)

The Group participates in pension schemes organised by
the PRC government whereby the Group is required to pay
annual contributions at rates ranging from 14% to 16%
(2022: 14% to 16%) of the standard wages determined by
the relevant authorities in the PRC during the year ended
30 June 2023.

The Group also operates a MPF scheme under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance and
an Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance Scheme
(the "ORSO scheme”) under the Hong Kong Occupational
Retirement Scheme Ordinance for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF scheme and ORSO scheme are
defined contribution retirement schemes administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the Group
and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income,
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000
(2022: HK$30,000). Under the ORSO scheme, the Group
and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the plan at 10% and 5% of the employees’ relevant
income respectively. Contributions to the schemes vest
immediately, there is no forfeited contributions that may
be used by the Group to reduce the existing level of
contribution.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited | Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

8 Taxation 8 ®HE

(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or (a) MNEeERRZBES:
loss represents:

2022
—E-CF
HK$'000 HK$°000
BEFTT BT T
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax AREHIE - FEFNEH
Provision for the year REERE 3,757 3,436
Over-provision in respect of prior years {IFE 2 BEERE (497) (448)
3,260 2,988
Current tax - Outside Hong Kong REBE-FHBUS
Provision for the year NEEERE 13,305 28,298
Over-provision in respect of prior years {XFE 2 BEERE (159) (473)
13,146 27,825
Deferred tax (note 20) EERIE (B aE20)
Origination and reversal of temporary ~ EEMERNELR
differences =] 43 (11,184) (2,642)
5,222 28,171
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZE-=FXB=1HILEE

8 Taxation (continued)

196

(a)

Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss represents: (continued)

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year
ended 30 June 2023 is calculated at 16.5% (2022:
16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the
year, except for one subsidiary of the Group which is
a qualifying corporation under the two-tiered Profits
Tax rate regime.

For this subsidiary, the first HK$2 million of
assessable profits are taxed at 8.25%, and the
remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%.
The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for this
subsidiary was calculated at the same basis in 2022.

Taxation outside Hong Kong represents income
tax charge on the estimated taxable profits of
certain subsidiaries operating in Mainland China
and Macau, calculated at the rates prevailing in the
respective regions.

All entities engaged in the primary processing
of agricultural products in Mainland China are
exempted from PRC corporate income tax (“CIT").
As a result, the profits from flour mill operations
are exempted from CIT for the years ended 30 June
2023 and 2022.

Other subsidiaries operating in Mainland China are
subject to CIT tax rate of 25% (2022: 25%).

In addition, the Group is subject to withholding
tax at the applicable rate of 5% on distribution of
profits generated after 31 December 2007 from
the foreign investment enterprises established in
Mainland China. Deferred tax liabilities have been
provided for in this regard based on the expected
distributable dividends by its subsidiaries established
in Mainland China in respect of profits generated
after 31 December 2007.
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8 Taxation (continued)

(b)

(c)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B R R M

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

8 FEwm

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting (b)
profit at applicable tax rates:

BIEX HES RN REARE

ZHBRAT ¢

2023 2022
== —E-CF
HK$000 HK$°000
BEFTT BT T
Profit before taxation BB AR T 90,571 285,431
Notional tax on profit before taxation, 1REHAREHFTER
calculated at the rates applicable to BRFTERF AT
profits in the tax jurisdictions concerned #EF| 2z B&HIE 15,807 71,743
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses  #i#%_ R ATHRANEE X
2R e 2,659 3,822
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BERBIMA K E (6,397) (5,792)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised R FURERMBISEIE
RSB 2,479 1,540
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not {EARLUBIFEE T T LATE
previously recognised REBEBE2HETE (4,469) (1,256)
Effect of tax concessions BRBERZEE (9,401) (50,185)
Over-provision in respect of prior years {4 2 BRARE (656) (921)
Withholding tax on dividend and royalty 2 Uk EWRER
received and receivable YR 2 TR 4,587 8,645
Others HAith 613 575
Actual tax expenses ERBIEXH 5,222 28,171
Current taxation in the consolidated statement of () TEFEEUBMRRERPHERFE

financial position represents:

(3

2023 2022
== —E-CF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BEFT
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for AFEEEFBRSHEE
the year 3,757 3,436
Balance of Hong Kong Profits Tax EEEEBREH
payable relating to prior years etz aEeR 1,007 770
4,764 4,206
Provision for profits tax outside BB IERE
Hong Kong 4,086 5,085
Tax payables RSN 8,850 9,291
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

Directors’ and senior executives’
emoluments

(a)

Directors’ emoluments

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as

9

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

EERERTHAEM
&
() EBHS

IRIEE B TR 383 R

(RARBESNEER) RO
E2ARBECESHMENT ¢

follows:
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors' and benefits schemes Share-based
fees inkind ~ Bonuses contributions  Sub-total  payment
(Note (ii)) (Note (iv))
g4
EHR i1
Eshe  EMiE ¥ HEER Mt BExft 32z
(Hiek(ii) (i)
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
Bin  Bfn ERin B¥in B¥Fn EMFn BB
Executive director HrEz
WONG Cho Fai (Note (i) BRBHH)) - 4,491 1122 18 5,631 963 6,594
Non-executive directors FonEes
KWEK Leng Hai (Note (j) SLBE)) - o - - - - -
CHEW Seong Aun (Note (j) BRR (W) = - - - - - -
WHANG Sun Tze ELE 240 - - - 20 - 0
Independent non-executive directors FUFHTEE
L0 Kai Yiu, Anthony Be 380 - - - 380 - 380
HUANG Lester Garson, SBS, JP L
HEHEE ATHL 350 - - - 350 - 350
HO Yuk Wai, Joan Eg 340 - - - 340 - 340
Year ended 30 June 2023 ECECCERASTH
L& 1310 4,491 1122 18 6,941 93 7904
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

EERSRITHAEM

Directors’ and senior executives'’

emoluments (continued)

9

€@

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) EE=EMe#E)
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors' ~ and benefits schemes Share-based
fees in kind Bonuses ~ contributions  Sub-total payment 2022
(Note (if) (Note (iv)
28R &4
EZhe BN B HEER M RESH  ZECZE
() (Hati)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
E¥fr BT B¥in BEFr B¥In EEfr B
Executive director Hies
WONG Cho Fai (Note () BB () - 437 1320 18 5,715 803 6,518
Non-executive directors FirES
KWEK Leng Hai (Note () SR - - - - - - -
CHEW Seong Aun (Note (i) BEZ(H) - - - - - - -
WHANG Sun Tze ini 20 - - - 140 - 240
Independent non-executive directors BUFHTES
L0 Kai Yiu, Anthony B 380 - - - 380 - 380
HUANG Lester Garson, SBS, JP B2l
HEHEE A T4t 350 - - - 350 - 350
HO Yuk Wai, Joan 3% 340 - - - 340 - 340
Year ended 30 June 2022 BE-BCTERAZTR
HEE 1310 4377 1320 18 7,025 803 7,828
Notes: BtaF
(i) No directors’ fees have been paid to any salaried (i) MEEEWRSOXNFALNT
directors employed by the Company or its related REAEREE AN ERZE
corporations. E=o
(i) Bonuses paid/payable for the year were (ii) REE 2B EARATIR
performance-related. EBEE -
(iii) There was no arrangement under which a director (iii) WEITVEENESRENRE
had waived or agreed to waive any emoluments. W ER BN & M Z 3 o
(iv) These represent the estimated money value of (iv) EHRERBEALTRDIE

share options granted to the director under the
Company's share option scheme. The value of
these share options is measured according to
the Group’s accounting policies for share-based
payment transactions as set out in note 2(q)(ii) and,
in accordance with that policy, include adjustments
to reverse amounts accrued in previous years where
grants of equity instruments are forfeited prior to
vesting.

The details of the principal terms and number of
share options granted are disclosed under note 23.

MIE(ER)BRAR | — B _=FFRH

B ARTEE 2 RORDEE
HEET S EEE - ZLERDRA
BREREEDREANEERR
XX 5 (HHRME2()
(i) FT I %E B & =T B T 5t
5 AEEREACEENR
BT A - RIEZBEEMEE N
A ETRNEE -

BRORDEEEIRRRRREE
B 2 # BN 23 R

Zo
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Directors’ and senior executives’ 9 ZEERSRITHAESM
emoluments (continved) €@
(b) Individuals with highest emoluments (b) BSWAWEES
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, ESEsFHMEZALH  B—
one (2022: one) is a director whose emolument is Z(ZEBEZZF : —R)3ARNT
disclosed in note 9(a) above. The aggregate of the ZEZ > Hi€E R LilHEEa)
emoluments in respect of the other four (2022: four) HHE  Hmg(ZE=-=
individuals are as follows: WE) AT Z2BESEZEMT -
2023 2022
—E_= B _F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Salaries and other benefits HekEMEFR 8,648 9,078
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAL 1,245 2,330
Retirement schemes contributions RIRSTEIEHFR 265 115
10,158 11,523
Share-based payments BRESNER 1,079 899
11,237 12,422
The numbers of individuals whose emoluments fall BEBTHEERNZAZMT :
within the following bands are:
2023 2022
—E_= —E- &
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
HKS$## T A&
2,000,001 - 2,500,000 1 -
2,500,001 - 3,000,000 1 2
3,000,001 - 3,500,000 2 1
3,500,001 — 4,000,000 - 1
4 4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B R R M

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B R R M

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

10 Dividends

(a)

(b)

(c)

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company (excluding the amount paid to shares held
by the Group under the ESOP reserve) attributable to

(a)

10 BRE

FARMSARDARRKRE (MR
ENFARERTRAERIDR
BESERRBTEEZRONE

the year:

) :

2023 2022
—EB-= S - 2
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BETTT
Interim dividend declared and paid of HHREERRENER
HK$0.10 (2022: HK$0.15) EBERBY.10T
per ordinary share (ZZE=ZF : B¥0.157) 23,495 35,316
Final dividend proposed after the end of HIR BRI 2 REIRR S
the reporting period of HK$0.20 BREBRER. 20T
(2022: HK$0.33) per ordinary share (ZB==%F : ##¥0337) 46,989 77,568
70,484 112,884

The final dividend proposed after the end of the
reporting period has not been recognised as a
liability at the end of the reporting period.

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company (excluding the amount paid to shares held
by the Group under the ESOP reserve) attributable
to the previous financial year, approved and paid
during the year:

(b)

RI|BEMLAREIRE 2 RBR
ERBEMEASRERLER
Rh—BEME-

FREARC AR — B KF
ERAARARRRKE (REM
FTARERITRABRNDZERE
ARFHTHEEZRONER) :

2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETF T BEFT
Final dividend in respect of the previous BRI — A8 B EEEH
financial year, approved and paid during REMAHREBRE
the year, of HK$0.33 (2022: HK$0.33) SREEREY033T
per ordinary share (ZB=Z=%:
7B#50.337T) 77,539 77,895
During the year ended 30 June 2022, dividends () BHEZEBE--_FAXA=+HLE

declared by the Company which were unclaimed
over a period of six years amounting to
HK$1,050,000 were forfeited and transferred to
revenue reserve in accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association.

MIE(ER)BRAR | — B _=FFRH

E AQATEERNKREME
NEBMAWER  aHEE
1,050,0007¢ @ BARIBA R FALS
ERMAEI MR EREZ R ERE

e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B R R M

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

11 Earnings per share 11 BRER
(a) Basic earnings per share () BREXREF
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based ERERERTIREARQABRE
on the profit for the year of HK$85,349,000 (2022: % F) 78 # 85,349,000 Tt (= &
HK$257,260,000) and the weighted average — & @ #B%257,260,000T) &
number of 234,981,000 (2022: 235,726,000) RAFERCBITEZER 2 INE
ordinary shares in issue during the year, calculated as T 35 £ 234,981,000 ( =& = =
follows: F 1235,726,000) REBERETE -
2022
—EC-_F
‘000
7:
Issued ordinary shares FUERITEBR
at the beginning of year 243,354 243,354
Effect of shares repurchased AFEEDBsZER
in prior years o (13,476) (12,184)
Effect of shares repurchased AFEERE2EBR
in current year o2 (72) (619)
(13,548) (12,803)
Effect of share options exercised EEETEZROR
_ nprioryears adieriche i W N gl > 175
Weighted average number of FREBRMNETFIIE
ordinary shares at the end of year 234,981 235,726
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) BSREBEERF

The diluted earnings per share equalled the basic
earnings per share as there were no dilutive
potential ordinary shares outstanding during the
years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

12 Leasehold land and property, 12 HELTHRYE  BE

- e
plant and equipment REEE
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) HREEZHER
Leasehold
Leasehold land and
land and buildings Machineries,
buildings and leasehold equipment,
and leasehold improvements furniture
improvements outside  Construction and motor
in Hong Kong ~ Hong Kong in progress vehicles Total
EREE FENMEE
THRET THRET R
k& k&8 ERIE  HHRAE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
BRI ¥ BETr BT BRI
Cost: A
At 1 July 2021 WZEZ-£tf-H 125911 1,124,359 130,570 1,002,496 2,383,336
Additions Em 1,410 19,694 59,509 21,753 102,366
Transfer between categories DEmER 10,589 71,485 (184,727) 102,653 -
Disposals HE - (2,654) - (2,952) (5,606)
Exchange adjustments ERRE - (28,135) 575 (24,279) (51,839)
At 30 June 2022 RIBZZEXA=1H 137,910 1,184,749 5927 1,099,671 2,428,251
At 1 July 2022 RZB-ZF+A-H 137,910 1,184,749 5,927 1,099,671 2,428,257
Additions K10 1,488 11,792 8,662 26,372 48,314
Transfer between categories PEHER 1,538 454 (11,734) 3,742 -
Disposals HE - (620) - (6,386) (7,006)
Exchange adjustments EXHER - (86,040) (237) (74,049) (160,326)
At 30 June 2023 RZBZ=£xA=1H 146,936 1,110,335 2,618 1,049,350 2,309,239
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

12 Leasehold land and property, 12 HELHEYE - BE
plant and equipment (ontinueq) KRB
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) HREEZHIRE)
(continued)
Leasehold
Leasehold land and
land and buildings Machineries,
buildings and leasehold equipment,
and leasehold improvements furniture
improvements outside  Construction and motor
inHongKong ~ Hong Kong  in progress vehicles Total
EREE EENMER
THEEF  IHRET e R
k&8 k%8 EBIE  HERAE At

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI ERTR ERTR BRI BRI

Accumulated depreciation, ZiHE - BER
amortisation and HEEE:
impairment loss:

At 1 uly 2021 W-E--#+A-H 80,868 789,187 - 688,980 1,559,035
Charge for the year REERERAE 2,974 18,781 - 43,260 65,015
Written back on disposals HERRR - (2,372) - (2,895) (5,267)
Exchange adjustments EHAE - (21,540) - (14,989) (36,529)
At 30 June 2022 WZB--EXA=+H 83,842 784,056 - 714,356 1,582,254
At 1 July 2022 WZEZZFtA-A 83,842 784,056 = 714,356 1,582,254
Charge for the year TEEBERITE 3,587 22,556 - 49,521 75,664
Written back on disposals HEARD - (238) - (6,184) (6,422)
Exchange adjustments ERER - (67,691) - (45,919) (113,610)
At 30 June 2023 WZBZ=ExA=1H 87,429 738,683 = 11,774 1,537,886
Net book value: EHERE

At 30 June 2023 RZBZZEXA=1H 59,507 371,652 2,618 337,576 771,353
At 30 June 2022 WZB--EXA=+H 54,068 400,693 5,927 385,315 846,003
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B R R M

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

12 Leasehold land and property, 12 HELTHRYE  BE
plant and equipment (ontinued) REHE@
(b) Right-of-use assets (b) FHEEE

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use
assets by class of underlying asset is as follows:

BEHBEEESBZERAEEEZ
SREDFEDNUT -

2023 2022
—E-= B F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETF T BT T
Leasehold land and buildings in EREEETHRET
Hong Kong 11,468 11,944
Leasehold land and buildings outside FEUMIEL HRETF
Hong Kong 58,367 65,697
Machineries, equipment, furniture S e FARAE
and motor vehicles 495 857
70,330 78,498
HIE(EB)BERARA | ZE_=FF®, 205



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B R R M

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

12 Leasehold land and property, 12
plant and equipment (ontinueq)

(b) Right-of-use assets (continued) (b)

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases
recognised in profit or loss is as follows:

HELTHERYE  BE
K& )

EREEE @)

BERERRER ZHEHEEZM
XER DT

2023 2022
—_E_= —E_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BMEF T BT T
Depreciation charge of right-of-use BB EE D E2F Ak
assets by class of underlying assets: EEZINEER .
Leasehold land and buildings in EBHELHEET
Hong Kong 476 477
Leasehold land and buildings outside BEBUINMEEL HRE
Hong Kong F 6,361 7,552
Machineries, equipment, furniture 22 BB - BA
and motor vehicles kARHE 331 337
7,168 8,366
Interest on lease liabilities (note 7) HEadzFE(fE7) 208 296
Expense relating to short-term leases EREHHAEHEX 7,081 9,239
During the year ended 30 June 2023, additions REBE-_ZE-_=FXA=1THL

to right-of-use assets were HK$4,594,000 (2022:
HK$6,548,000). This amount included the purchase
of leasehold land of HK$Nil (2022: HK$2,471,000)
and machineries and equipment of HK$Nil (2022:
HK$48,000), and the remainder primarily related to
the capitalised lease payments payable under new
tenancy agreements and adjustment due to lease
modification.

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the
maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out in
notes 17(c) and 24(b) respectively.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HZE=-Z

TEEXRAZTHLEFE

13 Intangible assets and goodwill 13 BFEEKRBE
Goodwill  Trademarks ERP Total
TEER
5k [ BEEY ast
HK3$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BETT BET T
Cost: B
At 1 July 2021 R-E-_—-+tA—H 14,714 39,970 26,482 81,166
Additions =0 - - 1,461 1,461
Exchange adjustments EHAEE - - (40) (40)
At 30 June 2022 N-BE-_—FxXA=1H 14,714 39,970 27,903 82,587
At 1 July 2022 RZE-ZF+H—H 14,714 39,970 27,903 82,587
Exchange adjustments [E 5 AR - - (123) (123)
At 30 June 2023 RIBEZ=FxA=1H 14,714 39,970 27,780 82,464
Accumulated amortisation: ZEtEs
1 July 2021 NZE-_—-5+A—H - 39,970 23,458 63,428
Charge for the year REEHH - - 962 962
Exchange adjustments [ - - (13) (13)
At 30 June 2022 RZZE-—FxH=1H - 39,970 24,407 64,377
At 1 July 2022 RZB-—FtH—H = 39,970 24,407 64,377
Charge for the year REEHH - - 971 971
Exchange adjustments EHAERE = = (48) (48)
At 30 June 2023 RZEZ=FXH=1H - 39,970 25,330 65,300
Impairment loss: REES
At 1 July 2021, 30 June 2022, W-E-—-F+tHA—H"
1July 2022 and 30 June 2023  ZEZZHxXA=1+H"
Zgiifﬁtﬁ AR
ZE-=FXA=1+H 12,539 - - 12,539
Net book value: BRERE
At 30 June 2023 RZBZ=F,-A=1+H 2,175 - 2,450 4,625
At 30 June 2022 RZE-_Z_FAB=1+H 2,175 - 3,496 5,671

The amortisation charge for the year is included in
“administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

FEEZHBHEERACH ARGERARR
[THERIA -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HZE=-Z

Intangible assets and goodwill

(continued)

Impairment test for cash-generating units
containing goodwill

The carrying amount of goodwill is allocated to edible
oil operations. The recoverable amount of the CGU is
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations use cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a three-year
period. The key assumptions of the cash flow projections
are the estimated weighted average growth rate and
the discount rate used. Cash flows beyond the three-
year period are extrapolated using an estimated weighted
average growth rate of 3% (2022: 3%) which does not
significantly exceed the long-term average growth rate for
the business in which the CGU operates. The cash flows are
discounted using a pre-tax discount rate of 14.8% (2022:
14.5%) which reflects specific risks relating to the relevant
CGU.

The results of the tests undertaken as at 30 June 2023
and 30 June 2022 indicated no further recognition of
impairment loss was necessary.

13

TEEXRAZTHLEFE

BEEERERw

BERECREELENZRERNR

BEZRESHBERAMDE - HE
REeEEBENNTERESERRESEA
BENE ZEEFAZRESREEN
ERBREEEMEC=FHUHRERES
E-REREFEATANETEREZATE
ﬁbﬂﬂ‘gzlzﬂimﬁgﬁﬁﬁfﬁg o ZFHILL
#RIR e M E T E A TEFT INFEF 1518
REI%(ZEZZF :3%) T#BRS
ELEBENKREXBNRBTIERE -
REREFRBRBATMIREI148%(ZF
TTF D145%)HE - IRMREBERE
EXBNNEERRE -

R-EBE-_=ZFXRA=+HRZ=ZZE=Z
RA=ZTHETZARERBTRBEAE
HE—DRERBZER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HZE=-Z

14 Other financial assets

TEEXRAZTHLEFE

Htte®mEE

2023 2022
— 2= —E- &
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt BT T JBEF T
Debt securities measured at REERTTEZ
amortised cost BHES (i) 91,446 24,023
Equity securities designated at FVOCI  I§ER AP EEF AEM
(non-recycling): ZHWRE (THEE)
IR ER S -
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong —REBLEHZREZS (i) 67,490 94,033
Financial assets measured at FVPL: BAFEEFABRITE
ZEMEE
— Club membership -2 872 722
159,808 118,778
Representing: BER
— Non-current assets - FRBEE 90,468 118,778
— Current assets - REEE 69,340 -
159,808 118,778
Notes: BifaE -
(i) At 30 June 2023, the debt securities are unsecured, bearing (i) RZBEZ=FXA=1+H BKES

(i)

fixed interest rates from 2.0% to 3.3% (2022: 2.8%) per
annum and will mature in one to two years (2022: mature
in two years).

The equity securities designated at FVOCI (non-recycling)
include the listed equity securities of companies engaged
in banking and finance industry of HK$67,490,000 (2022:
HK$70,758,000) and telecommunications industry of
HK$Nil (2022: HK$23,275,000). The Group designated
these investments as equity securities at FVOCI (non-
recycling), as the investments are held for investment yield
enhancement purpose.

During the year ended 30 June 2023, the Group disposed
part of the equity securities for capital preservation
purpose. The fair value on the date of disposal was
HK$30,363,000 (2022: HK$6,452,000), resulting in a
transfer of accumulated gain on the equity securities
designated at FVOCI (non-recycling) of HK$6,173,000
(2022: HK$595,000) within equity.

MR (&

JVERAA | ZZE_=FF%H

REER BRERFNER20%E
33%(ZZFZZF : 2.8%) » WiKR
—EMEREH(ZZF  REE
WEH) -

BERAFEET AR MEEmRE (T
AEE)WREFSEERITRERE
AFZ EHREFESHB%67,490,000
(=T : j8%70,758,0007T)
REMENAFAZLTRERS B
FEx(ZZTZZF : #B¥23,275000
L) o REEHZEREREREATE
Bt AHEtEmEmlE (RTER) /YR
=5 MBAREBEEIANSER
FRERHZ AR -

ﬁi:g:ziﬁﬂ£+amiﬁl
AEEBERREXENBEETHS

B ¥ .':H%EIHHE’J’D\${T{E?%/§
#30,363,000C(ZEZZ4F : B
6,452,0007t) * BEIEE AR A FE
Bt \Et2E WS (R I EE ) /R
mn¥§m§u+q&mglﬁm6 173 00075
(ZEZ % : #BH#595,0005T) FEiER
FREERE o
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Inventories

(a)

(b)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B R R M

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

Inventories in the consolidated statement of (a)
financial position comprise:

15 BE

REEUBRRRZEFERS

2023 2022

== —E-CF

HK$°000 HK$°000

B FT BEFT

Raw materials B 426,547 588,115
Work in progress XM 40,322 45,916
Finished goods ey 176,229 192,508
Inventories in transit EREm 1,066 16,160
Packing materials BER 23,754 26,296
667,918 868,995

The analysis of amount of inventories (b) REEEBREIRILZFE

recognised as an expense and included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss is as
follows:

SHEOWMT -

2023 2022

—=E_= —E- &

HK$’000 HK$°000

BT BHF T

Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFEZREE 4,238,608 4,962,885
Write-down of inventories FERE 4,357 361
4,242,965 4,963,246
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

16 Trade and other receivables 16 BEZRHMEWRN
2023 2022
—E=-= —E-CF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETFT BHTF T
Trade receivables, net of loss allowance HIBREIERE 2 E 5 EWERR 302,746 316,363
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HEWR - RERFBEARE 44,618 98,972
347,364 415,335
All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be FMEEZ NEHMEWERRYFESRE—F
recovered or recognised as expense within one year. AKRESERAEI S ©
Ageing Analysis IR DA
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis RIBERLE » BRIEBERZHERNERE
of trade receivables (which are included in trade and other BREE S ENFIE ZRE D (25T
receivables), based on the invoice date and net of loss AEBESREMEBWERFT)AT :

allowance, is as follows:

2023 2022
—E-= B F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Within 3 months =EAR 299,742 310,011
3 to 6 months =Z2XEA 3,004 6,164
Over 6 months ~ER B L - 188
302,746 316,363

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk AEBEZEEBRRREZEBRIES

arising from trade receivables are set out in note 24(a). K= BRI EE24() ©
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17 Cash and deposits and other

212

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

17 BERERREMRE

cash flow information

REEHR

(a) Cash and deposits comprise: (a) BREeREREE:

2023 2022

—g== —ECF

HK$°000 HK$°000

BET T BT T

Deposits with banks RITEHER 1,139,063 1,184,564

Cash at bank and on hand RITEFREES 317,776 356,890
Cash and deposits in the consolidated #F&BBEMRIEXZRER

statement of financial position FEZ 1,456,839 1,541,454
Fixed deposits held at banks with FiEERIBRE A=A

original maturity over three months BLERRITERIFR (726,657) (531,494)
Cash and cash equivalents in the FeReRERZEESR

consolidated statement of cash flows IREE%E 730,182 1,009,960

Cash at bank carries interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposits rates. Deposits with banks
include time deposits which are matured within
three months and earn interest at the respective
short term deposit rates, and fixed deposits with

original maturity over three months.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17 Cash and deposits and other
cash flow information (continueq)

(b)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from

financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s
liabilities from financing activities, including both
cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from
financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as

cash flows from financing activities.

B B R R M

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

17 RERERREME S

REER @)
(b) REITBFELEZEBYHE

TRANASEREETHTEE
ZEERE  ETEERERFE
REe8d  BMEFTDHRELEZR
BEAREREENIRRRE
RESRAEEGERERE
NDBERBREFTH2RERE -

Lease liabilities (note 719)

HERE (ME19)

2023 2022
—E-= B F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
At 1 July ®tA—AH 4,416 5,212
Changes from financing cash flows: BEREHRESH :
Capital element of lease rentals paid 2 HEERE 2 EREH (4,521) (4,784)
Interest element of lease rentals paid 2HREHRS 2 F 235 (208) (296)
Total changes from financing cash flows BERESRELEELE (4,729) (5,080)
Exchange adjustments LA (308) (89)
Other changes: Hib# 5 :
Increase in lease liabilities from entering FRRBEFTIHEER
into new leases and renewal of leases  HEZHZHEEE
during the year 2 4,594 4,077
Interest expenses (note 7) NEBR(ME7) 208 296
_Totalotherchanges ~~~~ Hfe@®es 00 | EEEEN 4373
At 30 June RAB=+H 4,181 4,416
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

17 Cash and deposits and other 17 RERERERHEMEAE
" " ) :tg ~ s _
cash flow information (continved) MEER @)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (0 HERSHHAE
Amounts included in the consolidated statement of REETAGEABEERERZA
cash flows for leases comprise the following: BEEELTIER -
2023 2022
—E-= —E_F
HK$’000 HK$°000
BEFTT JBHEF T
Within operating cash flows KRERERENR 7,081 9,239
Within investing cash flows REBHEESRENRN = 2,471
Within financing cash flows REREREA 4,729 5,080
11,810 16,790
These amounts relate to the following: ZEFIEELIT 48R ¢
2023 2022
—E_= —EC-_—F
HK$000 HK$°000
BT T BHEF T
Lease rentals paid effEgdEe 11,810 14,319
Purchase of leasehold land BEHEE T - 2,471
11,810 16,790
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

18 Trade and other payables and 18 EZRHMEMNERRK

contract liabilities EREE
(a) Trade and other payables () EZRHMEMNER
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing RIBEHAE  BEBERZEFHZ
analysis of trade payables (which are included in B ZEMRRZRRINM(EFTA
trade and other payables), based on the invoice date, B REMEMERT)NT :
is as follows:
2023 2022
== —ECF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BEF T BT T
Within 3 months =EAR 364,645 460,823
More than 3 months =@EBAUL 2,694 3,174
Trade payables B S EMAIRI 367,339 463,997
Deposits received S ¢ A 17,009 14,984
Other payables and accruals HiENRARETER 200,910 261,926
Deferred income IEIEW A 3,980 4,918
589,238 745,825
Notes: BEE -
(i) All of the trade and other payables are expected to (i) MEE S R HEME[IRRITTE
be settled or recognised as income within one year THE—FRENRER S WA
or are repayable on demand. A EREFEE o
(ii) As at 30 June 2023, other payables and accruals (ii) RZBZ=FXA=+H"
included an amount due to a fellow subsidiary of HtENERRESERE
HK$2,717,000 (2022: HK$8,563,000) in relation FENEZRHEB QGBI
to management fee expenses payable to the fellow 2,717,000t (ZZE=-—F : &
subsidiary, which is unsecured, interest-free and #58,563,00070) ' EREEIE
repayable on demand. RIFRARMBELRNEEER
¥ BZREAREKR - 2EK
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B R R M

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

18 Trade and other payables and
contract liabilities (continued)

(b) Contract liabilities (b)

aEAE

2023

—Eg=-=

HK$°000
BETT

i Em mAERE N

Advances received for goods to be sold

18 EZREMENERRR
EREBE @

2022
—E- &
HK$'000
BHEF T

20,824

69,492

Contract liabilities represent receipts in advance for
sales of goods, giving rise to contract liabilities until
revenue is recognised.

Included in the contract liabilities as at 30 June
2022, a balance of HK$69,472,000 (2021:

HK$35,051,000) was recognised as revenue in the
current year.

19 Lease liabilities

At the end of the reporting period, the lease liabilities

FRABREHEIREAK

A X
BXR

ERABRAZAMEEZERE

%o

REZBE-ZEXA=1+HMNER
EEED  ERAEFEERIAK
A 569,472,000 (=2 =—

& B%E35,051

19 HEEE

RIBEWLE - HERERK

,0007%) °

represented:
2023 2022
—=E—= —EBCF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT BT T
Within 1 year —F R 3,112 3,177
After 1 year but within 2 years —FHREMFER 933 1,041
After 2 years but within 5 years MERERFR 136 198
1,069 1,239
4,181 4,416
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20 Deferred taxation

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B R R M

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

(a) Deferred tax assets and liabilities

recognised:
(i) Movement of each component of (i) BEHEEEREEEE
deferred tax assets and liabilities BE
The components of deferred tax liabilities/ RiFE MR RKRERR
(assets) recognised in the consolidated ZELZEHREBEE (EE)
statement of financial position and the HERFERAZESFHMNT :
movements during the year are as follows:
Depreciation
allowances
in excess of Expected
the related distributable
Deferred tax arising from: FEREELR depreciation  Provisions  Tax losses profits Total
REEHE ik
BHEBNE BB HEER  ASKEN fit
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BEFR BEFT BEFT BEFT
At 1 July 2021 RZE--Ft+f-H 9,114 (57) (6,192) 11,709 14,574
Credited to consolidated REEBERTA
statement of profit or loss (17283
(note 8(a)) (384) (116) (115) (2,027) (2,642)
Exchange adjustments ENA% (3) - - - (3)
At 30 June 2022 RZE-ZExA=1H 8,727 (173) (6,307) 9,682 11,929
At 1 July 2022 RZBE-ZE+A-H 8,721 (173) (6,307) 9,682 11,929
Charged/(credited) to REaBRRR/
consolidated statement of (Gt A) (H280)
profit or loss (note 8(a)) 348 6 (14,766) 3,228 (11,184)
Exchange adjustments ERAE 65 - 176 - 241
At 30 June 2023 RZBZ=ExR=1H 9,140 (167) (20,897) 12,910 986
HIBE(EB)BRAA | ZEZ=FF W 217
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20 Deferred taxation (continued

218

(a)

(b)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B R R M

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

20 ELEHIE#)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities (a)
recognised: (continued)

(ii) Reconciliation to the consolidated
statement of financial position:

CRIDEEHAEERER
(&

(i) FEHBMREEZHEK

Net deferred tax assets recognised ~ R&S BRI ED
in the consolidated statement of R IEERIEF

2023 2022
e I ———

—_—<—— —7——5'5

HK$'000 HK$°000
BETT BT T

financial position BE (14,586) (884)
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised REREBARRRE
in the consolidated statement of R ZIELERES
financial position =L 15,572 12,813
986 11,929
Deferred tax liabilities not recognised (b) KRERELEBIHARE

At 30 June 2023, temporary differences relating to
the expected distributable profits of the Group’s
subsidiaries in the Mainland China amounted
to HK$823,628,000 (2022: HK$818,115,000).
A deferred tax liability has been recognised
in respect of expected distributable profits of
HK$258,215,000 (2022: HK$193,640,000) where
there are planned distributions from subsidiaries in
the foreseeable future. No deferred tax liabilities
have been recognised in respect of the remaining
HK$565,413,000 (2022: HK$624,475,000) as the
Company controls the dividend policy of these
subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is
probable that profits will not be distributed by these
subsidiaries in the foreseeable future.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited | Annual Report 2023

R-ZZE-_=FXA=1+RH BH
AEBRFPEAZE KB LRE
HU2REANNEEEEZEES
B 82362800 (= &F ==
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZE-=FXB=1HILEE

20 Deferred taxation (continueq)

(c)

Deferred tax assets not recognised

At 30 June 2023, the Group had unused tax losses of
HK$374,878,000 (2022: HK$290,386,000) available
for offset against future taxable profits. A deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of tax
losses of HK$98,199,000 (2022: HK$38,225,000).
No deferred tax assets have been recognised in
respect of the remaining HK$276,679,000 (2022:
HK$252,161,000) due to the unpredictability
of future taxable profit streams. Included in
unrecognised tax losses are losses of HK$52,740,000
(2022: HK$25,100,000) that will expire within
five years. Other losses can be carried forward
indefinitely.

At 30 June 2023, the Group had temporary
differences of HK$64,118,000 (2022:
HK$81,655,000) arising from impairment losses
of certain leasehold land and property, plant and
equipment provided in prior years. No deferred tax
assets have been recognised in respect of these
temporary differences due to the unpredictability of
taxable profits streams against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised in the
foreseeable future.

20 ELEHIE#)

(9]

MIBE(BRB)ERRAA | B _=FFH

AERELEHRIREE

R-ZEZ=F~"A=1+H K&
BB 1374878000 (=&
T 8%290,386,0007T) 7]
AR 0 R 3R FE R B % R M B 7%
B8 - ERRZBSEEERT
#1898 199,000t (=2 ==
7B#538,225,0007 ) WIELEF 1B E
E o Fl&R 1B ¥ 276,679,000 7T
(ZEZ-—4 : #B¥252,161,000
o) AEMAER BAKRR
EANNATEEME > TR
REBRABELHBEE - 3
S RERNBREBTERYE
52,740,000t (ZEZZF : B
25,100,00070) BB R A ER
BHR o EMhEE A UUEIR Bt &
BEEBHR o

AEBRUBFEASETHESL
WRME BRERREERE
BiE ZERBR-_ZE-=
NRAE=ZTHBAXREEELERY
64,118,000Jc (=& -4 . B
81,655,0007T) BV EBFMEE R -
BRREFHFTERM » WHE
AT TE R AR A E R B R 2=
BOUNTEBRZEERAEL
BEEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

21 BRA

21 Share capital

220

(a)

Issued share capital

(a) CBITRA

Ordinary shares, issued ERTREBE

and fully paid: EER
At 1 July and 30 June RtA—BR
~A=1H

2023
e

—_——=

Number of

shares
RO EHE
‘000

7:

243,354

2022
—E-CF
Number of
shares
RiDEE
HK$'000 ‘000 HK$°000
BT F BT T

672,777 243,354 672,777

In accordance with section 135 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, the ordinary shares of the
Company do not have a par value.

During the year, the Group purchased its own
ordinary shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited for the purpose of satisfying the
exercise of share options granted under the Group’s
share option scheme as follows:

For the year ended 30 June 2023:

REBEB(RBERPIHE1356% » &<
NAEBERTBAAEE -

FEERRMREERTRODIBE
AT ENRSE » AREERD
RERAABAHTIEEBRAR
SRAERABHENSBERAT

BE-Z-=F~A=1HLH%F

Ji

Number of Highest Lowest
shares  price paid price paid  Aggregate
purchased per share per share price paid

28 28
AR5 BRES BR &K =F - Ch)
HE B B BER
Month/year /8% ‘000 HK$ HK$ HK$'000
F BT BET BEFT
August 2022 B "FNR 29 9.55 9.30 274
September 2022 B _FhA 24 9.90 9.70 236
October 2022 —EF1A 32 10.50 10.00 323
February 2023 —EBE-=%"R 15 10.20 10.00 152
March 2023 —EC-=F=# 8 10.00 9.80 79
108 1,064
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21 Share capital (continued)

(a)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B R R M

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZE-=FXB=1HILEE

21 & (@)

Issued share capital (continued) (a) CBEITRAGE)
For the year ended 30 June 2022: BEr-—E-——SA=+HLE
E:

Number of Highest Lowest
shares price paid price paid  Aggregate
purchased per share per share price paid

[SF:Ch) =5 Ch)
BARS BRE&ES BR&E =5 Ch)
Month/year £,/ B HE B TS HIE
‘000 HK$ HK$ HK$'000
F BT BT BEFT
August 2021 —E-FNA 117 15.00 14.60 1,737
September 2021 —E-—-FhA 85 15.20 14.90 1,278
October 2021 —B-—%F1+A 43 15.60 15.10 662
November 2021 —E-—%+—A8 101 15.70 15.40 1,570
December 2021 —E2-—-F+=A 489 15.60 15.00 7,489
January 2022 —E-"F—H4 34 15.20 15.10 514
February 2022 —E-—_F—HA 28 15.00 14.00 407
March 2022 —EBZF=A 102 14.50 13.20 1,415
April 2022 —E-"HFMA 95 14.00 11.50 1,248
May 2022 —EBE--FHA 84 12.80 11.80 1,015
June 2022 —E-——HXA 114 11.90 11.20 1,301
1,292 18,636

The considerations of the purchased shares for the
year ended 30 June 2023 of HK$1,064,000 (2022:
HK$18,636,000) were charged to ESOP reserve.

BE-ZE-_=FXA=Z+HL
FEBAROCHNEERBE
1,064,000 L (ZEZZF : B
18,636,0007T) W EFETHA B IR
DRIBFET REEE IR o

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with
regard to the Company’s residual assets.

As at 30 June 2023, there were 8,409,000 (2022:
8,301,000) ordinary shares acquired and held by the
Group under the ESOP reserve for the purpose of
satisfying the exercise of share options granted to
eligible employees.

MIE(ER)BRAR | — B _=FFRH

BEBRZBEATERERTEEIK
ZRE - WARARARZRE L
RERROZE-—EREE -5
RRABZRGEENS  IEE
BREBREEER -

R-ZZEZ=FXA=1+H A"
EERFEEREIRDAEE
AT MR - AEERITHR
AERODABEARBERITE
TIBARS, 409,000 (=B =4 :
8,301,0008%) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

21 Share Capital (continued)

(b)

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders, by pricing products and
services commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure by reviewing
its equity-debt ratio and cashflow requirements,
taking into account of its future financial obligations
and commitments. For this purpose, the Group
defines equity-debt ratio as the ratio of total equity
to net debt. Net debt represents lease liabilities less
cash and deposits.

21 & (@)

(b)

EXrEE

FEEEREANTIERRRE
RESEEHTFEREE  BBB
7= i & AR 7% 5 i B2 L ok P 4B A
MEE  UARBBRSENLE
SRE  EMERSRREMHE
BN AEMFI AR E H R

FEEEBRENHEARBR
AR kEE  LEERsREH
HBIERT TREHE2ESEEK
FHRHEFNERNRRTRNES
RREZEREGFE  LEEE
BRENSCHERRBELR
o

FEBUERERLERRER
EREBBRNMBEERASE
HEREREFARBE - BERR
bt AEEEERERLRATE
RBEREFEBHOLLER - FE
BEFHERERREREN

2023 2022

—=E_= —E-CF

HK$’000 HK$°000

BT T BT T

Lease liabilities HEERE 4,181 4,416
Less: Cash and deposits B IRERER (1,456,839) (1,541,454)
(1,452,658) (1,537,038)

Total equity AR 2,786,313 2,959,124
Equity-debt ratio R ERE=E 100:0 100:0
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22 Reserves

B B R R M

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

22 f#E

The Company ¥ N
Fair value
Share reserve
Share option (non- Revenue
capital reserve recycling) reserve Total
hhAEE ATEERE
e s (FAEE) et 1] fif
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BEFR BEFR BEFT BEFR
At 1 July 2021 RZIEZ-E+f-H 672,777 - (5,070) 1,505,120 2,172,827
Profit for the year REERT - - - 148,238 148,238
Equity investments at FVOCI - net movement R ATEE A EM2EUERM
in fair value reserve (non-recycling) RERE - A TBEREEZD
FE(FER) - - 39 - 39
Transfer of gain on disposal of equity ERBERDTEEAZENE
investments at FVOC| to revenue reserve MRERE 2 s - - (595) 595 -
Equity settled share-based transactions REREEURABENERS - 2,537 - - 2,537
Forfeiture of unclaimed dividends RUAERRZRE - - - 1,050 1,050
Final dividend paid in respect of prior year ~ BEEEDARERE - - - (80,307) (80,307)
Interim dividend paid in respect of PAEECHTHRE
current year - - - (36,503) (36,503)
At 30 June 2022 RIB--EXA=TH 672,777 2,537 (5,626) 1,538,193 2,207,881
At 1 July 2022 WZE-—&E+f-H 672,777 2,537 (5,626) 1,538,193 2,207,881
Profit for the year REERF = = = 76,716 76,716
Equity investments at FVOCI - net movement R AFEE A K2 EEA
in fair value reserve (non-recycling) RERE - A TEEREZD
FE(TER) - - 3,820 - 3,820
Transfer of gain on disposal of equity ERNERNTEETAZENE
investments at FVOC| to revenue reserve BRERE 2 Ws - - (6,173) 6,173 =
Equity settled share-based transactions REGEEZURMAEERS - 2,196 - - 2,196
Final dividend paid in respect of prior year ~ FAFEDAXHRE - - - (80,307) (80,307)
Interim dividend paid in respect of FAEECATHRE
current year - - - (24,335) (24,335)
At 30 June 2023 RZE-=%5xA=1H 672,771 4,733 (7,979) 1,516,440 2,185,971
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZE-=FXB=1HILEE

22 Reserves (continued)

224

Nature and purpose of reserves of the Group:

()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Surplus reserve

In accordance with Accounting Regulations for
Business Enterprises, foreign investment enterprises
in Mainland China are required to transfer at least
10% of their profit after taxation, as determined
under accounting principles generally accepted in
the PRC (“PRC GAAP") to the statutory surplus
reserve until the balance of the reserve is equal to
50% of their registered capital.

ESOP reserve

The ESOP reserve comprises the purchase
consideration for issued shares of the Company
acquired for the purpose of satisfying the exercise of
share options granted to eligible employees under
the Company’s Share Option Scheme.

Share option reserve

Share option reserve comprises the cumulative fair
value of employee services received for the issue of
share options at respective grant date and is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies in
note 2(q)(ii).

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises: (a) the foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of subsidiaries outside
Hong Kong whose functional currencies are different
from the functional currency of the Company; and
(b) the exchange differences on monetary items
which form part of the Group’s net investment in the
subsidiaries outside Hong Kong. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies set
out in note 2(u).
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(i)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

Reserves (continued)
(v)  Fair value reserve (non-recycling)

The fair value reserve (non-recycling) comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of equity
investments at FVOCI under HKFRS 9 that are held at
the end of the reporting period (see note 2(f)).

(vi) Revenue reserve

The distributable reserves of the Company at 30
June 2023 amounted to HK$1,516,440,000 (2022:
HK$1,538,193,000).

Equity settled share-based
transactions

Executive Share Option Scheme 2013 (the “ESOS 2013")
was approved by the shareholders of the Company at the
extraordinary general meeting held on 23 April 2013 and
took effect on 25 April 2013 to, among other, allow grant
of options over newly issued shares and/or transfer of
existing shares by a trust of the ESOS 2013 (the “Trust”)
which was established between the Company and a trustee
of the Trust, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group.

Options granted under the ESOS 2013 are subject to
achievement of performance-based vesting condition. The
option shall lapse on the date the grantee ceased to be an
employee of the Group or the performance-based condition
is not satisfied. Each option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company and is
settled gross in shares.

22

23

RE =)
(v) AV EEH#ERTER)

AFEERE(TTERD) BER
BERRAFAEBMBREE
BIEORE TR ER D FEES
ARt 2E KT ENRERE
DNHEEZEH 2R FE(RME
2(f) °

(vi) WEfEE

KARARZEZ=ZFXA
=STHZURIKRFEEABY
1,516,440,000 L (Z&E ==
7&#51,538,193,0007T) °

RERGEZURG A
BERERZ

20131THRAER 7 R BREST 2 (2013
BHRBEETE DR =_FT—=FTA
“H=ZARARARRESH RS LER
RitE IR=FB—=FmMA=+HA
£ HPEEETRESRIBITR
B RBEB2013R D REEFTEIRNE
FE(TEED (BEE AR AT EERZET
ZETAFRYL > MEFTAALTEBRZ
2EMBLAT) o

RIF2013RDARBE B TR E 2R
BzBBIREBARIRERRE - RH
RBERARAFLATEBRZET 2
ARAREEIRBEERLAYN - SHORKR
HRBEBTHEEARBBARA-RE
BRI K LR R ER A o
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For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

23 Equity settled share-based 23 BEREEZURG A
transactions (continued) HBRXZ
(a) The terms and conditions of the grants are (a) BHZERMEENT :
as follows:
ESOS 2013: 2013 1D EREBRESTE ¢
Number of
Instruments at Contractual life
grant date Exercisable period of options
REQSBABESE WIEHH RBESHH

Options granted to a director:

ARERT-2ES:

24 August 2021 2,500,000 From the date of notification of entitlement (“Vesting 3.4 years
“E-_-EAAZ1+WA Date”) up to 2 months from the Vesting Date
RESASHERRRAN(HEEAN)ER 34F
BEASBEMEARTHE

From the 13th month up to the 14th month from the 4.4 years
Vesting Date

REBRMEEt=EAZEtNEABBTR 448

From the 25th month up to the 26th month from the 5.4 years
Vesting Date

REBRMEE-TREAZE-t\MEABBTR 5.4

Options granted to eligible

executives:
AEERTOERTHAR
24 August 2021 6,200,000 From the Vesting Date up to 2 months from the Vesting 3.4 years
—E--FAA=1lA Date
WBE B HEmE AR 345
From the 13th month up to the 14th month from the 4.4 years
Vesting Date
REBRSEET=EAZETNEABBGE 4.4%
From the 25th month up to the 26th month from the 5.4 years
Vesting Date
REBRMEE-TREAZE-tEANET 545
Total share options granted 8,700,000

RORBERTFAT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

23 BRESGEHEZURMGDA

23 Equity settled share-based

(b)

transactions (ontinued) EWRX5 @
The number and weighted average (b) KROPEENEERMNEEY
exercise prices of share options are as TEEBMT :
follows:
ESOS 2013: 2013 MR ABRERTE
2023 2022
—EBC=F - St -
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price TLICLE |  exercise price options
ik B TS
TR RBEHE 188 REEHA
HK$ ‘000 HK$ 000
BET F BB F
Outstanding at the beginning ~ REXMKKITHE
of the year 15.11 7,900 - -
Granted during the year NEREF - - 15.11 8,700
Lapsed during the year REREXHN 15.11 (1,200) 15.11 (800)
Outstanding at the end RERERBITHE
of the year 15.11 6,700 15.1 7,900
Exercisable at the end RERTTHE

of the year

The options outstanding at 30 June 2023 had an
exercise price of HK$15.11 (2022: HK$15.11) and a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 2.4

years (2022: 3.4 years).

REZBE-=ZFEXA=Z1+HHEEK
WITERBRETEERBYE15.11
T(ZEZZF . BB 1511k
IEFGREGE NI A24FE (=

=——

= —
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F348) -
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23 Equity settled share-based
transactions (continued)
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(c)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B R R M

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

23 BREEEZURGA
ERRXZ @

Fair value of share options and (0 EROAIRBENLATFLEENRR
assumptions
The fair value of services received in return for share ZERRFRPIABEERERE
options granted is measured by reference to the fair NAFEERZBEZMETIABE
value of share options granted. The estimate of the HAFEESTE SRHKRMOR
fair value of the share options granted is measured BEANTEER2BE MR —EF
based on Black-Scholes model. The contractual life T RS - RODBENS
of the share option is used as an input into this HHAPR R ZE R g AE o
model.
Fair value of share options and assumptions of ESOS BOREEAFLEER2013KH
2013: R
24 August 2021
Grant date A —E--FNA=+WMA
Fair value at measurement date RETEBRZAFEE HK$1.415-HK$1.798
B 4158 %1.798 7T
Share price RE HK$15.00
78115.007T
Exercise price T8 HK$15.11
BEI15.117T
Expected volatility FEERIR IR 19.89%-21.43%
Option life REEREFH 3.4 years-5.4 years
34F-54%F
Expected dividends FEEIRR E = 32%
Risk-free interest rate 9 [ P I R 0.33% - 0.68%
(based on Exchange Fund Notes) (RENEESZERE)

The expected volatility is based on the historic
volatility (calculated based on the weighted average

remaining life of t

he share options), adjusted for

any expected changes to future volatility based on
publicly available information. Expected dividends
are based on historical dividends. Changes in the
subjective input assumptions could materially affect
the fair value estimate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24 IREREERAFRE

24 Financial risk management and
fair values

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group's business. The
Group is also exposed to equity price risk arising from its
equity investments in other entities.

The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk
is primarily attributable to trade receivables. The
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from cash
and deposits and derivative financial assets is limited
because the counterparties are banks and financial
institutions with a good credit rating, for which the
Group considers to have low credit risk. The Group
invests in debt securities issued by government with
credit ratings A or above as rated by international
credit rating agencies, and has limits for exposures
to individual investment in debt securities to manage
concentration risk. The Group does not provide any
other guarantees which would expose the Group to
credit risk.

Trade receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry or country
in which the customers operate and therefore
significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to
individual customers. At the end of the reporting
period, 32% (2022: 16%) of the total trade
receivables was due from the Group’s five largest
customers.
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24 Financial risk management and
fair Values (continued)

230

(a)

Credit risk (continued)
Trade receivables (continued)

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as
well as pertaining to the economic environment in
which the customer operates. Credits are offered
to customers following financial assessments and
established payment records where applicable.
Credit limits are set for all customers and these are
exceeded only with the approval of senior company
officers. Customers considered to be with credit risk
are traded on a cash basis. General credit terms are
payment within 30 to 60 days following the sales
took place. Regular review and follow up actions
are carried out on overdue amounts to minimise
the Group’s exposure to credit risk. Collaterals over
properties are obtained from certain customers.
An ageing analysis of the debtors is prepared on a
regular basis and is closely monitored to minimise
any credit risk associated with these debtors.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix. As the
Group’s historical credit loss experience indicates
different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the loss allowance based on past due
status is further distinguished between the Group’s
different customer bases.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

24 Financial risk management and
fair values (ontinueq)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

The following table provides information about the
Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade

24 BiREREENRANFEE
B

(a)

EERRE)

B 5 EWAR ()

TREHRABEASERE S EY
RRFHEE2FEERBRKR ARG

receivables: BEE 28R
2023 2022
—E-= —E-CF
Gross Gross
carrying Loss carrying Loss
amount allowance amount allowance
IREAE FERE IREAE EiERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BYFT BYFT BEFT BT
Current (not past due) BNER (K@) 286,397 = 281,999 =
Less than 3 months past due BHOR=1EA 16,343 = 33,676 =
More than 3 months past due ~ BHIBB=1EA 152 (146) 832 (144)
302,892 (146) 316,507 (144)

The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome of expected credit losses and is adjusted
to reflect differences between economic conditions
during the period over which the historic data has
been collected, current conditions and also forward-
looking information including the Group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of the
receivables.
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24 Financial risk management and
fair values (continued)

232

(a)

(b)

24 BiREREERANFEE
B

Credit risk (continued) () RFEERKE)
Trade receivables (continued) BESENRY ()
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect AEEEZRERWERER ZEBERE
of trade receivables during the year is as follows: AEREMD BT ¢
2023 2022
—E=-= —E-CF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT BHF T
At beginning of year F4] 144 360
Amounts written off during the year AEEMEEEE (7) (164)
Loss allowance recognised/(reversed) REEFHERERR
during the year (E15) 9 (54)
2 (218)
_Exchange adjustments EX®EE | 2
At end of year ER 146 144
Liquidity risk (b) REELER

The Group closely monitors its liquidity and financial
resources to ensure that a healthy financial position
is maintained such that cash inflows from operating
activities together with un-drawn banking facilities
are sufficient to meet the requirements for loan
repayments, daily operational needs, capital
expenditure, as well as potential business expansion
and development.

The Group reviews its strategy from time to time
to ensure that cost-efficient funding is available to
cater for the unique operating environment of each
subsidiary.

Banking facilities available to Group companies and
not yet drawn as at 30 June 2023 amounted to
HK$553 million (2022: HK$659 million).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

24 Financial risk management and 24 BIKEBREERAFE

fair values (continued) E(,?E)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) REBEELEE)
The following tables show the remaining contractual TREINAEECRBENRE
maturities at the end of the reporting period of MARBZBTENZEE T
the Group’s financial liabilities, which are based EHNEHENREVRUBERS
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including RE(BEMNBHNERNZS (HF
interest payments computed using contractual rates BIEREHABBANAETE
or, if floating, based on rates prevailing at the end of ZREMAF) URAEETHER
the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group Rz &R BEEE

can be required to pay:

2023
e

-g-=
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
EHAMBRERH
Within ~ More than  More than

Carrying Tyearor  1yearbut 2 years but
amount  ondemand within 2 years within 5 years Total
—FR —EHE WERL
REfE IR ERENR BRENR CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
E¥Tr E¥Tr E¥Tr E¥Tr E¥Tr

Trade payables BAEME 367,339 367,339 - - 367,339
Other payables and accruals EtERERRETER 200,910 200,910 - - 200,910
Lease liabilities HEEE 4,181 3,226 951 138 4,315
572,430 571,475 951 138 572,564
2022
“ECCE
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BORBEESR

Within More than More than
Carrying 1 year or Tyearbut 2 years but

amount  ondemand within 2 years  within 5 years Total
—ER —FHE BENL
e B EMENA ERENR GEl

HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
ERTn  E¥Fr  ERTn E¥Fr ERTx

Trade payables EARMAER 463,997 463,997 = = 463,997
Other payables and accruals HitEAERRETER 261,926 261,926 - - 261,926
Lease liabilities HEGE 4,416 3,95 1,068 203 4,566

730,339 729,218 1,068 203 730,489

MIE(ER)BRAR | — B _=FFRH 233



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

24 Financial risk management and
fair values (ontinueq)

234

(¢) Interest rate risk

(i)

Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest
rate profile of the Group's interest earning
financial assets and interest bearing financial
liabilities at the end of the reporting period:

24 BiREREERANFEE
B

(c)

()

MREkR

FIEHER

TRAJNRERLR
FEBzHEEMEER
SFEERMAEIRRER

2023 2022
—EC-= —ECCE
Effective Effective
interest Carrying interest Carrying
rate p.a. amount rate p.a. amount
ERERI=E HREE EREFRE REE
% HK$'000 % HK$'000
BETT BYETT
Fixed rate financial EERSREE/
assets/(liabilities): (Bf8) :
Deposits with banks RITERER 2.98 1,139,063 1.89 1,184,564
Debt securities ERES 2.27 91,446 2.77 24,023
Lease liabilities HERE 4.33 (4,181) 4.57 (4,416)
1,226,328 1,204,171
Variable rate FEEREE
financial assets:
_Cashatbank TER | 136 251951 | 138 281425
Total CE 1,478,279 1,485,596
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24 MBERBEERNTVE

24 Financial risk management and
fair values (continued)

(¢) Interest rate risk (continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

At 30 June 2023, it is estimated that general
increase/decrease of 0 to 97 basis points
(2022: 0 to 200 basis points) in interest rates
for the Group's interest earning financial
assets denominated in various currencies,
mainly Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and
United States dollars, with all other variables
held constant, would have increased/
decreased the Group’s profit for the year
and revenue reserve by approximately
HK$3,985,000 (2022: HK$3,551,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group's profit
after tax (and revenue reserve) that would
arise assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to re-measure
those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk at the end of the reporting
period. In respect of the exposure to cash
flow interest rate risk arising from floating
rate non-derivative instruments held by the
Group at the end of the reporting period, the
impact on the Group's profit after tax (and
revenue reserve) is estimated as an annualised
impact on interest income of such a change
in interest rates. The analysis is performed on
the same basis as for 2022.

B

(0 F=EbE)

(ii)
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24 Financial risk management and
fair values (continued)

236

(d)

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through sales and purchases which give rise to
receivables, payables and cash balances that are
denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency
other than the functional currency of the operations
to which the transactions relate. The currencies
giving rise to this risk are primarily United States
dollars (“US$"), Renminbi (“RMB"), Hong Kong
dollars ("HK$"”) and Macau Patacas (“MOP").

(i) Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s
exposure at the end of the reporting period
to currency risk arising from recognised assets
or liabilities denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the entity to
which they relate. Differences resulting from
the translation of the financial statements
of operations outside Hong Kong into the
Group's presentation currency and exposure
arising from inter-company balances which
are considered to be in the nature of interest
in subsidiaries are excluded.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited | Annual Report 2023
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24 Financial risk management and

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

fair values (continued)

(d)

Currency risk (continued)

(i)

Exposure to currency risk (continued)

24

%ﬁ%ﬁtl‘fﬁ“’éﬁ&’&$1§
()

(d) E¥ERE#E)

() AEZZIEmEE)

Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in original currency)

AZ 2 MERR(ARERAE)

2023
“E-Z=F
HK$'000 RMB’000 US$'000 MOP’000
BETFT AREFT ELFT RF%FT
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk HEWERER = - 47 -
Cash and deposits RERFEH 439 16,015 2,506 -
Trade and other payables ~ EZREMENER - (219) (1,360) -
Amounts due from group  EWEEARFIE
companies 23,676 1,670 - 2,879
Net exposure arising from  &REEREEELE
recognised assets and ZEREE
liabilities 24,115 17,466 1,193 2,879
Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in original currency)
RZZMNERR(AREEHE)
2022
ZECICF
HK$°000 RMB’000 Us$'000 MOP'000
BETFT AREFT EnTFr BPIT T
Trade and other receivables & 5 & EAbERERR - - 177 =
Cash and deposits BERER 443 15,658 343 -
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMENER - (262) (2,967) -
Amounts due from group  EWEEARFIE
companies 11,448 1,670 - 7,284
Net exposure arising from  &REEREEELE
recognised assets and ZBEBEE
liabilities 11,891 17,066 (2,447) 7,284

MIE(ER)BRAR | — B _=FFRH 237



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24 Financial risk management and
fair values (ontinueq)

B B R R M
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B

24 MBERBEERNTVE

(d) Currency risk (continued) d) EB¥EkE)
(i)  Sensitivity analysis (i) HBEZH
The following table indicates the TREIEHEREERRK

instantaneous changes in the Group’s profit
after tax (and revenue reserve) that would
arise if foreign exchange rates to which
the Group has significant exposure at the
end of the reporting period had changed at
that date, assuming all other risk variables
remained constant.

HK$

RMB

Us$

MOP

2023
—EC-=
(Decrease)/
(Decrease)/ increase in
increase  profit after
in foreign tax and
exchange revenue
rates reserve
BB &R
HEEZR R E
(T%)/Lt#  (HD) /4
% HK$'000
BYETF T
it (6.09) (1,101)
N 6.09 959
En 0.28 13
pdskes (6.09) (128)

EHMKBTESERRR
ZINEER - RZBHHN
BRESHASEBRBR
3 (0 U 38 e ) oz BB
25 WERRABEMLE

REBRRIETE o
2022
—E-CFE

Increase/

Increase/  (decrease) in
(decrease) profit after

in foreign tax and
exchange revenue
rates reserve

BREL A

INEEZ R fEE
EH/(TE) Em/(RD)
% HK$'000

BEFT

0.13 1"
(0.13) (21)

(0.19) 31

0.13 7
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For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZ-Z=-=

24 Financial risk management and
fair Values (continued)

(d)

(e)

Currency risk (continued)
(ii) Sensitivity analysis (continued)

Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of the Group
entities’ profit or loss after tax and revenue
reserve measured in the respective functional
currencies, translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rate ruling at the end of the
reporting period for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rates had
been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk at the
end of the reporting period. The analysis is
performed on the same basis as for 2022.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from equity securities designated at FVOCI (see note
14).

All of the Group's equity securities are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and are held
for investment yield enhancement purpose. Equity
securities have been chosen based on their dividend
yield track records. Equity securities are subject
to asset allocation limits to control appropriate
risks and the limits are reviewed from time to time
based on the latest market situation as well as the
Group's liquidity needs. The portfolio size is regularly
reviewed and the price movements are closely
monitored with appropriate actions taken when
required. Internal reporting mechanism is strictly
implemented for treasury management.

At 30 June 2023, it is estimated that an increase/
decrease of 3% (2022: 2%) in the market value of
the Group’s equity securities designated at FVOCI,
with all other variables held constant, would have
increased/decreased the Group's total equity by
HK$2,025,000 (2022: HK$1,881,000). The analysis
is performed on the same basis as for 2022.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B R R M

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

24 BiREREERANFEE
B

(f) Fair value measurement f)

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s financial instruments measured
at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The
level into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs
used in the valuation technique as follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value
measured using only Level 1 inputs
i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date.

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not
available.

- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs.
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24 Financial risk management and

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B R R M

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

fair values (continued)

(f)

Fair value measurement (continued)

(i)

B

()

24 MBERBEERNTVE

DNV EEREE)

Financial assets and liabilities measured (i) LR FEBEEFEZZHE
at fair value (continued) EREE(E)
2023 2022
ZEC= “ECCE
level1  Level2  Level3 eI Level T Level2  Lewel3 Total
08 EoHE E=4R ol | E-0E 28N E=4N it
G0 TSI [ AKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
BT AETR ERTL AETI B i s a7
Recurring fair value measurements ~ EEEATEREE
Assets EE
Other finandial asets: AfEREE:
- Fquity securites designated at V00— - RRATEBH ALK
ENENRERE 67,490 - - 67490 | 94033 94033
= Club membership -e4 - n - n - mn - n
040 - | wm m 94755

During the years ended 30 June 2023 and
2022, there were no transfers between
Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or
out of Level 3. The Group's policy is to
recognise transfers between levels of fair
value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting
period in which they occur.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

24 Financial risk management and
fair values (continued)

242

(f) Fair value measurement (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Valuation techniques and inputs used in
Level 2 fair value measurements

The fair value of club membership in Level
2 are determined using market comparison
approach by reference to quoted prices in an
active market of financial assets similar to the
instrument being valued, adjusted for factors
unigue to the instrument being valued.

Fair value of financial assets and
liabilities carried at other than fair value

All other significant financial assets and
liabilities are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values as at
30 June 2023 and 2022. It is not meaningful
to disclose the fair value of non-trade
balances with subsidiaries because there is no
fixed term of repayment.

24 MBERBEERNTVE

B

) LDVEESEE

(ii)

(iii)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B R R M

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

25 Commitments 25 A&iE
(a) Capital commitments outstanding at the end of the (a) HAEBRFEHAKAABUTER
reporting period not provided for in the financial FRIERTE B TS SRR e H B4
statements were as follows:
2023 2022
—_E_= —E_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
B TF T BT T
Capital expenditure authorised and ERELEETNZ
contracted for EXRE 11,748 21,343
Capital expenditure authorised but not B ISHEERITHZ
contracted for EXAX 51,290 48,903
In addition, the Group did not commit to enter into B KREEBR-ZZEZ=FK=
new leases that are not yet commenced at 30 June E__FRA=ZTHEBEKLE
2023 and 2022. M EARBARRIFIEE o
(b) At 30 June 2023, the Group had several non-cancellable (b) RM==TE-—=%xXA=+8 K&

purchase orders for raw materials with its suppliers
with an amount of HK$571,315,000 (2022:
HK$738,520,000).

MIE(ER)BRAR | — B _=FFRH

B HEEE BT AR ECH
KR RHRIBETE - ©F BB
571,315,000 T (=B = =4 : &
#£738,520,0007T) °
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26 Related party transactions

244

(a)

(b)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B R R M

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

Key management personnel remuneration (a)

Remuneration for key management personnel,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors
and certain of the highest paid employees is
disclosed in note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements. Total remuneration is included in “staff

26 FRAEALTZRS

FTEEEASEHM

FTEEBAESZHMH  BEXM
FARRARAEERETHEESH
BENGRE M BERRMTOWER
B o FENEERC T A TR T RA
W (RFEE7) -

BEALTEARS

costs” (note 7).
Material transactions with related parties (b)
Nature of transactions REME

Management fee expenses to fellow EEEBETEFER

2023 2022

—E-= —E-_F

HK$000 HK$'000
YT BT T

subsidiaries (note (i) Mt A= (BaEd) 3,917 9,763
Purchase of goods from a fellow BIEEXEG]
subsidiary (note (ii) PREEE R (BHEE() - 8,824
Notes: Bt

On 3 July 2020, a master services agreement
(the "Master Services Agreement”) was entered
into by the Company and its subsidiaries with
Guoline Group Management Company Pte.
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hong
Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad ("HLCM"), the
ultimate holding company of the Company at the
time (see note 28), for the provision by the latter
of management services including, among other
things, overview and/or oversight of businesses
and operations, investment management and
financial management disciplines, treasury and
risk management, key managerial recruitment and
retention as well as other operating practices and
procedures, accounting, corporate advisory, legal,
company secretarial and other services.

The Master Services Agreement is for a term of
three financial years from 1 July 2020 to 30 June
2023.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited | Annual Report 2023
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26 Related party transactions

(continued)
(b) Material transactions with related parties (b)
(continued)

(c)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B R R M

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

26 BEREEATZRZ @)

Notes: (continued)

(ii) On 29 August 2019, LS Synalife Trading Company
Limited ("'LS Synalife’’, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company) entered into the distribution
agreement (the “Distribution Agreement”) with
Manuka Health New Zealand Limited (“MHNZ", an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Guoco Group
Limited which in turn is an indirect subsidiary of
HLCM at the time), pursuant to which MHNZ has
agreed to appoint LS Synalife as the distributor to
distribute the full range of the products of MHNZ
(the "Products”) via certain online channels in the
PRC for the period from 1 July 2019 to 30 June
2020.

On 27 March 2020, a master distribution
agreement (the “Master Distribution Agreement”)
was entered into by the Company with MHNZ
to extend the distributorship of the Distribution
Agreement to a wider geographic and channel
coverage for the distribution of the Products of any
MHNZ and its subsidiaries by the Company and its
subsidiaries in the PRC and such other jurisdictions
as the parties may agree from time to time.

The Master Distribution Agreement is for a term
from 27 March 2020 to 30 June 2022 and it has
not been renewed upon expiry.

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to (c)
connected transactions

The related party transactions in respect of
management fee expenses and purchase of goods
above constitute continuing connected transactions
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules are provided in section “Connected
Transactions” of the Directors’ Report.

MIE(ER)BRAR | — B _=FFRH
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B R R M

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

financial position

N Bl B A M AR AR

2023 2022
—E_= —E- &
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERZE 597 1,046
Interest in subsidiaries Fff B A B RS 1,065,994 1,064,751
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEURB B A T FRIE 660,102 646,328
Other financial assets HibemEE 67,490 94,033
1,794,183 1,806,158
Current assets REEE
Other receivables H b EURBRFR 5,299 2,532
Cash and deposits BHEREFEM 448,504 518,269
453,803 520,801
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables and accruals Hit SR R FESHE A 7,432 14,252
Tax payables FEAT TR X - 170
Lease liabilities HEaE 428 413
I S 7,860 | 14,835
_Netcurrentassets FRBEE | 445,943 | 505,966 _
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBERE 2,240,126 2,312,124
Non-current liabilities kRBAE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEIT B 2 R FIE 54,045 103,718
Lease liabilities HEaRs 110 525
U P 54155 104,243
NET ASSETS FEE 2,185,971 2,207,881
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B2 RF#E
Share capital (note 21) BRAS(BitaE21) 672,777 672,777
Reserves (note 22) & (fat22) 1,513,194 1,535,104
TOTAL EQUITY ARz 2,185,971 2,207,881

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors

on 1 September 2023.

WONG Cho Fai
DIRECTOR

=
EF

RIRET)E o
CHEW Seong Aun AR
DIRECTOR EE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 3R & Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

28 Immediate and ultimate holding 28 EHERHFARIZER AT

company

At 30 June 2023, the Company’'s immediate holding MRZEBEZ=FXA=+H > A27W
company is GuolLine International Limited, which is H & # Ik 2 8 A& Guoline International
incorporated in Bermuda. The directors consider that the Limited » "R BRETMER LB A
Company’s ultimate holding company is GuoLine Capital T EBRAXNRINERERLATE
Assets Limited, a company incorporated in Jersey, as its Guoline Capital Assets Limited » — &1
ultimate holding company. These entities do not produce EREMA I AT RAESRER
financial statements available for public use. NE c ELERSEMEBRRAMAR

£ ©

MIE(ER)BRAR | — B _=FFRH 247
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B R R M

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZZ_=FA=1+HILEE

Possible impact of amendments, 29 BZ == =fF /XA
H

new standards and
interpretations issued but not
yet effective for the year ended
30 June 2023

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of new or amended standards,
which are not yet effective for the year ended 30 June
2023 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These developments include the following
which may be relevant to the Group.

BEHEMBEHRRTIZEEH  HESES
MASCEMEIEREBEE-E_=FX
B=+HLLEEMARENB LS ITIER
RERFEAZETER - EhaggER
SEMEEZERIT o

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
BT BHAg A&
Bth Bt BEEXN

HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts

BERPBMEENE TR RESH ]

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements and

1 January 2023
—E-=%-A—H

1 January 2023

HKFRS Practice Statement 2, Making materiality judgements: Disclosure

of accounting policies

BEETERE 1R HBHREZ 2R IR —E-=%—-A—H
BB E LIRS 2SR [EL EEMHET | SRR E [2185]

Amendments to HKAS 8, Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates 1 January 2023
and errors: Definition of accounting estimates

BBETTRERIES (2K - Bil it RIFREN - ittt E&E /2155 —E-=%-F—H

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes: Deferred tax related to assets and 1 January 2023
liabilities arising from a single transaction

BBRETERE1 20 (2N - E—XFELEEREEEBFELRE 18] —Z-=%—-A—H

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements: Classification of
liabilities as current or non-current

1 January 2024

ERSTEANS 1R HERERZE2H -  BESEETEEIETE 2188 —E-_MFE—-A—H

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements: Non-current 1 January 2024
liabilities with covenants

BB ERSE 1 [HBEHREZEH - WEZEZIERBERE 2155 —ENFE—-F—H

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these developments is expected to be in
the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that
the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact
on the consolidated financial statements.

AREBEFEZSETRANBEAYEB
ZHEBEE  -BEBAAL  RAZE
BIRBTEHAEEGREMBRRE
LEATE -
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The following list contains particulars of principal subsidiaries at 30

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
TENE QT

At30June 2023 RZEZ=FA=H

R-BZ=ZFXA=Z+THETEMBELATFEN

June 2023: T :
Place of incorporation/ Effective
Particulars of establishment and percentage of
Name of company issued capital operation equity holding Principal activities Notes
DRER BRTZRANE SRREE Y RERERIL TEEH i3
Group  Company
58  A4q
Changzhou Lam Soon Edible Oils  RMB40,000,000 The People’s Republic of 100 - Manufacturing and trading of N1
Company Limited AEK#40,000,0007 China specialty fats products
EMrEIEREERAR PEARLAE BEREEREERES
Guangzhou Lam Soon Homecare  HK$21,000,000 The People’s Republic of 100 - Manufacturing and trading of N1
Products Limited 78#21,000,0007T China home care products
ENEIEEZRRERAR hEARIAE FEEEEREERE
Hong Kong Flour Mills Limited 100 ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 - Provision of trucks rental service
EEENBERLR 10,000 deferred shares ~ && and investment holding
100REER RUEBRERRER
10,000RELER
Jiangsu Lam Soon Flour Mills US$7,000,000 The People’s Republic of 100 - Manufacturing and trading of N1
Company Limited 7,000,000 7T China flour products
TERIBENERAR hE \RLAE BRERLERES
Jiangsu Lam Soon Food US$10,000,000 The People’s Republic of 100 - Manufacturing and trading of N1
Company Limited 10,000,000 7T China flour products
THRERRERAE hE A RLANE BRERLERES
Lam Soon (China) Holdings US$1 British Virgin Islands/ 100 - Investment holding
Company Limited %7 Hong Kong REER
ABAEREE /BB
Lam Soon Cleaning & Caring 2 ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 - Trading of home care products
Laboratories (Hong Kong) UREER B FEEBERES
Company Limited
HIEEREEHR (B ERLT
Lam Soon Edible Qils 2 ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 - Investment holding
Holdings Limited UREBR Bk REER
HIEBEERERAF
MIE(EE)ERAR | ZS_=FF&K 249



PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
TENE QT

At30June 2023 R=-ZE-=FX<A=1+H

Place of incorporation/ Effective
Particulars of establishment and percentage of
Name of company issued capital operation equity holding Principal activities Notes
NAER BRTZRANE EMREEHH RERREIL TERHR it
Group  Company
%58  Z4d
Lam Soon Food Industries (BVI) HK$11,858,415 British Virgin Islands 100 100 Investment holding
Limited HA%11,858,4157 ARERREE REER
Lam Soon Food Supply Company 1,000 ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 - Investment holding
Limited 500,000 deferred shares & RERR
HERREEERAR 1,000REBR
500,000 BB
Lam Soon Food Supply (Macau) ~ MOP25,000 Macau 100 4 Trading of flour, edible oils and
Company Limited JRFI#E25,0007C il home care products
HIERREEGRM)ERAR Y RRARFEREERES
Lam Soon Home Care Products 2 ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 - Investment holding
Holdings Limited UREBR Bk REER
HEZEREEMERERAT
Lam Soon Products Supply (Hong 1,000,000 ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 - Manufacturing of edible oils and
Kong) Company Limited 1,000,000 & Bk B trading of flour, edible oils and
HIEERME(ER)ERAR agency products
RAMEERER AR
REERES
Lam Soon Realty Limited 2 ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 100 Property holding, the provision of
BBt EERAR UREER £ warehousing and logistic services
and licenses of factory canteen
NEEE - RESRAMRRER
IRREHRKE
Lam Soon (Shandong) Food US$10,113,100 The People's Republic of 100 - Manufacturing and trading of N7
Company Limited 10,113,100% 7T China flour products
BEILR) RRERAT hE A RLAE BRERLERES
Lam Soon (Sichuan) Food US$7,000,000 The People’s Republic of 100 - Manufacturing and trading of N7

Company Limited
BIE(M)INRRERAT
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7,000,000% 7T
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
TENE QT

At30June 2023 R=-ZE-=FX<A=1+H

companies under PRC Laws.

Fifff o

MIE(ER)BRAR | — B _=FFRH

Place of incorporation/ Effective
Particulars of establishment and percentage of
Name of company issued capital operation equity holding Principal activities Notes
NAEH BRTZRANE AR A RERREIL TERHR Wit
Group  Company
e BV
Lam Soon Silos Investments Limited 2 ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 - Investment holding
HEERREERAR WREBR B REZR
Lam Soon Systems Limited 2 ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 - Provision of information
BIERGERAR UREBR £ technology services
RGNS
Lam Soon Trademark Limited Us$2 Cook Islands/Hong Kong 100 - Trademark holding
VEY NRBE /A% BERE
LS SynaLife Trading 2 ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 - Investment holding
Company Limited UREER BB REER
HEREZERAR
LS SynaLife Trading (Shanghai) RMB7,000,000 The People’s Republic of 100 - Trading and distribution of NT
Company Limited ARK7,000,0007 China products
fESEmE (L8 BRAR PEARLANE EARIHER
Richly Choice Development (PTC) ~ US$1 British Virgin Islands 100 100 Provision of trustee services
Limited 17 ARERREE REERS
Shekou Lam Soon Flour Mills US$27,500,000 The People’s Republic of 100 - Manufacturing and trading of N7
Company Limited 27,500,000% 7 China flour products
LOBIRENERAR hEARIAE BRERLERES
Shekou Lam Soon Silo US$9,500,000 The People’s Republic of 100 - Provision of silo facilities NT
Company Limited 9,500,000% 7 China REFRRE
SORBRRABRAR hEARLAE
Shenzhen Lam Soon Edible Oils ~ US$12,000,000 The People’s Republic of 100 - Manufacturing and trading of N7
Company, Limited 12,000,000% 7 China edible oils products
RYIFIEREERAR EARLAE RRBEREERES
Note: Kzt -
N1 These subsidiaries are registered as wholly-owned-foreign N1 ZEWBATIRTEIERELUIINEBELEES
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5-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
LFEMBERE

The summaries of results, assets and liabilities of the Group and
total equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for
the last five financial years are as follows:

AEEBERENBRFENEE
RAFRREEBESRENT

BEREER

2021 2020 2019
:g:_ﬂ:‘ —7—7¢ :E_j'bﬂi
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BgET BEEET EBEBEET
Results %5
Revenue A 5,119 6,107 5,761 5,119 5,316
Operating profit before interest,  FIIBRFIE - $i1E
taxation, depreciation and WEREBHENZLEET
amortisation 135 327 457 436 433
Profit for the year REERF 85 257 358 317 340
Assets and liabilities BERER
Non-current assets FRBEE 884 975 917 692 725
Net current assets FREEE 1,919 1,998 1,981 1,806 1,622
Non-current liabilities E =L (17) (14) (17) (21) (12)
Non-controlling interests JEfRtER = - _ _ (1)
Equity attributable to AARIRRIEL AR
shareholders of the Company 2,786 2,959 2,881 2,477 2,324
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FSC

wwwfsc.org

MIX

Paper from
responsible sources

FSC™ C120915

© Copyright Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited. All Rights Reserved.

The FSC™ logo identifies products which contain wood and virgin fibre from responsible sources
certified in accordance with the rules of the Forest Stewardship Council™
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